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Z Alta Devices

GaAs flexible thin film production line
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CIGS glass-based thin film production line
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CIGS flexible thin film production line
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a-Si Z SiGe

a-Si/SiGe thin film production line
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Solar-powered vechicle
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Ground mounted solar power station
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERERE

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Hanergy Thin Film
Power Group Limited (the "Company” together with its
subsidiaries, collectively known as the “Group”), | am
delighted to present the annual results of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

During the year under review, the Group recorded a
revenue of HK$9,615,028,000, representing a substantial
increase of approximately 193% as compared to
HK$3,283,791,000 in 2013. This hit a record high with
over 38% of the total income from independent third
party transactions. Gross profit for the year increased
to HK$5,504,648,000, representing an increase of
approximately 109% as compared to previous year's
HK$2,636,012,000.

The Group recorded a net profit of HK$3,307,670,000,
representing an increase of approximately 64% as
compared to HK$2,018,024,000 for the financial year ended
31 December 2013. This increase was primarily attributable
to a major breakthrough in income generated from
downstream businesses from the Group’s unconnected
transactions, representing approximately 38% of total
income. Significant gain was recorded for the sale of five
photovoltaic power stations.

USING CLEAN ENERGY TO CHANGE THE
WORLD IS OUR KEY CORPORATE BELIEF

Changing the world by the use of clean energy is not
only our business but also our mission and common
belief. Looking back into the human history, behind every
industrial revolution there was a revolution of energy: in
the first industrial revolution, coal replaced firewood; and
in the second industrial revolution, petroleum replaced
coal. Those who are able to revolutionize the utilization of
energy by mankind are indeed the leaders of revolutions.
Along with the progress of the third industrial revolution,
the core of the energy revolution is renewable energy as
an alternative to fossil fuel, and photovoltaic represents
the best choice. Photovoltaic power generation has
revolutionized the perception of traditional energy utilization
through its method of converting solar energy directly into
electricity and its realization of zero emission during the
process. With the latest photovoltaic technology, sources
of energy can be anywhere and everywhere. The traditional
centralized power grid will transform into numerous
distributed power generation entities, for the creation of a
better way of living.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EERE

In the course of advancing towards a new and better world
initiated by photovoltaic technological developments, thin
film power generation technology, with its light-weighted,
flexibility and superior light transmission properties, will
become the vanguard of this energy revolution and change
the global structure of the energy industrial mix. Today,
in light of an escalating shortage of traditional resources,
challenges of pressure on the natural environment and
the end of the extensive mode of economic growth in
China’s economy, vigorous development of the alternative
energy industry is imminent. After extensive adjustment in
the past few years, China's photovoltaic industry has set
itself on the right direction forwards healthy development.
In recent years, the Chinese government continued to
introduce a number of policies and subsidies to support the
photovoltaic industry, creating unprecedented incentives
to promote the growth of the industry. In March 2015,
the National Energy Bureau specified a total of 17.8 GW
of new photovoltaic power generation capacity to the
national construction target for the year 2015. The strong
support from the Chinese government fully demonstrates
its determination and commitment in energy conservation,
emission reduction and promotion of the development
of the photovoltaic industry. The Group, being in the
wave of the rising photovoltaic industry, will seize the
opportunities and strive to promote the energy production
and consumption revolution through photovoltaic power
generation technologies.

SUSTAINABLE TECHNOLOGICAL
ADVANTAGE IS A KEY TO SUCCESS

The Group attains its leading position in the photovoltaic
industry with its competitive strength, leading-edge
technologies and forward-looking strategic deployments.
With the successful acquisition of Alta Devices in 2015,
a leading U.S. thin film power company, the Group has
acquired the Gallium Arsenide (GaAs) high efficiency
flexible thin film technology, which is one of the world's
thin film solar power technologies with the highest
conversion rate. This will effectively enhance and support
the development paths of the Group’s existing sillcon-
germanium (a-si/SiGe) and CIGS thin film power generation
technologies, which will help maintain the Group’s leading
position in technology within the global photovoltaic power
generation industry.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERERE

CIGS is a technology developed extensively by the
Group in recent years. With its characteristics of high
flexibility, superior weak light performance and attractive
assembling capabilities, it enables the Group to develop
a series of new products in different areas, including
Building-Integrated Photovoltaics (“BIPV"), household
power generation, flexible rooftop photovoltaic modules,
applications for automobiles, applications for electronic
products, general and specialized products. Along with
the localization and large-scale production of the CIGS
technology, the cost of thin film power generation is
expected to decrease significantly in the future, opening
a door to the successful development of extensive
applications in the market.

The thin film power generation technology industry
plays an important role in the growth and the structural
adjustment of China's economy. Among the seven
emerging industries which are considered to be of
strategic importance by the Chinese government, five of
them are related to thin film power generation. These are
new energy, energy conservation and environment, new
materials, high-end equipment and automobiles of new
energy. The technology will also benefit the development
of several dozens of related industries such as electronics,
glass and steel.

DEVELOPMENT OF THE DOWNSTREAM
BUSINESSES AND PROMOTION OF THE
MOBILE ENERGY STRATEGY

Since entering the thin film power generation industry, the
Group has been striving to become the world’'s leading
provider of turnkey production lines. The business was
extended to downstream photovoltaic power generation
in 2013, and the development of the Group’'s midstream
module production lines was established in 2014. The
Group has developed a fully integrated industry supply
chain that covers upstream, midstream and downstream
sectors, achieving a more balanced and fully integrated
business model.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EERE

The Group has been cooperating successfully with
enterprises from different industries, such as IKEA,
TESLA, Formula E, Aston Martin and Merry Garden. In
these cooperation projects, the flexible film thin power
generation technology is applied to roof-tops, automobiles,
quick-assembly power stations and garments, incorporating
thin film technologies into our common daily living.

In April 2015, the Group has rolled out its mobile energy
solutions for food trucks, caravans and coach buses,
which significantly improved the energy efficiency and
helped solve the mobile energy equation for many end-
users. Such solutions induce higher market demands, new
business models and potential creativity and vitality within
the Group’s product development arena.

In the future, the Group will launch a strategy with
products, distribution channels and branding as its key
focus. The products will be largely consumer-based,
supplemented by industrial applications. The existing
resources will be fully utilized, the consolidation of
core technological advantage will be strengthened and
efforts will be placed in the development of consumer
application products. The objective of the Group is to
focus on mobile, portable and wearable solar devices to
provide for the supply of high-efficiency and steady thin
film power generation. The Group will be committed to
the development of mobile power sources for consumer
electronic devices such as mobile phone emergency
chargers, commercially used drones and automobiles.

The development of the Group's downstream business has
brought diversified income sources. During the year, the
Group successfully sold five projects of photovoltaic grid
power stations, which contributed significantly to the profit
for the year 2014. In the future, we will be committed to
the development and sales of various downstream thin film
power generation products to further diversify our income
sources.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERERE

GOVERNMENT SUPPORT FOR
GLOBALIZATION

In recent years, the rapid development of renewable
energy challenges the traditional energy businesses as
well as the entire energy industry. With its innovative and
cross-border characteristics, renewable energy will radically
transform the traditional way of energy utilization, changing
the concept of energy consumption. The center of global
photovoltaics industry will be shifting to the emerging
markets, with China as the focal point. It is becoming
evident that leading photovoltaics enterprises in China will
bring leading photovoltaic technologies and products to
new markets around the globe.

Looking back to the year 2014, as a leader in the market
for thin film power with its advanced technologies and
dominating scale, the Group has been successfully
implementing its global development strategies. With
the completion of major technological acquisitions as
well as the thriving development of the downstream
thin film power generation business, we have been
successful in progressing towards our strategic objective
of "mobile energy”. The total market capitalization of
Hanergy Thin Film Power Group Limited is currently
reaching approximately HK$300 billion. It has become
the photovoltaics enterprise with the highest market
capitalization in the world. Our products and technologies
are becoming more widely recognized and applied in
various industries, including building services industry,
agriculture, municipal facilities and consumable electronics.
Looking forward to 2015, the global photovoltaic market
is again full of turbulence and opportunities and the
industry will continue to face competition in innovations
and corporate positioning. By leveraging on globally leading
technologies, our target is to help popularize the use of
thin film power generation, both domestically and globally.

Finally, | sincerely thank the Company’'s shareholders,
directors, strategic partners, the management team and
all of our staff. In the past year, it was all because of
your support and hard work, that the Group was able to
maintain its excellent operating performance and rapid
growth, while making great strides toward our target of
building Hanergy as the number one brand in global clean
energy, bringing satisfactory returns to the shareholders,
the customers and our cooperative partners.

HEEE BH2R

MFEABERRERLE  HEHKERTE
DERERREEELETEAZE  HalH
HERERFBEBEBEEABERIAER
MR RBABEERIANES BE2
BROCRE ZRE DO B M AT B A% O H
FEmZEE  PERAELHNEREXKEEN
RAERERI RS D ERR/KRE AR
o

CE—ZF—MF  (EREMBERA - il
BEMBRZEETLE  AEE-—BHHETEX
LM BRI - BB T BRI -
AETHERBEXGHNEDER - AL
IRl BB RER BB B 1R B - &
EBRRENETE  RESBRO=TREB
T KAERMMERSHNREE  ERM
RIS R TR  BRE - MEBGERE
HEETERTENREZRAUNER - RE
“E-hF ERARTSEHES G EK
BAF AREEDEEERANEE NN
& - LMW E Rl 2R R IRIAR R
MRS AL N FERBEEAEANTE
it - BEZFRITER o

RE AABRRMWBHARAZMRR &
= EBAERM EEEMEREI A
BE-FHRR  2RIFMADRKIZHRE
NWItE ERAKREBRBTEENKERAE
MiEERENIER  HEEREX/EIRE
BERNE —mENBEREE SRR B
EF - REMANAERHGEIOERER -

ZepERESEEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

BUSINESS MODEL

The Group has entered the solar power industry since
2009, and its principal businesses include the development
and design of turnkey production lines for the production
of thin film power generation, as well as the development
and operation of downstream thin film power generation
projects and application products.

In recent years, the Group has carried out a number of
acquisitions on thin film power generation technologies,
which include (i) Solibro’s co-evaporation technology; (ii)
MiaSolé's sputtering technology in the manufacturing
of flexible thin film modules; (iii) Global Solar Energy's
integrated battery interconnect and packaging technologies;
and (iv) Alta Devices’ high conversion rate GaAs
technology. The Group is an advocate of new technologies,
who capitalizes on a range of the world’s top thin film
power generation technologies and their synergy effects,
together with professionals from around the globe to
accelerate the development of thin film power generation,
with an aim to reduce costs.

Hanergy Global Solar Power & Applications Group
was established by the Group in 2013 to expand its
operation into the downstream business of thin film
power generation projects and application products.
Since its entrance into the downstream thin film power
generation and application products in 2013, a number
of thin film power generation station projects have been
developed in locations such as the PRC, the USA and
Africa. In addition, Hanergy Product Development Group
was established in 2014, under which eight business
units, were created. These include (i) BIPV Business Unit,
(i) Home Solar System Business Unit, (iii) Agricultural
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEETNWE I

BUSINESS MODEL (continued)

Applications Business Unit, (iv) Automobile Applications
Business Unit, (v) Electronic Applications Business Unit, (vi)
Outdoor Products Applications Business Unit, (vii) Special
Applications Business Unit and (viiij Commercial Drones
Business Unit. Efforts are made to apply flexible thin film
power generation technology in different areas such as
automobile, electronic products, outdoor products, clothing
and backpacks, drones and special products so as to put
the idea of

same time, the business in distributed power generation

“mobile power” into real applications. At the
projects is also expanded to capture China’'s market in the
coming few years, with a view to provide customized thin
film power generation BIPV system solutions for areas
including modern urban architecture, agriculture and animal
husbandry industry, and municipal transportation facilities,
and explore the huge potential of the BIPV market.

With the professional analysis provided by Hanergy Product
Development Group, the Group is able to understand the
market needs of the consumers and end-users as well as
the potential market share possibilities, which can serve as
a point of reference for the setting up of pricing, costing
and margin targets. It is expected that we will increase
our share of the photovoltaic applications business in the

future.

The Group has also launched a project of 300MW CIGS
thin film turnkey production line in Changde, Hunan in
2014 for the production of our own thin film photovoltaic
modules. With the new CIGS thin film production line, the
listed company will be able to achieve the completeness
of an entire industry chain and benefit from the synergy
effects on the production chains of different business
areas, thus enhancing the Group's competitiveness in its
businesses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded revenue of HK$9,615,028,000,
representing an increase of about 193% as compared
to HK$3,283,791,000 in 2013. Gross profit increased
to HK$5,504,648,000 for the year, representing an
increase of about 109% as compared to previous year's
HK$2,636,012,000.

The Group recorded a net profit of HK$3,307,670,000,
representing an increase of about 64% as compared to
HK$2,018,024,000 for the corresponding financial year
ended 31 December 2013. This increase was primarily
resulting from the breakthrough of downstream business
that generated from non-connected transactions and the
disposals of five subsidiaries of PV stations in 2014.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A. Change of Company Name

In order to better reflect the thin film power
generation technology that the Group specialises in
and to better reflect the current and future business
development direction of the Group more accurately,
the Company formally changed its Chinese name
from "JEREAMGEEREBR AR " to " EREREEELEE
ABBRAF" and its English name from “Hanergy Solar
Group Limited” to “Hanergy Thin Film Power Group
Limited” on 9 October 2014, and its shares will be
traded on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange under the
new stock short name of “"HANERGY TFP"” in English
and "J2BLEIREEE " in Chinese.

The addition of the words “Thin Film Power” to
the new company name not only represent a new
corporate image for the Group, but also enables
the market to better understand the Company's
operations and to distinguish the Company from other
solar crystalline silicon companies. The change of
the Company’s name will achieve a more extensive
market recognition for the future development and
strategic direction of the Company.

Bt 75 [
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEETNWE I

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

B. Increase in Shareholdings by the Controlling

Shareholder of the Company

On 2 September 2014, Hanergy Holding subscribed
for 9,000,000,000 shares pursuant to the terms of
2011 Third Subscription and Incentive Subscription.

In addition, pursuant to the terms and conditions
of convertible bonds, on 2 September 2014,
3,800,598,461 shares were issued and allotted
to GL Wind Farm Investment Limited and China
Genco Investment Limited, both of which are
wholly owned subsidiaries of Hanergy Holding,
upon full conversion of the convertible bonds. The
increase in shareholdings by Hanergy Holding further
highlights the confidence and support that the largest
shareholder recognises in the future prospects of the

Company.

ZepERESEEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

C. Delivery of Production Lines to Hanergy Holding
Group

The Group entered into two master sales contracts
with Hanergy Holding for the sale of equipment and
turnkey production lines for the manufacture of thin
film power generation modules to Hanergy Holding
in 2010 and 2011,
shows an analysis of the related purchase capacity

respectively. The table below

committed by Hanergy Holding and contract revenue

¥EOEE)
C. MEHZEREBRNLER

AEBEHEZREERSIN T —ZF
ﬂ_i——¢ﬂiﬁ@1%%éﬂ’M
FUERLIT IS E AR B BT AN
RERBELERL - Ti‘%#ﬁm?ﬁﬁ%}%
BEERERFERBEEERDERNEEY
BHREPERHE RBADHT

recognized in the Group’s financial statements:

2010 2011
Sales Sales
Contracts Contracts
=E2-2F5 —F——F
HESRE HEAR
1. Total purchase capacity as stipulated $#HEARTE THEHHE ERL 3,000MW 7,000MW
in the sales contracts
2. Purchase capacity of module BHE_Z—NF+ A 1,300MW 7,000MW
equipment and production lines =—+—H" Eﬁu 2R B
committed by Hanergy Holding as HIREBAMSEREER
at 31/12/2014 BIE B
HK$ ' mil HK$ mil
BEET H&EET
3. Total contract sum ERMEeRE 25,800 61,270
4. To the extent purchase capacity BRERLIER B AR
committed by Hanergy Holding: EERE ¢
()  Contract sum attributed to the (i) BEEGEAFIEEL 9,672 61,270
purchase capacity committed heREE
(i)  Total cumulative down payment (i) #HE_-Z—WNFE+_— 1,922 1,080
made by Hanergy Holding as at AR=+—H ' #&ix
31/12/2014 e B RETE
~NES®
(i) Contract revenue (net of VAT (i) &REWA(ENH%IEE
and relevant taxation) AR IE) R
recognized in:
Year ended 31/12/2010 HE-ZT—ZTF+=A 2,310 0
=t+—HIFE
Year ended 31/12/2011 BE_ZE——F+_H 1,446 1,009
=t+—HIFE
Year ended 31/12/2012 HE_T——_F+_H 0 2,756
=+—HItFE
Year ended 31/12/2013 HE-Z—=F+=-A 0 3,243
=+—HItFE
Year ended 31/12/2014 HE-_Z—WNF+=A 3,102 2,853
=+—HBIEFE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEETNWE I

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) E X AC e )

C. Delivery of Production Lines to Hanergy Holding C.
Group (continued)

Pursuant to the two master sales contracts,
production lines delivered by the Group to Hanergy
Holding will undergo several phases from move-
in and installation, followed by Start of Production
("SOP”) and then End of Ramping ("EOR"), before
the production lines can begin mass production.

During the year under review, the progress of
the Group's production lines delivered to Hanergy
Holding's manufacturing bases is summarized as
follows:

()  Shuangliu Base (Sichuan) Silicon-based
supplementary line and Fab 2.0 program,
Heyuan (Guangdong) Fab 2.0 Program and CIGS
supplementary line, Yucheng (Shandong) Silicon-
based supplementary line and Fab 2.0 Program,
and Shuangyashan (Heilongjiang)Silicon-based
supplementary line and Fab 2.0 Program.

Production lines were delivered and installed
to the above Hanergy Holding's manufacturing
bases. The Group is now expeditiously
finetuning the manufacturing lines.

(i)  Shuangliu Base (Sichuan) Silicon-based
supplementary line and Fab 2.0 Program, Wujin
(Jiangsu) Silicon-based supplementary line
and Fab 2.0 Program, Heyuan (Guangdong)
Silicon-based and CIGS supplementary line,
and Shuangyashan (Heilongjiang) Silicon-based
supplementary line and Fab 2.0 Program.

Production lines have successfully undergone
the SOP stage.

ZepERESEEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

D.

Entering into a 600MW BIPV Production
Line Equipment Sales Contract and a Share
Subscription Agreement with (L 5 37 3 B 7 82 R &
AR 2AT (Shangdong Macrolink New Resources
Technology Limited)

As stated in the announcement dated 27 February
2015, the Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
BEAGB IHREBR AR (Apollo Precision (Fujian)
Limited), entered into a sales contract and a
service contract with |URFTERFEEREHEER AR
(Shangdong Macrolink New Resources Technology
Limited) of a total capacity of 600MW for a total
consideration of USD660,000,000. This transaction
expanded the Group's client base, and demonstrated
higher recognition of thin film production lines by
the market and increased awareness in the Group's
products. The net proceeds from the transaction will
be used for general corporate and working capital
purposes by the Group.

In addition, in order to incentivize |LIERFERFAER
BRI BRE AT (Shangdong Macrolink New Resources
Technology Limited) to establish a long-term business
relationship with the Group, on 26 February 2015,
the Group entered into the subscription agreement
with FFEBHEE AR AT (Macrolink New Resources
Holding Company Limited), a shareholder of the [
HAMEB T RE AR 2 a5 (Shangdong Macrolink
New Resources Technology Limited), pursuant to
which, 1,500,000,000 new shares will be allotted and
issued at the subscription price of HK$3.64 per share,
representing approximately 3.60% of the existing
issued share capital of the Company as at the date
of the announcement, and approximately 3.48% of
the enlarged issued share capital of the Company
immediately after the completion. The subscription
will expand our shareholder base and introduce new
shareholders to the Group.

¥ OEEe)

D.

BIURFEBFERNEERATT L
600 JKEL (MW) BIPVAESREBHES
BRI ES- A

W —E—RAF A - ++BORAEH
- AEBEFEBREENB AR EEN
[% 48 T a% B PR &) B | L) 59 3 & Bt 3
BERBHE B R A AT S4B E 8L £ 6000k
MW RIEEERERBER - 21
& £660,000,0003E 7T - X HEEKR
TAREERPE  MERME LEHER
FESRAIUERSRAEEBERGUE
B mMEEMESHNESERIERAEE
—REEREEESD

B R AF - RSB AR L R E
BERBHEBR AR EASEEE Y REAZE
BEE R E—RAF_A-+/<BHH
N E R T R BHR B R A R E R R
FAMER IR AR AR LR E RS
NER364BIL 2 REERE LT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
D.

=

&)
El

b
|4

7

g

into a 600MW BIPV Production
Line Equipment Sales Contract and a Share
Subscription Agreement with |1 5 37 3 B 57 82 R &
AR 2AT (Shangdong Macrolink New Resources
Technology Limited) (continued)

Entering

¥ EE B fE B B R 2 A (Macrolink New Resources
Holding Company Limited) is part of 3T % Bt &
(Macrolink Group), which is principally engaged in the
business of properties, mining, petroleum, chemical
industry and finance. The Macrolink Group comprises
of over 60 subsidiaries and associates, including
certain listed companies. Based on the information
available to the Company, the Company understands
that Macrolink Group's annual operating income
amounted to approximately RMB55 billion, while its
total asset value exceeded RMB50 billion.

Progress of the Caofeidian Project

As stated in the announcement dated 27 January
2014, the Group and Hebei Caofeidian Hanergy PV
Co. Ltd., which is wholly owned by Hanergy Holding,
has entered into two equipment sales contracts and
two service contracts, in relation to the provision
of a CIGS thin film solar turnkey production line of
600MW. Up to date, substantial progress has been
made in the overall construction of the plant, with
majority of the equipment ordered and prepaid. Phase
one of the employees’ training has been completed,
in which the assembly team has returned from USA's
MiaSolé after completing the training.

BEEREERLA

¥ OEEw)

D.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

F.

Establishment of Product Development Group,
Eight Business Units and the Beijing Product
Development Center

In October 2014, Hanergy Product Development
Group (“PDG"), of which Mr. Li Hejun, the Chairman
of the Company, acted as the chairman and CEOQO,
was established to accelerate the launch of the three-
in-one strategic capabilities in respect of Hanergy's
products, brands and channels. Focusing on product
development, PDG is positioned at high-quality
and high-end products, to build up a sales channel
focusing on direct sales and supplemented by
partnership cooperation.

The PDG is headquartered in the Silicon Valley, in
the USA, where some of the world’s top engineers,
scientists and technical professionals utilizing state-
of-the-art technologies and innovative ideas converge,
with abundant research resources. The Group has
already set up production lines and a technology
research center at the PDG Centre. It is currently
establishing the Product Development Group, which
should give rise to synergies, to develop more
products suitable for public use by leveraging on the
Group's resources there, thus bringing its products to
the world by exploring the global market.

The PDG will set up eight Business Units (“BUs"),

e. (i) Building Integrated Photovoltaic (BIPV) BU,
(ii) Household Power Generation BU, (iii) Agricultural
Applications BU, (iv) Automobile Applications
BU, (v) Electronics BU, (vi) Generic Products BU,
(vii) Specialty Products BU, and (viii) Commercial
Unmanned Drones BU, as well as a product
development center in Beijing, China. The PDG is
mainly responsible for, among others, the research
of the market needs of consumers and end users,
the analysis of total demand in the markets to be
developed and prospective market share of the
Company, the identification of product development
projects and the determination of product functions,
standards, pricing, costs and gross profit indicators,
as well as responsible for the management and
implementation of product development projects,
and establishment and development of a world-class
product development team.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) E X AC e )

F. Establishment of Product Development Group, F. HRYERFEREE [y \EASZLINE
Eight Business Units and the Beijing Product BRI TR E)
Development Center (continued)

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
EREEREERBARAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

G.

Acquisition of Alta Devices Inc.

As stated in the announcement dated 27 January
2015, the Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Hanergy Hi-Tech Power (HK) Limited, acquired
the entire issued share capital of Alta Devices Inc.
from Hanergy Holding for a total consideration of
US$15,000,000.

Gallium Arsenide (GaAs) flexible
thin film solar cells technology is one of the most

Alta Devices’

advanced thin film solar cell technologies in the world.
Ilts power generation efficiency is approximately 8%
higher than that of most mono-crystalline silicon and
approximately 10% higher than that of polysilicon.
By comparing solar cells of the same size, the power
generation efficiency of a GaAs thin film solar cell
is much higher than that of a traditional flexible thin
film solar cell and is even higher under weak sunlight
condition. As certified by the U.S. National Renewable
Energy Laboratory, Alta Devices’ single-junction cell
has a power generation efficiency of 28.8%, and
double-junction cell has a power generation efficiency
of 30.8%, which are amongst the highest recorded of
power generation efficiencies for thin film solar cells
in the world.

Hanergy Holding injected a number of tangible
assets relating to the projection of GaAs thin
film cells and the intangible assets related to the
relevant patents into Alta Devices (formaly known as
Hanergy Acquisition Sub Inc.) in 2014. Such tangible
and intangible assets were acquired by Hanergy
Holding from an independent third party, which, to
the knowledge of Hanergy Holding, relying on the
relevant technology, was awarded as one of the “50
Disruptive Companies” in the world consecutively
in 2012 and 2013. This award was granted by MIT
Technology Review. All the existing assets, both
tangible and intangible, were fully injected into Alta
Devices by Hanergy Holding.

¥ OEEe)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEETNWE I

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

G. Acquisition of Alta Devices Inc. (continued)

The flexible thin film solar cells technology owned
by Alta Devices possesses significantly higher
energy production efficiency than polysilicon. Such
acquisition has laid a solid technical foundation for the
Group's development of solar-powered automobiles
and commercial unmanned aircraft systems, and the
production of mobile energy products application
development. In addition, the technology has a
much lower production cost compared to previous
similar technologies and is therefore applicable to
extensive production and applications, and due to its
superior lightness, thinness, flexibility, elasticity, high
conversion efficiency and its excellent performance
under high temperature and weak light conditions,
it can be used in any mobile, portable or wearable
products, including smart phones, electric cars and
other consumer related products. The integration of
Alta Devices' technology with the most advanced
thin film power generation technology owned by
the Group will enable the innovative ability of the
Group to advance significantly, achieving a consumer
product led focus strategy while capturing new
opportunities in the new mobile energy era in the

near future.

H. Acquisition of Global Solar

As stated in the announcement dated 9 December
2014, the Group, through its wholly owned subsidiary,
Hanergy Hi-Tech Power (HK) Limited, acquired the
entire issued capital of Global Solar Energy, Inc. from
Hanergy Holding for an aggregate consideration of

US$1.

ZepERESEEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

H.

Acquisition of Global Solar (continued)

Global Solar specializes in the production of flexible
CIGS thin film cells, and adopts the co-evaporation
technology which allows the deposition of thin film
cell layers over a 30-micron thick stainless steel
substrate with a cell conversion efficiency of up
to 15%. Global Solar also accumulated extensive
experience in the production of flexible components,
testing, the automation of production lines, the
selection of key raw materials, reliability testing and
product certification. In addition, Global Solar has
developed independently the unique integrated cell
interconnection (ICl) technology, which simplifies
the manufacturing process of the flexible component
products. Meanwhile, the ICI technology also
improves the shaping capacity of the thin film
modules for complex curved surfaces, which further
strengthens the advantages of the flexible thin film
technology of the Company in specific areas.

The technology of Global Solar significantly enhances
the competitive advantage of the Group in the
application of flexible thin film products, which will
help the Group to seize the market opportunities
of distributed power generation, in particular the
emerging markets of rooftop solar and other portable
application devices. Given that the CIGS flexible thin
film technologies of the Group are leading the future
development of advanced photovoltaic market, the
acquisition could facilitate the Group's application of
the advanced flexible thin film solar technologies of
Global Solar to capture the fast growing domestic and
global thin film solar power market.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

EREERERBEARA

Investment in relation to Construction of a
300MW Flexible CIGS Thin Film Production Line In
Changde, Hunan

As stated in the announcement dated 12 December
2014, L RBHAG KX EREER D E (Beijing Jing
Cheng Platinum Solar Power Equipment Company
Limited), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
("Beijing Jing Cheng”), entered into an agreement
and a supplemental agreement with the People's
Government of Changde City, Hunan Province
(the "Changde Government”) and The Council of
Changde Economic and Technological Development
Area (the "ETD Council”) on 8 December 2014,
pursuant to which, Beijing Jing Cheng will invest in
the construction of a 300 mega-watt ("“MW") flexible
CIGS thin film production line in the Economic
Development Zone of Changde City, Hunan Province,
the PRC.

Beijing Jing Cheng and the Changde Government
entered into formal project agreement(s) with
respect to the construction, management, leasing
and buyback of the factories for the project. It is
expected that the relevant construction work will be
completed by June 2016. The project is an important
milestone of the Group, marking that the Group has a
capability in producing thin film photovoltaic modules
on its own. With the newly established CIGS thin
film production line, the Group will achieve the full
integration of the company’s industry value chain
and give rise to synergies among the businesses of
the Group, enhancing its cost competitiveness. In
addition, producing thin film photovoltaic modules
on its own will not only reduce the overall cost
structure, but will also help the Group exercise more
effective management and control in different areas
such as research and development, production and
application, thus achieving further strategic synergies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

J.

Development in the Downstream Segment

In 2014, the Group has focused on exploring the
global downstream thin film power market. Number
of ground-mounted power stations and distributed
power generation project has been steadily
increasing, and application products have been rolled
out continuously. For ground-mounted power stations,
the Group has successfully sold 180MW of such
projects, approximately 420MW of filed projects and
300MW of proposed projects in China in 2014. For
distributed generation projects, the Group has number
of projects which are under construction or filed.
IKEA in Europe has successfully sold 2,000 household
power generation systems.

Apart from the above projects, the Group completed
its supply chain integration strategy. The Group
has been gradually developing residential product
flagship stores and direct-sales retail points in
China. The online shopping platform, hanergyshop.
com has been launched and started its operations
in 2015. Moreover, the Group aims to launch its
inaugural solar-powered vehicles in 2015. The
focus on downstream thin film power application
products further promotes the Group’s thin film
power technologies, diversifies its customer base
and sources of income, and sets up a growth target
of great potential that shall benefit the Group’s long
term development.

i Residential Thin Film Power System in
Europe’s IKEA Stores

The Group has launched the sale of the Hanergy
residential thin film power system in IKEA
stores in Britain, Netherland and Switzerland in
2014. The group is the first third party agent
supplying its own branded goods within IKEA
stores. Currently, 2,000 sets of residential thin
film power systems have been sold in Europe’s
IKEA stores. The Group plans to enter other EU
countries including Germany, Spain, Italy and
France.
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Development in the Downstream Segment

(continued)
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17MW Photovoltaic Energy Management
Contract with Guangqi Honda — Distributed
Project

The 17MW distributed photovoltaic generation
project with Guangqgi Honda as mentioned in
the interim results, which is located at Guangqi
Honda's existing factory in Zengcheng District,
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, the PRC,
was duly connected to the grid on 29 January
2015. This project is currently the largest
distributed photovoltaic power generation
project in the automobile industry in China. The
Group solved the difficulty in installing and fixing
photovoltaic modules on PVC flexible roofs
by applying its advanced thin film technology,
which occupies about 240,000 square meters
and generates an average of 19 million kWH
of electricity per annum, equivalent to that
generated from about 6,200 tons of standard
coal (equivalent calorific value), as a result of
which, approximately 2,300 tons of standard
coal are saved (equivalent calorific value) and
carbon dioxide emissions are reduced by about
17,500 tons, equivalent to planting 950,000
trees. In addition, this project can effectively
block UV, extending the life of PVC coils on the
roof, and the plant temperature can be reduced
by about 3°C due to solar panels shuttering the
roof, so that air conditioning usage is lower to
further save energy indirectly. The success of
this project is believed to be a leading model for
the photovoltaic business of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

J. Development in the Downstream Segment

(continued)

iii.

Cooperation with Tesla — Applications in
Automotive Segment

In April 2014, the Group custom-designed and
manufactured photovoltaic supercharger stations
for electric vehicles in Beijing, Shanghai and
Nanjing based on the requirements of Tesla,
an electric vehicle manufacturer in the United
States. The advanced CIGS thin film power
technology used in the stations can make the
best use of limited space to convert sunlight
over a large area into clean energy and charge
electric vehicles through the energy storage
systems in the stations.

FIA Formula E Championship — Applications
in Automotive Segment

The first grand prix race of the 2014 season
of the FIA Formula E Championship officially
commenced in Beijing Olympic Park on 13
September 2014. The Group was the “Exclusive
Solar Energy Partner of Beijing ePrix for FIA
Formula E (FIA Formula E 1t 53k M — A B3 B¢
& E R #)

race. During the period of the Beijing race, the

", providing clean energy for the

Group provided rapid deployment solar power
station systems, each of which was able to
charge seven racing cars under normal sunlight.
Therefore, only three systems were required to
provide clean energy for all 20 racing cars. This
project was a huge success. It is believed that
the Group will be able to take the opportunities
arising from the off-grid electricity market by
leveraging on the innovation in this product.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) E X AC e )

J. Development in the Downstream Segment J. THEBREBRI(Z)
(continued)

Partnership Agreement with Aston Martin
Racing — Applications in Automotive
Segment

During the year, Aston Martin Racing supported
by the Group won the first and second places of
the GTE Amateurs in the FIA World Endurance
Championship (WEC) Shanghai Station. As
the solar technology partner of Aston Martin's
racing cars, the Group, by applying its globally,
leading solar flexible thin film technologies,
implemented the highly-efficient solar wafers
with an independent intellectual property right
into Aston Martin's racing cars, which provided
part of the power, improved the performance
of racing cars, as well as incorporated green
elements into the vehicles.

Jiangsu Wujin 3MW PEMC and Zhejiang
Changxing 3MW PEMC

During the year, EREEFHEREEERABR
~7] (Hanergy Huayu New Energy Investment
Development Co. Ltd.) (“Hanergy Huayu”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, entered
into the 3BMW Photovoltaic Energy Management
Contract (“PEMC") with T & & Z e IR AR
A\ (Jiangsu Wujin Hanergy Photovoltaic Co.
Ltd) (“Jiangsu Wujin Hanergy”), andf 5 /R
HEERBIZ AR AR (Changxing Qingyuan New
Energy Development Co. Ltd.) (“Changxing New
Energy”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, entered into the 3AMW PEMC with#iT &
BE g St IR ABR A A) (Zhejiang Changxing Hanergy
Photovoltaic Co. Ltd) (“Zhejiang Changxing
Hanergy").

SEBRAR

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

BT HF 8 & T (Aston Martin) &
fElGZ — TEE

FAR - BREBEAXBMHTEST
BB BB R Bt R S R R
(WEC) — LG BIES GTE %4
HTEDE - (EAMEEST BEM
KIGRERIMEIERMN - AEEFIA
HEREXMKIGRERIEEEESE
BT - ek RS A AR
BETERE  BERBISE -
ReEBEEHERBSTEMNEER
% °

TR B 3K B (MW) R ATT R &
3HE (MW) EREEREZEE R

RER - AEEZENEQRERE
EFHERRERRARAR(NE
BEET ) EITHEERERENIRNE
PR (DTERREERE RT3
EMW) EAEEZEMBARR
5 R LR B AR AR ([ RE
eeR]) - BN I REDZEREINE
AR (AN REZERE )T 3%k
R (MW) R REEREEER -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

J. Development in the Downstream Segment

(continued)

vi.

Jiangsu Wujin 3MW PEMC and Zhejiang
Changxing 3MW PEMC (continued)

Pursuant to the terms of these two PEMCs, an
approximately 3MW grid-connected photovoltaic
generation station shall be constructed by
Hanergy Huayu on the rooftops of the existing
buildings of Jiangsu Wujin Hanergy located
in Wujin District, Changzhou City, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC, and an approximately
3MW grid-connected photovoltaic generation
station shall be constructed by Changxing
New Energy on the rooftops of the existing
buildings of Zhejiang Changxing Hanergy located
in Changxing County, Huzhou City, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC for energy saving. During
the 25-year cooperation period, Jiangsu Wujin
Hanergy and Zhejiang Changxing Hanergy
shall have the priority in consumption of the
electricity generated by these projects, and the
tariff payable to the wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Group shall be determined with reference
to the average electricity tariff chargeable by
local grid company. In addition, the ownership of
these projects, including photovoltaic generation
subsidies and incentives granted by the State
and local governments, shall belong to the
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group during
the cooperation period. These two PEMCs will
become demonstration projects of the Group's
distributed photovoltaic generation system
constructed in the PRC, taking good use of its
advance thin film photovoltaic technology and
creating greater room for the development of its
downstream power generation business, and will
also be a stable revenue stream for the Group.
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Development in the Downstream Segment

(continued)

Vii.

viii.

i

+~,;§§€

R 5

=X

400MW Solar Power Plant Project in Ghana —
Ground-Mounted Power Station

For the 400MW Solar Power Plant Project in
Ghana as mentioned in the interim results,
the land use right has been granted. The first
phase of this project, 100 MW ground-mounted
power station, is currently under financing and
in discussion with the Ghanaian authorities
regarding the purchase of electricity and
construction permit.

50MW Solar Power Plant Project in Henan —
Ground-Mounted Power Station

The 50MW Solar Power Plant Project in
Henan as referred to in the interim results.
This project is the Group’s third solar ground-
mounted power plant project in the PRC after
the projects in Qinghai and Xinjiang. The
project’'s company registration, project filing and
environmental impact assessment program has
been completed. The project’s integration into
the system solution has been reported to the
provincial power supply bureau and is listed in
the key projects list of the province.

10MW Photovoltaic Energy Management
Contract with FAW-Volkswagen — Distributed
project

The 10MW Photovoltaic Energy Management
Contract with FAW-Volkswagen — Distributed
Project as referred to in the interim results. The
component assembling procedure has begun,
and the framework construction is currently
in progress in one of the FAW Volkswagen
plants. With the success in the Guangzhou
Honda 17MW Photovoltaic Power Generation
Distributed Project, the Group is confident that
this project will be successfully accomplished.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

J. Development in the Downstream Segment
(continued)

X.

Disposal of Five Power Plants with 180MW in
Aggregate

As stated in the announcement dated 24
December 2014, the Group disposed of five
wholly-owned subsidiaries to 1t X 3 B ¥ &
EXERKEEZL(ERA %) (Beijing Hongsheng
Photovoltaic Industry Investment Fund (Limited
Partnership)) (“Beijing Hongsheng”), an
independent third party, for a total consideration
of RMB1,420,709,500. These five subsidiaries
are: (i) {@/8 28X IREEBPR A A (Fuhai Hanergy

Photovoltaic Power Generation Co., Ltd.), (ii) '
FEREKIGREHE AR QA (Hami Hanergy Solar
Power Generation Co., Ltd.), (i) & KER&ZZE

BEARSREZSE AR AR (Jimsar County Hanergy
Solar Power Generation Co., Ltd.), (iv) EFE
HEREARGREEEABR A A (Korla Hanergy Solar
Power Generation Co., Ltd.), and (v) /&85
& K563 E AR A A (Qinghai Hanergy Thin Film
Solar Power Generation Co., Ltd.). Together,
they hold 180MW of photovoltaic power station
projects, including (i) Hanergy Fuhai Phase One,
(i) Hanergy Hami Shichengzi, (iii) Hanergy Jimsar
Phase One, (iv) Hanergy Korla, and (v) Hanergy
Hainan Zhou Gonghe County Phases Two and
Three.

As a result of the disposals, which represents
a new revenue stream for the Group, the net
proceeds from the disposals shall be used as
the Group’'s general working capital for the
development of thin film photovoltaic businesses
in the future and to accelerate the development
of Group’'s downstream businesses, in order
to expand further into the PRC and overseas
markets within thin film power generation
projects. With large-scale production and
technology development in the business of thin
film power generation, and expansion into thin
film power generation projects and applications
integrating a complete industry value chain, the
Group is confident to achieve its objective in
becoming a global leader in the supply of clean
energy using its “mobile energy” strategy.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

J. Development in the Downstream Segment
(continued)

Xi.

EREERERBEARA

Hanergy Applications Full-Channel Strategies

In March 2015, Hanergy completed its supply
chain integration strategy through operating more
than 30 flagship stores and direct-sales retail
points for household solar products. Customers
can enjoy easy access of online and offline
experience, purchasing and service channels from
Hanergy stores and online shopping platforms
such as hanergyshop.com. Meanwhile, Hanergy
released over 20 residential products including
the representative thin film solar power rooftop
(i.e. rooftop thin film solar power station), offering
customers diversified clean energy solutions
and illustrating the full range of Hanergy's
technologies, products and sales channels. With
thin film solar technology, Hanergy has brought
the power of the sun to thousands of households,
creating a new-energy lifestyle.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

OUTLOOK

A.

Global Solar Energy Market Condition

Since the nineteenth century, humans have
consistently turned to the use of coal and oil as
a major energy source of industrial development.
During the past two centuries of exploration and
mining, rapid economic development has been
accompanied by the fast growth of fossil fuelled
energy consumption. At present, given that it is
impossible to continue the consumption pattern
mainly relying on fossil fuelled energy, the countries
around the world have formed the consensus of
developing clean energy. In particular, China, which
is fighting against environmental pollution, is actively
attempting to reduce its dependence on fossil fuels
and carbon dioxide emissions. According to the
statistics, there are more than 100 trillion kilowatts
of solar energy resources in the world, even if 5% of
which is developed, it would satisfy the demand of
mankind for energy. In 2014, the Institute of Industrial
Economics of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences
and Social Sciences Documentation Publishing
House jointly issued the “Industry Blue Book:
Competitiveness Report for Chinese Industries (2014)
No.4", which states that, the new energy industry
has become one of the fastest growing emerging
industries, of which the photovoltaic industry will
continue to outperform.

After a rapid growth of global photovoltaic markets
and the rise in the emerging photovoltaic markets
dominated by China in 2013, 2014 remained a crucial
year as far as the photovoltaic market as a whole
is concerned. In 2014, the worldwide photovoltaic
installations maintained a double-digit growth, as
the policy support from China and Japan was a
strong driver for the photovoltaic markets. It is worth
mentioning that a significant change took place in the
photovoltaic market territory in the world in 2014.
In particular, photovoltaic installations in China were
more than those of European countries in aggregate.
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OUTLOOK (continued)

A. Global Solar Energy Market Condition (continued)

According to IHS Research, a well-known research
company, in 2015, the worldwide photovoltaic
installations will continue to develop rapidly at a
growth rate of 16-25% and the total global photovoltaic
installations are expected to be 53-57GW. China, Japan
and the US will remain the top three markets in terms

of a single country in the world.

Figure 1: The World Photovoltaic Installation

Photovoltaic Installations — 2014 (GW)
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For the downstream solar sector, as the market
potential has been gradually reflected in distributed
photovoltaic generation segment, the Chinese
government has been more inclined to encourage
distributed photovoltaic generation in terms of its
policy. In 2014, photovoltaic grid connection capacity
in China was 10.3GW, far lower than the target
of 14GW set at the beginning of that year, mainly
due to a number of obstacles in the development
of distributed photovoltaic projects. With the
improvement of the policy environment, a possible
dramatic growth in the distributed photovoltaic
market is expected in 2015. According to independent
research and National Energy Adminstration, China's
distributed photovoltaic installations reached 2.056GW
in 2014, and were expected to grow over 140%
to BGW in 2015, and further to 7GW or above
in 2017. The Group’s thin film solar modules are
considered to be the best application technology for
distributed photovoltaic projects due to their light
weight, flexibility, superior light transmission and
other performance advantages, by which the Group
has been well positioned to seek a favorable market
position in the distributed photovoltaic sector.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DM

OUTLOOK (continued)

A. Global Solar Energy Market Condition (continued)

Figure 2: China Photovoltaic Installation
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However, 2014 remained to be a turbulent year
for most of photovoltaic module suppliers in the
world. With the support of government policies, the
acquisitions and mergers became an important part
of photovoltaic industry for the year. In particular, as
the US launched the second round of countervailing
and anti-dumping investigation against China, some
export-dependent crystalline silicon photovoltaic
enterprises in the country are facing the challenges
of a new round of trade barriers, and the general
state of loss is difficult to change in the near further.
To address this, the Chinese government has
introduced a series of policies to promote mergers
and acquisitions in photovoltaic industry, with an
aim to cut costs by restructuring and to improve the
production efficiency and capacity, so as to compete
in the worldwide photovoltaic revolution.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DN

OUTLOOK (continued) BRE#)
B. Policy Support from the Chinese Government B. WHEIBNBXXE

Since 2013, the Chinese government has introduced
a number of policies in respect of the photovoltaic
market. Upon the introduction of a series of
supportive policies such as granting of subsidies
for photovoltaic generation, project filing system,
benchmark on-grid tariff and reduction of 50%
VAT, the photovoltaic industry in China experienced
an unprecedented development growth in 2014.
Meanwhile, in the course of implementation of
centralized and distributed photovoltaic projects, a
number of difficulties in respect of grid connection,
financing, subsidies and quality control remained to
be addressed. In order to improve the implementation
environment of photovoltaic projects, the Chinese
government focused on optimizing the industry
environment and rationalized the issues in advancing
the progress of distributed photovoltaic projects,
which has paved the way for the development of
the distributed photovoltaic industry in China in the
future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

OUTLOOK (continued)

B. Policy Support from the Chinese Government

(continued)

(i)

“Fifteen New Policies” Issued by the National
Energy Administration Boosted Distributed
Photovoltaic Generation

On 2 September 2014, the National Energy
Administration issued the Circular on the
Policy in relation to Further Implementation of
Distributed Photovoltaic Generation (B8 i —
FEREDMANRNEEBEHERNBE)), which
contained Fifteen New Policies specifying the
government’'s long-term support towards the
distributed photovoltaic industry. The Fifteen
New Policies improved the development
model of distributed photovoltaic generation by
proposing an on-grid option on a full basis and
to apply the benchmark tariff for distributed
photovoltaic generation; increase power quotas
and improve the operation services of distributed
photovoltaic generation grid connection; clarify
how to settle the tariffs and pay subsidies for
the distributed photovoltaic generation and
ensure timely payment in full of the subsidies
from the government; provide innovative
financing services for distributed photovoltaic
generation by encouraging financial institutions
including banks to provide preferential loan
facilities for distributed photovoltaic projects;
improve the engineering standards and quality
management level of distributed photovoltaic
generation; and also lift distributed photovoltaic
generation up to the national strategic level,
providing the strongest support to break the
key constraints on distributed photovoltaic
generation applications.
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OUTLOOK (continued)

B. Policy Support from the Chinese Government

(continued)

(ii)

(iii)

EREERERBEARA

Further Promotion to Establish Demonstration
Areas of Distributed Photovoltaic Generation

To bring the distributed photovoltaic generation
into full view of the market in guiding social
investment, especially private capital investment,
according to relevant requirements of the
Notice on the Release of the First Batch of
Infrastructure and etc. to Encourage Social
Investments (7870 2 4 & Bt 2 5 5% e & R 2%
Bt 2R EIHEA@EAN)) issued by the National
Development and Reform Commission, the
National Energy Administration announced on
21 November 2014 the list of 30 demonstration
areas of distributed photovoltaic generation
application to be included in the first batch
of national infrastructure to encourage social
investments, and made detailed guidelines
regarding the scale of generation construction
standards, supporting policies and measures,
grid connection and investment and financing
methods for distributed photovoltaic generation
demonstration areas.

Carry out the Poverty Photovoltaic Program

In October 2014,
Administration and the Poverty Alleviation

the National Energy
Office jointly issued the Program on the
Implementation of Poverty Photovoltaic Project
KEARNERIXRKBEIRREIESTR)),

to which,

pursuant
it is planned to carry out help-the-
poor project in photovoltaic generation industry
within six years until 2020. This help-the-
poor project will address the difficulties of
absence of electricity in poor districts and the
unaffordability of low-income families in poverty.
The development method combining the poverty
photovoltaic project with household solar power
generation is expected to be a success.
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BEEENWE D

OUTLOOK (continued)

B. Policy Support from the Chinese Government
(continued)

(iv)

(v)

Improvement of the Market Environment
in which Mergers and Acquisitions of
Photovoltaic Companies Take Place

On 30 December 2014, the Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology issued the
Opinions on Further Improvement of the Market
Environment in which Mergers and Acquisitions
of Photovoltaic Companies Take Place ( B i —
FERIARBERUBATISIREMNER)), which
provided that the restructuring of photovoltaic
industry would be accelerated to facilitate the
healthy development of the industry, and that
it was expected to develop a group of key
photovoltaic companies with strong international
competitiveness by the end of 2017, which
would facilitate the formation of 15 photovoltaic
business giants.

Formulation of 2015 Photovoltaic Installation
Target

In January 2015, the Energy Administration
issued the draft Form of 2015 Annual Planned
Addition of Grid-connection Photovoltaic Power
in China (2015 F[Z 2 BI X (K F/Z 5T SIS W AR
E K )) for open comments. The nationwide grid-
connection power is planned to increase 15GW
in 2015, which will include 8GW centralized
and 7GW distributed power plants with roof
distributed plants of not less than 3.15GW.
Roof distributed photovoltaic power generation
is implemented in two modes, i.e. all power
on grid and self-sufficient power on grid. In
March 2015, the Energy Administration issued
the Notification of Energy Administration’s
Implementation planning of Photovoltaic Power
2015CE KGR M B T #2016 F S K& & &2
ZE R EB B, which lifted the annual
nationwide target of additional photovoltaic
power to 17.8GW. This not only reflects the
the Energy Administration’s confidence in the
photovoltaic industry, but also demonstrate
the determination and courage of the Chinese
government in energy saving and emission
reduction.
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OUTLOOK (continued)

B. Policy Support from the Chinese Government

(continued)

(v)

Formulation of 2015 Photovoltaic Installation
Target (continued)

The Group’s thin film photovoltaic modules
features light weight, flexibility, superior light
transmission and other performance advantages
which crystalline silicon modules do not have,
and is considered to be the best technology
roadmap for the implementation of distributed
photovoltaic generation. With strong policy
support from the Chinese government to
promote distributed photovoltaic generation, the
Group believes that it will occupy a favorable
position in the market.

C. Maintaining Leading Technology

(i)

EREERERBEARA

In order to further advance photovoltaic
technologies and the application thereof in the
market, the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology announced the Photovoltaic
l\/lanufacturing Specifications (2015 version)
(Ko IR B3 17 22 R 8 15 (2015 4F A ))) (draft)
on 12 January 2015, which requires that the
conversion efficiency of polycrystalline silicon
modules, monocrystalline silicon modules and
thin film cell modules shall not be less than
16.5%, 17.5% and 12%,
introduction of these industry specifications will

respectively. The

continue to improve the industrial structure and
eliminate those photovoltaic companies with low
efficiency and technological disadvantages;
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OUTLOOK (continued)

C.

Maintaining Leading Technology (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

The Group believes that possessing leading
technologies is the way of survival for a
company. Since the date of its establishment,
the Group has attached a significant level of
importance to R&D in technology in company
development. In recent years, the Group has
acquired state-of-the-art thin film generation
technologies all over the world, and conducted
technology integration globally. Currently,
the Group has eight R&D centers in the
USA, Sweden, Germany and China, and has
established the Product Development Group in
Silicon Valley, USA. Under the Group's strategy
to integrate global technologies and with strong
financial support, a number of top international
thin film generation scientists have broken the
limitations and exchanged with each other within
the Group, so as to develop thin film power
generation technologies with high conversion
efficiency and excellent performance on a
combined basis;

In response to huge market demand for
distributed power generation products, the
Company has successfully developed and
produced flexible thin film power generation
modules as well as curved surfaces and light-
weight modules for roof-tops with an attractive
load-bearing capacity, which are breakthroughs
in the application of distributed power generation
modules and solutions to the problems faced
by traditional photovoltaic applications. In
addition, manufacturing customized modules
with different colours, sizes, degrees of light-
transmission represents one of our core
technologies in distributed power generation
solutions. Leveraging on our advantage in thin
film technology, we can make best efforts to
provide tailor made services to the customers.
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OUTLOOK (continued) BE#)

C. Maintaining Leading Technology (continued) C.

(i) (continued)

In addition, there is great potential in the
distributed photovoltaic power generation within
the agricultural industry, and the translucent
thin film back electrode module is the only
photovoltaic module product that can satisfy the
light requirements of agricultural crops. It has
the ability to absorb only visible lights in violet,
blue and green allowing red and infrared lights
to be absorbed, which are essential components
for plant growth and satisfies the needs of plant
photosynthesis.

Looking ahead, the Company will continue
to identify advanced thin film generation
technologies and seek to add thin film power
generation experts across the world. Leveraging
on its cutting-edge thin film generation
technology, the Group will explore the home
applications market in an innovative manner.
It will also develop a series of personal thin
film photovoltaic products by taking full use of
thin film photovoltaic modules’ performance
advantages such as light weight, light
transmission and flexibility, and apply them in
daily necessities of different areas, research and
design a series of personalized thin film products
so that clean energy really can be beneficial to
people, and thin film technology goes into the
daily lives of millions of households.

D. Diversification of Income Stream D.

With the widely recognized thin film power generation
technology and the continuous development of all
business units of the Company such as downstream
products, power, energy saving and emission control,
the Group will have further diversified its sources of
income in the future.
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OUTLOOK (continued)

D.

Diversification of Income Stream (continued)

(i)

(ii)

For high-end equipment manufacturing, the
Group will continue to deliver the turnkey
production line to its customers using the thin
film generation technologies that are acquired.
In February 2015, the Group entered into a
600MW BIPV production line equipment sales
and service contract with LR ¥FERBFRERRIEL
BRA7F (Shangdong Macrolink New Resources
Technology Limited), an independent third party,
for the consideration of USD660,000,000. It aims
to deliver production lines to other independent
third party customers in the near future to
promote thin film generation technology
applications around the world;

Regarding distributed photovoltaic generation
and building integrated photovoltaic (BIPV),
the Chinese government adopted the policy to
subsidize photovoltaic generation projects with
all power and self-sufficient power on grid. In
the next few years, following the market and
in compliance with the policies, the Group will
accelerate penetrating the Chinese market to
provide customized thin film generation building-
integrated system solutions for, among others,
modern urban buildings, agricultural and animal
husbandry industry and municipal transport
infrastructure, which will become an additional
major driver for the Group’s revenue;
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OUTLOOK (continued) BE &)
D. Diversification of Income Stream (continued) D. WAREZTAL(Z)
(i) In respect of photovoltaic power plants, the (i) EHRBWFE  —E—NFERE

Group disposed of five photovoltaic power
plants in China for a consideration of RMB1.42
billion in 2014, producing a net gain of
approximately RMB765,860,000. In 2014, the
Group has commenced the pre-constriction
of 400MW solar power plant in Ghana, Africa,
and 50MW in Henan successively. In the next
few years, a number of power plant projects
will be completed and connected to the grid,
upon which the Group will have diversified and
acquired stable sources of income either as a
power plant operator, or realise its gains via
disposals thereof;

In addition, the Group will vigorously develop
and expand in the photovoltaic home
applications market using the state-of-the-art
thin film generation technologies, and market
a series of consumer related photovoltaic
products to expand its product lines and sources
of income. On 29 October 2014, the Group
established the Product Development Group,
which is headquartered in Silicon Valley, and its
eight Business Units have committed to applying
the flexible thin film generation technology in,
among others, automobiles, electronic products,
outdoor products, clothing and backpacks,
unmanned aircrafts and specialty products,
forming the concept of mobile energy. The
proportion of photovoltaic applications business
is expected to reach over 50% in 3 to 5 years;
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OUTLOOK (continued)

E.

Promoting the Implementation of the Mobile
Energy Strategy

The Group will vigorously promote the implementation
of the strategy of “mobile energy” in the future.
“Mobile energy” is a concept first raised by the
Group with respect to global coverage, and is a
strategic acknowledgment of the global energy trend.
It is based on the mobile distributed generation
technology to supply energy on a movable, round-the-
clock and a highly efficient basis by the combination
of storage, control, information and communication
technologies. With the popularity of mobile Internet,
mobile electronic devices have become an essential
part of people’s lives. In addition, with the decreasing
reliance on traditional fossil fuelled energy reserves
and increasing environmental pressures, long-term
development will rise in the electric vehicle industry,
resulting in huge demand for mobile energy supplies.
The solar thin film generation technology with mobile,
intelligent and networked features will provide the best
solutions in the mobile energy era, and will facilitate an
advance in the strategic emerging industries, including
new energy, new energy vehicles, new materials,
high-end equipment manufacturing and energy
conservation, generating a new growth point of the
Chinese economy under the “new normal conditions”.

The thin film generation technology brings mankind
into an era of mobile energy in the not too distant
future. Featuring with flexibility, light weight, superior
light transmission, color adjustability and elasticity, the
thin film power generation technology can be widely
used in various areas, including distributed generation,
mobile electronic products, wearable devices, solar
powered vehicles, solar unmanned drones and
satellites. Among which, fully solar powered vehicles
will become popular in the market, and becoming one
of the major drivers to advance the mobile energy
strategy. Currently, the Group has been cooperating
with three foreign and two domestic automobile design
entities in relation to the joint development of solar
powered vehicles, aiming to introduce the products
during 2015.

Moreover, due to the continuously improving
conversion efficiency of thin film photovoltaic modules
and the further development of flexible thin film
products, the demand of portable and wearable solar
retail products will see a revolutionary surge in the

new future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DN

OUTLOOK (continued)

E.

EREERERBEARA

Promoting the Implementation of the Mobile
Energy Strategy (continued)

Since 2013, Hanergy has consistently integrated thin
film generation technologies globally, by acquiring
Solibro in Germany, MiaSolé, Global Solar Energy and
Alta Devices in the USA, it has gradually acquired
the world’s top CIGS and GaAs thin film generation
technologies, which has paved the way for Hanergy
to fully step into the development of mobile energy
product applications.

The mobile energy is a revolution in respect of energy
utilization, by which the energy is to be supplied
anytime anywhere through thin film solar products,
achieving a supply of energy anywhere. The concept
of “mobile energy” promoted by Hanergy is more
than a concept or an idea, it is a strategy that is
currently being implemented. Hanergy Thin Film
Power Group Limited is indeed the vanguard of this
revolution in energy utilisation, which is no less than
the revolution in internet.

Globalization

In the recent two years, the rapid development of
renewable energy challenges the traditional energy
businesses as well as the entire energy industry.
With its innovative and cross-boundary characteristics,
renewable energy radically transforms the utilization
of traditional energy in mankind, changing the concept
of energy utilization. With the continued shifting of
the global photovoltaics industry to the emerging
countries in Asia with China as the center, it has
become a trend that leading photovoltaics enterprises
in China will promote quality technologies and
products to places around the world.

As a leader in the arena of thin film photovoltaics
with its advanced technology and dominating scale,
the Group has been implementing its globalized
development strategies. With its ten regional
companies around the globe, the Group will fully
explore the opportunities in photovoltaics in the
world. Leverage on the Group's leading thin film
technologies, the Group is committed to leading
the global thin film power generation industry in
contributing to the popularity of mobile energy in the
coming future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group have interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings of HK$1,118,859,000
(2013 restated: HK$221,996,000) while the cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately HK$3,033,819,000
(2013 restated: approximately HK$1,367,836,000).

Gearing ratio (total debts (exclude convertible bonds, tax
payables and deferred tax liabilities) over shareholders’
equity as at 31 December 2014 was 0.14% (2013: 0.91%).

TREASURY POLICIES AND EXCHANGE &
OTHER EXPOSURES

The Group's monetary transactions and deposits continued
to be in the form of US dollars, Renminbi and HK dollars.
The Group expected that the exposure to exchange rates
fluctuation was not significant and therefore had not
engaged in any hedging activities.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’'s subsidiary has
charged assets as security for the bank borrowings. The
details is set out in note 29 Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings (2013: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEETNWE I

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, information on
sales and purchases relating to the major customers and
suppliers is summarized as follows:

FERFRHEES

BE-T-MET-A=t-ALEE B
%£K§ﬁ&mmﬁ2ﬁ%&%%éﬂwu
m -

2014 2013
=Z—-NF —zF =

Sales (Percentage over total sales)

The largest customer BEREF
Five largest customers AREF

Purchases (Percentage over total

purchases)
The largest supplier SARMER
Five largest suppliers AR FER

At 31 December 2014, Hanergy Holding and its affiliates
(collectively “"Hanergy Affiliates”) was the Group's
largest customer. All transactions between the Group
and the customer concerned were carried out on normal

commercial terms.

Other than as mentioned above, none of the directors of
the Company (the “Director”), their associates, or any
shareholder which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had
a beneficial interest in any of the Group’'s five largest
customers or five largest suppliers for the year ended 31
December 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

PERSONNEL

The number of employees of the Group as at 31 December
2014 was approximately 2,033 (2013: 785) of whom 395
(2013: 201) were office administration staff.

Remuneration of employees and directors are determined
according to individual performance and the prevailing
trends in different areas and reviewed on an annual basis.
The Group has also contributed mandatory provident fund,
retirement funds and provided medical insurance to its
employees.

Bonuses and options are awarded based on individual
performance and overall Group performance, and are
made to certain core employees at key positions with
contribution to the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual
report together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. During the year under review, the Group’s
revenue and operating profit were derived principally from
the manufacture of equipment and turnkey production
lines for the manufacture of both amorphous silicon based
CIGS thin film solar photovoltaic modules and sale of solar
power stations and rooftop power stations.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of operating segment information of the Group
during the year are set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 and the state of the Group's affairs as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 111 to 298.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

By a special resolution passed on 18 August 2014, the
English name of the Company was changed from “Hanergy
Solar Group Limited” to “Hanergy Thin Film Power Group
Limited” and the Chinese secondary name of the Company
was changed from "EREEANIGEEREEBRAR " to " EREE
ZEEBARRN

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend to declare a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$0.015).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND
CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To ascertain the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM to be held on Wednesday, 20 May 2015, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 18 May 2015 to Wednesday, 20 May 2015 (both
dates inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the AGM, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 15 May
2015.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company's Convertible
Bonds, share capital and share options during the year are
set out in notes 30, 33 and 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities
for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND BEXZREERERS

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with the reporting and announcement R FMHAE4AZTIE N2 AL AR
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the & @ "REERERNETUTEERS

Group had entered the following connected transactions
during the year:

()  Acquisition of Hanergy UK (1)

On 9 February 2014, Hanergy Solar PV Application
UK Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company), Hanergy Global Investment and
Sales Pte. Limited (a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of Hanergy Holding) and Hanergy Holding Group
Limited (as warrantor) entered into the Agreement,
pursuant to which, Hanergy Global Investment and
Sales Pte. Limited agreed to sell and Hanergy Solar
PV Application UK Limited agreed to purchase (i) the
Sale Share, being the entire issued share capital in
Hanergy UK Solar Limited (a company incorporated
in England and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of Hanergy); and (ii) the Shareholder Loan of Hanergy
UK Limited, at the Consideration of HK$1 upon
and subject to the terms and conditions of the
Agreement.

The details of the transaction were set out in an
announcement dated 10 February 2014.

(I)  Acquisition of MiaSolé Production Line and Certain  (lIl)
Furniture and Fixtures

(A) MiaSolé Production Line Agreement

On 25 February 2014, MiaSolé Hi-Tech, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as
buyer entered into the MiaSolé Production Line
Agreement with Hanergy (America), a subsidiary
of Hanergy Holding, as seller for the acquisition
of the Purchased Assets for a consideration of
US$15,200,000 in cash.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(I1) Acquisition of MiaSolé Production Line and Certain
Furniture and Fixtures (continued)

(B) Europe Agreement

On 25 February 2014, Hanergy Global Solar
Power Group (Europe), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, as buyer entered
into the Europe Agreement with Europe China
Power, a subsidiary of Hanergy Holding, as
seller for the acquisition of certain furniture and
fixtures for a consideration of EUR63,747.02 in
cash.

(C) America Agreement

On 25 February 2014, Hanergy USA Solar
Solution, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, as buyer entered into the America
Agreement with Hanergy Holding America Inc.,
a subsidiary of Hanergy Holding, as seller for the
acquisition of certain furniture and fixtures for a
consideration of US$262,326.56 in cash.

The details of the transactions were set out in
an announcement dated 26 February 2014.

(111 Assignment and Assumption of Lease

On 17 March 2014, MiaSolé Hi-Tech, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into the
Agreement with MiaSolé, a subsidiary of Hanergy
Holding and acknowledged by the Landlord, an
Independent Third Party in relation to, among others,
the assignment and assumption of the Lease by
MiaSolé Hi-Tech. There is no consideration payable by
MiaSolé Hi-Tech to MiaSolé for such assignment of
the Lease under the Agreement. The monthly rental
payable by MiaSolé Hi-Tech to the Landlord under
the Lease shall range from US$138,365 per month
to US$155,731 per month throughout the remaining
term of the Lease.

The details of the transaction were set out in an
announcement dated 18 March 2014.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND BEXZRFERERS (&)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(IV) Acquisition of MiaSolé’s Assets and Assignment (IV) Ui MiaSolée EEREZRAIERY

and Assumption of Lease

On 17 July 2014, (i) MiaSolé Hi-Tech, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, as buyer entered into
the Agreement with Hanergy (America), a subsidiary
of Hanergy Holding, as seller for the acquisition of
the Purchased Assets from Hanergy (America) for an
aggregate Purchase Price of US$4,000,000; and (ii)
MiaSolé Hi-Tech entered into the Lease Assignment
with MiaSolé, a subsidiary of Hanergy Holding, for the
assignment and assumption of the Lease by MiaSolé
Hi-Tech.

The details of the transactions were set out in an
announcement dated 17 July 2014.

(V) Jiangsu Wujin 3MW Photovoltaic Energy (V)
Management Contract and Zhejiang Changxing
3MW Photovoltaic Energy Management Contract

On 13 August 2014, Hanergy Huayu, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Woujin
PEMC with Jiangsu Wujin Hanergy, a subsidiary of
Hanergy Holding in relation to the Wujin Project and
Changxing New Energy, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the Changxing PEMC with
Zhejiang Changxing Hanergy, a subsidiary of Hanergy
Holding in relation to the Changxing Project.

The details of the transactions were set out in an
announcement dated 13 August 2014.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

In accordance with the reporting and announcement

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the

Group had entered the following continuing connected

transactions during the year:

(1

Supplemental agreements with Sichuan Hanergy

On 17 March 2014, Fujian Apollo entered into
supplemental agreements to the original agreements

with Sichuan Hanergy. The entering into the

Supplemental Agreements constitutes a continuing

connected transaction under Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules.

Details of the Supplemental

Agreements are disclosed below:

(i)

Supplemental Tenancy Agreements

Pursuant to the terms of the three Supplemental
Tenancy Agreements, Fujian Apollo shall rent the
Office Premises, the Factory Premises and the
Staff Dormitory owned by Sichuan Hanergy for a
term of three years commencing from 17 March
2014 to 9 March 2017. The monthly rent for the
Office Premises shall be RMB19,680 per month.
The monthly rent for the Factory Premises shall
be RMB314,280 per month. The monthly rent
for the Staff Dormitory shall be RMB10,800 per
month. The monthly rent is determined after
arm’s length negotiations with reference to
the monthly rental of other similar premises in
Shuangliu County, Sichuan Province, the PRC.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

()  Supplemental agreements with Sichuan Hanergy (I)
(continued)

(ii)  Supplemental Equipment Lease Agreement

Pursuant to the terms of the Supplemental
Equipment Lease Agreement, Sichuan Hanergy
shall lease the Production Line located in the
Factory Premises with equipments associated
with the Production Line to Fujian Apollo for
a term of three year commencing from 17
March 2014 to 9 March 2017. The monthly rent
for the Production Line and the equipments
associated thereto shall be RMB1,376,986.40
per month. The monthly rent is determined after
arm’s length negotiations with reference to the
monthly rental costs of other similar equipments
used in the Production Line in the PRC.

(iii) Supplemental Technology Agreement

Pursuant to the terms of the Supplemental
Technology Agreement, Sichuan Hanergy shall
upon the request of Fujian Apollo to provide
relevant equipments, material and facilities to
allow Fujian Apollo to carry out research on thin
film solar energy technology development. In
particular, Sichuan Hanergy shall upon request
of Fujian Apollo to provide PECVD furnaces
for research to be conducted by Fujian Apollo.
The term of the Supplemental Technology
Agreement shall commence from 17 March 2014
to 9 March 2017. The consideration payable
by Fujian Apollo to Sichuan Hanergy shall be
at RMB12,000 per PECVD furnace. Assuming
that the maximum number of PECVD furnaces
to be utilised by Fujian Apollo shall be 2,600,
the maximum aggregate consideration payable
by Fujian Apollo to Sichuan Hanergy under the
Supplemental Technology Agreement shall be
RMB31,200,000. The consideration payable by
Fujian Apollo to Sichuan Hanergy is determined
after arm’s length negotiations with reference to
the costs and expenses to be borne by Sichuan
Hanergy in respect of each PECVD furnace.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(1

(1

Supplemental agreements with Sichuan Hanergy
(continued)

(iii) Supplemental Technology Agreement
(continued)

Based on the monthly rental payment under
the Supplemental Tenancy Agreements and
Supplemental Equipment Lease Agreement
and the maximum anticipated consideration
payable under the Supplemental Technology
Agreement, the maximum aggregate annual
amount payable by the Group under the
Supplemental Agreements will be approximately
RMB51,860,952.

The details of the above transactions from (i) to
(iii) were set out in an announcement dated 18
March 2014.

Sales of Spare Parts

On 2 April 2014, Fujian Apollo entered into a Spare
Parts Sales Agreement with Hanergy for the sales of
Spare Parts by Fujian Apollo to Hanergy (including any
of its subsidiaries). Pursuant to the Spare Parts Sales
Agreement, Hanergy has agreed to purchase from
Fujian Apollo, and Fujian Apollo has agreed to sell to
Hanergy (including any of its subsidiaries), the Spare
Parts.

The selling price and payment terms for the sales of
Spare Parts are to be separately negotiated for each
Purchase Order by Fujian Apollo and Hanergy. The
selling price and payment terms will be arrived at
after arm’s length negotiation between Fujian Apollo
and Hanergy.

Pursuant to the Spare Parts Sales Agreement, the
price of the Spare Parts cannot be higher than the
prevailing market price of spare parts.

Pursuant to the Spare Parts Sales Agreement, the
total consideration for the sales of Spare Parts
by Fujian Apollo to Hanergy (including any of its
subsidiaries) for each of the three financial years
ended 31 December 2014, 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2016 shall not exceed RMB60 million,
RMB120 million and RMB120 million respectively
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(continued)

(1

(1)

(V)

EEEREEEEBRLA

Sales of Spare Parts (continued)

The Spare Parts Sales Agreement shall be effective
from the date on which the Spare Parts Sales
Agreement is signed and sealed by both parties up to
31 December 2016 (both dates inclusive), after which
it may be renewed on mutual agreement subject to
compliance with the Listing Rules requirements.

The details of the transactions were set out in an
announcement dated 3 April 2014.

Charter Flights Agreement

On 22 July 2014, Beijing Hanergy, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a Charter
Flight Agreement with Hanergy Civil Aviation
Company Limited (“Hanergy Aviation”), pursuant to
which, Hanergy Aviation agreed to provide charter
flights and related services to Beijing Hanergy for
a term of three years from 23 July 2014 to 22 July
2017 (both dates inclusive).

The details of the transactions were set out in an
announcement dated 23 July 2014.

Transfer of Assets and Leases and Operational
Support

On 29 October 2014, Solibro Hi-Tech, a subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the Solibro Cooperation
Agreement with Solibro, a subsidiary of Hanergy
Holding, pursuant to which (i) Solibro will lease
certain office space to Solibro HiTech; (ii) Solibro will
provide certain operational support to Solibro Hi-Tech;
(iii) Solibro will sell certain IT hardware and CIGS
machinery to Solibro Hi-Tech; (iv) Solibro Hi-Tech
will provide certain operational support to Solibro; (v)
Solibro Hi-Tech will sell certain machinery to Solibro;
and (vi) Solibro Hi-Tech will lease certain equipment
to Solibro.

Pursuant to the terms of the Solibro Cooperation
Agreement, Solibro leases to Solibro HiTech 1,600 sq.
m. of office space with 50 parking lots.

The lease shall run until 31 December 2015. The
monthly rent for the lease with applicable VAT shall
be EUR19,649.51 in total and the amount of the
annual rent for the lease shall be EUR235,794.12.

HERZIRFGEBRERS (&)

(1

(1

(V)

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

HERT(E)

BIFHEARKHETRERITHEA
AMEEZERREN  BEE_T—KRF
tT-_A=+T—R(BHEEMA)  H&
ARE ETRARELE S HEER -

EERSZ HEHNANA -2 —NF
P = N

B E

RZEBE—NE+L+A-+=—H  AQFZ
BB AR R EERE A ST
BRAB(CEEMZE DI B
EREMZE R E AL FOE RE R B M K
RS H-_ZT—UF+LA-+=Hi
E-F—tFt+tA-+-BIH(BEB
EmMA) -

BRRXZGZHRENBHRA-E—1F
TAZ+=B2Z M -

BREERBEREESER

RNZE—NE+A=-+hHB " KAFZ
Bf B A B Solibro Hi-Tech £ 2 A 42 %
2 [ 8 2 B Solibro &7 37 Solibro & 1E
% o B () Solibro S HEERETHAE
72 ¥ Solibro Hi-Tech : (ii) Solibro#
IRMEE T EERIE F Solibro Hi-Tech :
(i) Solibro# H&#xH T EME H1E M4
K CIGS:& 5 F Solibro Hi-Tech : (iv)
Solibro Hi-Tech gt & T & & &
F Solibro ¢ (v) Solibro Hi-Tech L&
= T#22F Solibro + X (vi) Solibro Hi-
Tech &% T &% T Solibro ©

1R 1% Solibro & 1E 1 3% 2 153K + Solibro
BHEEE1,600F KA EZE
- AKX B0 {E{FE L F Solibro Hi-Teh °

Mgz " ZT—AF+_A=+—
Bit- &z &N LEEREE
AL A19.64951B T FHEEA
235,794.12 BT °



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE
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(continued)

(IV) Transfer of Assets and Leases and Operational
Support (continued)

The maximum annual fee for the lease shall not
exceed (i) EUR40,000 for the financial year ended
31 December 2014, (ii) EUR240,000 for the financial
year ending 31 December 2015, and (iii) EUR260,000
for the financial year ending 31 December 2016. The
amount of the monthly rent was determined after
arm’s length negotiations between the parties with
reference to the monthly rent of similar properties in
the area.

Pursuant to the Solibro Cooperation Agreement,
Solibro agrees to provide to Solibro Hi-Tech certain
operational support (“Solibro Operational Support”)
in IT services, laboratory and lab equipment use and
testing, sales support, telecommunication services,
payroll services and other support services. The
Solibro Operational Support shall run for a maximum
term until 31 December 2016.

The maximum annual fee for the Solibro Operational
Support with applicable VAT shall not exceed
(i) EUR107,059.88 for the financial year ended
31 December 2014, (ii) EUR898,205.16 for the
financial year ending 31 December 2015, and (iii)
EUR898,205.16 for the financial year ending 31
December 2016.

Pursuant to the Solibro Cooperation Agreement,
Solibro will dispose of the Sold Hardware to Solibro
Hi-Tech for a consideration of EUR904,184.18, which
shall be settled in cash by Solibro Hi-Tech.

Pursuant to the Solibro Cooperation Agreement,
Solibro Hi-Tech agrees to provide certain operational
support to Solibro for IT services and production
quality enhancement support, product management
services and troubleshooting services (“Hi-Tech
Operational Support”).
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(IV) Transfer of Assets and Leases and Operational

(V)
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Support (continued)

The Hi-Tech Operational Support shall run for
a maximum term until 31 December 2016. The
maximum annual fee for the Hi-Tech Operational
Support with applicable VAT shall not exceed
(i) EUR248,228.04 for the financial year ended
31 December 2014, (ii) EUR2,040,900 for the
financial year ending 31 December 2015, and (iii)
EUR2,040,900 for the financial year ending 31
December 2016.

Pursuant to the Solibro Cooperation Agreement,
Solibro Hi-Tech will sell the Prototype to Solibro
and install the Prototype for a cash consideration of
EURb,542,370.26.

Pursuant to the Solibro Cooperation Agreement,
Solibro HiTech shall lease the Leased Object to
Solibro at a monthly leasing rate of EUR67,989.44.
The lease of Leased Objects shall run for a maximum
term until 31 December 2016. The maximum leasing
rate for the lease with applicable VAT shall not
exceed (i) EUR105,400.63 for the financial year ended
31 December 2014, (i) EUR816,000 for the financial
year ending 31 December 2015, and (iii) EUR816,000
for the financial year ending 31 December 2016.

The details of the transactions were set out in an
announcement dated 30 Ocotober 2014.

Engineering Trial Run Agreement

On 28 November 2014, Solibro Hi-Tech, entered into
the Engineering Trial Run Agreement with Solibro,
pursuant to which Solibro shall provide production
services to and conduct manufacturing test runs on
Solibro’s production lines, upon orders with specific
technological parameters provided by Solibro Hi-Tech,
to support the settings and applications in the future
production process of Solibro Hi-Tech.

Pursuant to the Engineering Trial Run Agreement, it
is envisaged that Solibro shall provide approximately
4,000 substrates/modules for full engineering trial
run each month. The parties agreed that Solibro Hi-
Tech shall make monthly instalments of EUR511,800
plus applicable VAT on the first working day of each
calendar month.
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(continued)

(V)

(V)

Engineering Trial Run Agreement (continued)

The maximum annual fees payable by Solibro under
the Engineering Trial Run Agreement with applicable
VAT shall not exceed EUR7,308,480 for each of the
financial years ending 31 December 2015 and 2016.

The details of the transactions were set out in an
announcement dated 28 November 2014.

Purchase of Photovoltaic (“PV"”) Modules
Master Supply Agreement

On 11 April 2012, the Company entered into a Master
Supply Agreement with Hanergy Holding to purchase
the PV modules for the Group's photovoltaic power
generation projects. It is intended that a number of
solar energy plants with power generation capacity
reaching 1.5 GW will be constructed by the Group
prior to the end of the financial year 2014. Pursuant
to the Master Supply Agreement, Hanergy Holding
has agreed to supply solar energy panels to the
Group at the selling price of not more than US$1 per
W or not more than the prevailing market price of PV
module, whichever is lower.

The details of the transaction regarding Master
Supply Agreement and the Annual Caps were set
out in an announcement dated 11 April 2012 and
the circular dated 18 May 2012 respectively, while
the resolution relating to the transactions was duly
passed by independent Shareholders by way of poll
as an ordinary resolution at a special general meeting
of the Company (“SGM") held on 4 June 2012.

Subcontracts

In 2014, the purchase subcontracts that entered
into in 2013 with a total capacity of 459.4 MW
photovoltaic modules were terminated. During 2014,
the Company’'s subsidiaries also entered into several
new photovoltaic modules purchase subcontracts
with Hanergy Affiliates with a total capacity of 558
MW. A total of 28.8 MW photovoltaic modules had
been delivered by Hanergy Affiliates in 2014. Details
in photovoltaic modules purchase during the year are
set out on pages 212 and 213.
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(continued)

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
had reviewed the above continuing connected transactions
[, I, 1, IV, V and VI, and confirmed the transactions had
been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

(2)  either on normal commercial terms or, if there were
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they were on normal commercial terms, on
terms no less favourable to the Company than terms
available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
them on terms that were fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company's auditors, were engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagments 3000 Assurance Engagments Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and
with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter
has been provided by the Company to the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.
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SHARE OPTION

(1

(1

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the terms of the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 28 August 2007 (the
“Share Option Scheme”), the Company may grant
option to (i) any director, employee or consultant of
the Group or a company in which the Group holds
an equity interest or a subsidiary of such company
("Affiliate”); or (ii) any discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects include any director, employee
or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate; or (iii)
a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee or consultant of the Group or an Affiliate;
(iv) any customer, supplier or adviser whose service
to the Group or business with the Group contributes
or is expected to contribute to the business or
operation of the Group as may be determined by
the Directors from time to time to subscribe for the
shares of the Company.

Share Option Scheme
Principal terms of Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme is set up for the purpose
of attracting and retaining quality personnel and other
persons and providing incentive to them to contribute
to the business and operation of the Group. To this
end, the Directors may specify the minimum period,
if any, for which an option must be held or the
performance targets, if any, that must be achieved
before the option can be exercised.

Share options may be granted without any initial
payment for the share options at an exercise price
(subject to adjustments as provided therein) equal
to the highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares;
(ii) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the
grant of the share option; and (iii) the average closing
price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant of the
share option.
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Share Option Scheme (continued)
Principal terms of Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of the Company shall not exceed
10% of the share capital of the Company in issue
on 28 August 2007, the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme, unless a refresh approval of
the shareholders is obtained. At a special general
meeting of the Company held on 11 June 2010,
the shareholders of the Company have approved
to refresh the 10% limit. As at the date of this
annual report, the total number of shares available
for issue upon the exercise of all options granted
or to be granted under the Share Option Scheme is
461,224,947 (representing 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of passing the
resolution to refresh the 10% limit).

The maximum number of the shares (issued and to
be issued) in respect of which share options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme to any one
grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the share capital of the Company in issue on the
last date of such 12-month period unless approval of
the shareholders of the Company has been obtained
in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Share Option Scheme was approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 28 August 2007
and has a life of 10 years until 27 August 2017. The
exercise period of an option granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall not be more than ten years
from its date of grant and may include the minimum
period, if any, for which such option must be held
before it can be exercised.

During the year, 68,300,000 share options were
granted by the Company, 5,200,000 share options
were cancelled.
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SHARE OPTION (continued)

(1

(1

Share Option Scheme (continued)
Principal terms of Share Option Scheme (continued)

Details of the share options outstanding and
movements under the Share Option Scheme of the
Company during the year are as follows:
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Other Options

The Company has also granted other options to

certain consultants upon completion of acquisition
of Apollo Precision Ltd. and its subsidiaries (“Solar
Business”) in November 2009 as incentive of their

contribution to the development of Solar Business

(the “Other Options 1”). The Other Options | were
not granted under the Share Option Scheme.

QOutstanding Exercised/  Outstanding
as at Granted cancelled/ as at
Exercise 1 January during lapsed during 31 December
Name Date of grant Price Exercise Period 2014 the year the year 2014
R=%-Df R=%-B%
-B-H FREfE/ TZAZt-R
&8 RHAH ke 18 BR{TE FREH /5% HAITE
Director £%
Dr. Lam Yat Ming 27 Qctober 2014 HK$1.716% T 27 October 2014 — - 2,000,000 — 2,000,000
Eddie 31 October 2019
H—IEET ZE-mE ZZ-METAZTAZ
+A-te8 ZB-NETAZT-R
Other employees 27 October 2014 HK$1.716;8 27 October 2014 — — 66,300,000 5,200,000 61,100,000
(in aggregate) 31 October 2019
EftEE(53) ZT-mE ZR-METAZTEEE
TA-ttH ZZ-NETAZT-A
Total 68,300,000 5,200,000) 63,100,000
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Other Options (continued)
Principal terms of the Other Options |

The Other Options | entitled the consultants to
subscribe for an aggregate of 320,000,000 shares of
the Company as adjusted after the share subdivision
effective from 5 November 2009 at an exercise price
of HK$0.25 after the share subdivision effective from
5 November 2009 for a period of 5 years from the
date of granting of the Other Options |. The vesting
period was 1 year from the date of grant. Details of
the Other Options | are set out in the circular dated
29 October 2009.

Principal terms of the Other Options Il

On 18 September 2011,
the 2011 Option Agreements with each of Hanergy

the Company entered into

Holding and Apollo Management respectively
pursuant to which the Company conditionally
agreed to grant the 2011 Options to Hanergy
Holding (or its designated individuals or entities)
and Apollo Management (the “Other Options Il") .
On 16 December 2011 (the “Date of Grant”),

fulfilment of the conditions precedent to each of the

after

2011 Options Agreements, the Company had granted
the Other Options Il to Hanergy Option Limited
(Hanergy Holding's designated entities) and Apollo
Management. The Other Options Il were not granted
under the Share Option Scheme.

The Other Options Il entitled Hanergy Option Limited
(Hanergy Holding's designated entities) and Apollo
Management to subscribe for an aggregate of 1.3
billion shares and 100 million shares of the Company
at an exercise price of HK$0.1664 respectively. They
will lapse upon the fifth anniversary of the Date of
Grant.

B

(1

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

Hivfg i (2)
AtBRE 2T 7

HAab ERRAE 0 T RARI MR A R E Ab BB
BRFE I A BT S FHIM - 1R17(E
Bo2B L(ER=_EZNF+— AR
ARMIFEEBEELAE)REESH
320,000,000 & A~ &) ffn (B 10 #7480 B
ZEThF+—ARARARBERE) - F
BHHEL BBE A —F At
REIZHBHRAHE-_ZSTNF+
RAZ+NBZiBE

BttiBRE I 2 EF*

RZZE——FAA+NB  ARAD
PIEERERLHAGEREES BRI

ST ERBEBE K AA
A% {6 b 40 ) K B IR (S B

ZATHEBRB)RAGEREERTE-F
——FERE(HEMGEBREN]) - X
f—;——i‘l—_ﬂ‘h‘_\ﬁ(fﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬂj) :
ER—T-—FERERZSELR
1% - N2 A2 M Hanergy Option
Limited CEREIERRIEE 2 H B2 ) R3S
EEERTEMBARRE - MR
WIERIEE AR AT IR L -
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Limited CEEEIEIR TG E 2 H B8 ) R 405
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

SHARE OPTION (continued)

(1

Other Options (continued)

Principal terms of the Other Options Il (continued)

For the Other Options Il granted to Hanergy Option
Limited on 16 December 2011, the exercise periods
are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Options to subscribe for 610 million shares of
the Company are exercisable during the period
commencing on the Date of Grant and ending on
the day immediately prior to the fifth anniversary
of the Date of Grant;

Options to subscribe for 310 million shares of
the Company are exercisable during the period
commencing on the first anniversary of the Date
of Grant and ending on the day immediately prior
to the fifth anniversary of the Date of Grant;

Options to subscribe for 310 million shares
of the Company are exercisable during the
period commencing on the second anniversary
of the Date of Grant and ending on the day
immediately prior to the fifth anniversary of the
Date of Grant;

Options to subscribe for 10 million shares of
the Company are exercisable during the period
commencing on the third anniversary of the Date
of Grant and ending on the day immediately prior
to the fifth anniversary of the Date of Grant; and

Options to subscribe for 60 million shares of
the Company are exercisable during the period
commencing on the fourth anniversary of the
Date of Grant and ending on the day immediately
prior to the fifth anniversary of the Date of
Grant.

BREE
Efto 8 B ()
0T e e L EAC )

WRZZE——F+_A+~BETF
Hanergy Option Limited 2 E th B5 A% 4
N2 TERT -

(1

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

ARES. 1 ERAR ARG 2B
BRI H AT E BT B A
ARSI Z A IFBRATTE

Al REESERAR R 2 Bk
BAREEES - AFEEERR
HEHREFAZ A IEBMRARTT
-3

A REESERAR RN 2Bk
RN L B HIMEF R BER
HEHABFAZ A IEHEATT
-3

Al BB 1,000 B R AR 2 B
PRiER R B B =B F R R B
B AEIRES AT 2 B IE#E AT
£ R

A] 5 6,000 B AR A 2 BB
Prig ] X B BT E R i 3 B R
B AEIRE S AT 2 B IEEE AT
& -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESEHRE

SHARE OPTION (continued)

(I) Other Options (continued)

Principal terms of the Other Options Il (continued)

For the Other Options

Il granted to Apollo

Management, the exercise periods are as follows:

From the Date
of Grant and

From the first
anniversary
of the Date
of Grant and

B

() HEABEREGE)

Rt 2 F ElfH (&)
BTG ERE  HMBEE I Z1TE

B R ¢

Exercise periods
L
From the
second  From the third

anniversary
of the Date
of Grant and

anniversary
of the Date
of Grant and

From

the fourth
anniversary
of the Date
of Grant and

ending on ending on ending on ending on ending on
the day the day the day the day the day
immediately ~ immediately  immediately ~ immediately  immediately
prior to prior to prior to prior to prior to
the fifth the fifth the fifth the fifth the fifth
anniversary of  anniversary of anniversary of anniversary of  anniversary of
the Date of the Date of the Date of the Date of the Date of
Grant Grant Grant Grant Grant Total
b HELAS HELEH mEHAH HELAS
AHEz -BERE MEFEE ZREEER mAFEE
SERLAE PERUPE PERYUPE ZERLEE  ZERLED
Name of grantees ~ ARAEZ TEFACAL H@EEFACAL DEFMZAL DEEMzAL DEFHZAL &it
Mr. Dai Frank Mingfang Dai Frank Mingfang
P 2,800,000 2,800,000 2,800,000 2,800,000 16,800,000 28,000,000
Mr. Hui Ka Wah, AREEE
Ronnie J.P. ATt 2,400,000 2,400,000 2,400,000 2,400,000 14,400,000 24,000,000
Dr. Li Yuan-min FNREL 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 7,200,000 12,000,000
Dr. Xu Xixiang Gt h 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 7,200,000 12,000,000
Dr. Shan Hongging EEfET 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 7,200,000 12,000,000
Mr. Li Guangmin ZEREE 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 3,600,000 6,000,000
Mr. Xu Xiaohua BEERE 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 3,600,000 6,000,000
Total @t 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 60,000,000 100,000,000

Details of the Other Options Il are set out in the
circular dated 14 November 2011.

EEEREEEEBRLA
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

SHARE OPTION (continued)

(1)

Other Options (continued)
Principal terms of the Other Options Il

On 6 September 2012 (after the trading hours), the
Company and Hanergy Holding entered into the
Option Agreement, pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to grant Hanergy Holding
(or such person(s) at its direction) the Options to
subscribe for an aggregate of 600,000,000 Option
Shares at the exercise price of HK$0.25 per Option
Share (the “Other Options IlI”). On 31 December
2012 (the "“Grant Date”), after fulfilment of the
conditions precedent to Option Agreement, the
Company had granted the Other Options Il to
Hanergy Investment Limited (Hanergy Holding's
designated entities). The Other Options Ill were not
granted under the Share Option Scheme. They will
lapse upon the fifth anniversary of the Grant Date.

For the Other Options Ill granted to Hanergy
Investment Limited on 31 December 2012, the
exercise periods are as follows:

() 300,000,000 Option Shares are exercisable
during the period commencing from the Grant
Date to the day immediately prior to the fifth
anniversary of the Grant Date;

(i) 150,000,000 Option Shares are exercisable
during the period commencing from the first
anniversary of the Grant Date to the day
immediately prior to the fifth anniversary of the
Grant Date; and

(ii) 150,000,000 Option Shares are exercisable
during the period commencing from the second
anniversary of the Grant Date to the day
immediately prior to the fifth anniversary of the
Grant Date.

BkEe)

(1

Hivfg i (2)
BRI 2 L EF%

RZTE—ZFhLAXNB(RSFERE) -
RABEERIERET L BRERZ - 15
it - AR EE A G R E [ E =
BR(KEFERZBEBAL)REER
ARG REBRERN25EITZ
TEERE 4 600,000,000 A% i iR 4
BH(THEEBREN) R_FT—=
FH_A=+—B(REBH])  EX
BRE &2 BRIGHR - AABIEM
Hanergy Investment Limited (GZ&EIE
BIEE s ERE) B HEMBREIN - K
ftb B AR A 111 0 3EAR R BB AR A AT &4 -
WAS A B B R B SRR -

R-ZZB-—%+-A=Z+—-BET
Hanergy Investment Limited Z H{thf&
BB ZATERT

(i) 300,000,000 M B& A% #E A% 15 A AR
FEEEEEEREAPREFR
Z BIFEIRATTE

(i) 150,000,000 F i B 1 A% 17 AT P 4%
HASR-RAFEEERRLRHE
BFR < B IEHRATE &

(i) 150,000,000 fI% & A% # % 19 A 7O #%
HHEMAFEEZREREBEHA
RAFEFTZ B IEHRAITE -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

SHARE OPTION (continued) BREE)
() Movements of Other Options () HEEREEE
Movements of the Other options granted to the BE-_T-—NE+_A=1+—HILFE
participants during the year ended 31 December 2014 AR EERDHMBREZ S
are as follows: T
Outstanding Exercised/  Outstanding
as at Granted lapsed as at
Exercise 1 January during during 31 December
Name Date of grant price Exercise period 2014 the year the year 2014
R=%-p% R=%-D%
-A-A TZA=t-H
£8 RiAH ke %8 HAITE FRRl FRBAE/ A GEid
Other Options AR E
Other Options | granted to the 25 November 2009 HK$0.25/7T 25 November 2009 2,400,000 - 2,400,000) -
consultants — 24 November 2014
RNER 2 ZZENE ZEENET-AZTRAZ
EfERE t-A=t1A Z2-BET-ACTEA
Other Options Il granted to 16 December 2011 HK$0.1664/7% 16 December 2011 88,400,000 - (16,600,000) 71,800,000
Apollo Management — 15 December 2016
RRABEREL e ZE—EtIRTREE
AnRREN tZA+7A ZT-NETZATRA
Other options II granted to 16 December 2011 HK$0.1664/E7T 16 December 2011 379,014,840 —  (222114780) 156,900,660
Hanergy Option Limited — 15 December 2016
1 Hanergy Option Limited 7z~ —5——% “E—E+-f15HE
Hithel | TZATRA ZE-NETCATER
Other options [l granted to 31 December 2012 HK$0.2577C 31 December 2012 341,600,000 - (6,478,000 335,122,000
Hanergy Investment Limited — 30 December 2017
B Hanergy Investment Limited ~E-—% “F-ZF{-f=t-RE=%
ZEMEREN TZA=1+-H —t#+-A=1H
The consideration received from issued of shares ERNEEEEETEmEITRGWE Y
upon exercise of share options is HK$41,342,000 YE(B B 41,342,000 87T ©

during the year.

Save as disclosed above, none of the grantees is a br EXFr#EEEE SN - BIEABRABERA
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder AEE - TETBABRETEREXA
of the Company or an associate (as defined in the REzBHEAT(CERR EMHREA -

Listing Rules) of any of them.

84 ERHEERTEEERAT HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the consolidated financial statements set out on
pages 115 and 116.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution to shareholders at 31 December
2014 were as below:

E3]
REEZ BERFRZ ZBERBNE 115 R
116 BiF AR B RERPEAESLBRNA -

EEZRAB ARANR_F-—OE+_-A
=t HTfﬁ"/ﬁ%Hx$Z%1ﬁﬁDT

2014 2013

—E-NmEF —FT-=F

HK$’000 HK$000

FETT FET

Contributed surplus BERAEHG 33,132 262,432

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
excess of the carrying value of the subsidiaries acquired
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in prior years and reorganisation during the year ended 31
December 2009 which, under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), is available for distribution to
the shareholders of the Company. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out
of contributed surplus if:

(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium account.

ARAZEHRHBIEBRKBINE QR ZRE
BERHARANBAEFESHITRN 2EHE
ZEBRMBE_TTAFT-_A=1+—HAL
FEANZEREHR  AARE-NAN-FFA
REDEEERT) DR T ARBIRE = A
CHHIRATER - AIARAR A EE MK
/)E%FEHQ TE H%Eﬁ%ﬂ/)ﬁ

() KR ARBTEEEIIMzAEB

35_‘7

(i) EEE A2BEEEEAmMLREGER
HEE BT AR M G EBIR 2 B8 -
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’'s bye-laws (“Bye-laws”) although there is no
statutory restriction against such rights under the laws in
Bermuda.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Details of the borrowings of the Group outstanding at 31
December 2014 and the amount of capitalised interest are
set out in note 29, note 15 and note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2014 are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five year financial summary is shown on pages 299 and
300.

BrRBERE

EEOBREAVHELBERITELITR
B ARBZARARN(TATDMA )AL ES
RALL SER 2 BE o

AEB2ME BEERRBRFAZE
BERGAMBHRERME 15 -

ERREREFE

R-ZE—NFE+_A=+—H AEBEL
ERRERFNE B ZHFBINGAYE
RERMIFE29  BIEE 15 RMIEE20 ©

B30 YN
R-B-ME+-A=+—R ARAELE

ME AR 2 FHBERR A MEHRRMT 16 -

BB E
AFE R ESHMNE 299 X 3008 -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year 2014 and up to the
date of this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Hejun (Chairman)
(appointed on 15 May 2014)

Mr. Dai Frank Mingfang
(Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(re-designated on 15 May 2014)

Dr. Feng Dianbo (Deputy Chairman)
(appointed on 15 May 2014)

Mr. Liu Min (Deputy Chairman)
(appointed on 15 May 2014)

Dr. Lam, Yat Ming Eddie
(Finance Director and Senior Vice-President)
(appointed on 15 May 2014)

Mr. Chen Li (Executive Vice-president)

Mr. Li Guangmin (Financial Controller)

Dr. Li Yuan-min (retired on 15 May 2014)

Mr. Hui Ka Wah, Ronnie J.P.
(retired on 15 May 2014)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Ms. Zhao Lan
Mr. Wang Tongbo
Professor Xu Zheng

(appointed on 15 May 2014)
Dr. Wang Wenjing

(appoinited on 13 August 2014)
Mr. Wong Wing Ho

(retired on 15 May 2014)

5=

S NERREEREEARE B E
=0T -

HITES

BB (L)

(R=ZZF—mFERAF+AHAZE)
Dai Frank Mingfang %t 4

(BIEERITEARE,)
(R=F—PFA A +AHHFE)
HEREL(FZEE)

(R-F—MFALA+HAZEE)
BIREE(FLE)
(R-F—MFLA+AHAZE)
M58+
(MBEEFRZREIEE)
(R-F—MFLA+AHAZLE)
RO (FHEFEE)
FERCE(IHRE

FPRAREBE(R-_F—FALA+AHARE)

AREBEELFHL
(R-ZF—FRHTHHRE)

BMFHATES

HEZL

TRBEE

RIEEIR
(R-ZF—MFAATHAZE)

IXEFEL
(R=—F—FA+=AZF)

mAOERE
(RZF—MFRF+HHRE)

In accordance with the Bye-law section 86(2), any director #REATIMABIESE2) & EESEE(TH
appointed by the board shall hold office until the next IREFTHEAQRA TERREFAE A
following Annual General Meeting of the Company and |F @ W& BRREZALERET  THEL
shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting, Mr. 4 - BERE+ - ZIESL 4 - SA—BEH L -
Li Hejun, Dr. Feng Dianbo, Mr. Liu Min, Dr. Lam Yat Ming #%®I#ZRELEIXHFBFTLIERREEFAE £
Eddie, Professor Xu Zheng and Dr. Wang Wenjing will HRMESERTBEEAREBRFAS LBER
retire from the office of Directors at the Annual General #{T o

Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election

at the Annual General Meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as follows:

BEECROES
RZE—NFE+-_A=1+—H AQRASE

FHAEBTRABEARRA S ETMARE
B(EERErkHEGRI(TEEZRPEK
BIDEXVED) 2Bt - RO HESFTHE
BEARERARAREES KBS GREIE
2 MRAFEZECM ERIAER &*EHJ%
FHRANME e EBETAESE
ﬁ%s&%ﬁ’]%&—rﬁﬂm%ﬂ $’Aﬁ&ﬂ§“\ﬁﬁ
ZHERBORREIIT

Number of

underlying

Shares under

derivatives

equity/share
options Percentage of
fiEIR issued share
Number of ERETZ capital
shares BERHB,/  Totalinterests EERTRE
Name of Director EEHS RHEE BREgE BHER B
(%)
Mr. Li Hejun FAELE 33,398,941,886(L) 220,000,000(L) 33,618,941,886(L) 80.75

(Note 1)
(1)

2,422,000,000(S) 2,422,000,000(S) 5.82
Mr. Dai Frank Mingfang Dai Frank Mingfang %4 8,400,000(L) 19,600,000(L) 28,0000,000(L) 0.07
Dr. Feng Dianbo BERET 46,159,000(L) — 46,159,000(L) 0.11
Mr. Liu Min AREE 47,155,000(L) - 47,155,000(L) 0.11
Dr. Lam Yat Ming Eddie H—IgET 2,000,000(L) 2,000,000(L) 0. 005
Mr. Li Guangmin TEREE 1,800,000(L) 4,200,0001(L) 6,000,000(L) 0.01

EREREEREARAR

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES (continued)

Note:

1. These shares comprise the Second Tranche of
1,473,458,688 Subscription Shares at the Subscription Price
of HK$0.12 per Subscription Share and the Third Tranche
of 1,473,458,688 Subscription Shares at the Subscription
Price of HK$0.10 per Subscription Share will be issued and
allotted pursuant to Subscription Agreement dated 20 May
2010 and the subsequent Supplementary Agreement.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none
of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company
had registered an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for the Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” in
the report of the Directors and note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements, no contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the Share Option section stated
above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

EEzROESE)
Hist -
1. ZFHEERGEERE2010F5 82085

IZE{JHﬁﬁ%iﬁ&ﬁ?éz%ﬁﬁfﬁz’;é%%u@a%*&
‘fTZ?ﬁ—ﬁtD $£1,473,458,688 % 37 5 %

1 E%HQ{%O 12/%7E&§E_HZIZD/\
1,473,458,688H§EE/L\E§H§1 - BRRBERG
0.1087T °

BrEXHBEEN RZZT—OF+ A
=tT—H ARAZEERFETHAEH
BmARQAIREAEREE ZKRD - HERNS
EJZ%%‘*‘:F'ﬁaﬂ%ﬁﬁ&ﬂ/ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ“ﬁ“ﬂ@ﬁ
B 5 R EIE 14512 352 1'“2,\T?EZ§QEH}Z%
mIORE KRB EMETAEFTETE
RS HELESFR BRI G AR F REERFT 2
WmIKE ©

EERNEXRSRzHER

Bf%%‘\iﬁiffﬁk G RFBEAERS IR
REWMKRMEIOWESI  RFEL/BXFRIE
TEJH@F'EEJ C ARRAHEAEMNE A BB ERT L
EFEHETEERAEEBEEEARAZE
EEF -

BEROIES 2L

B LR —ENPT R B E SN - RFE RMES
R N B SR E I B R B & AT 2 AE
Mz FEEFAEABEARRRHIME
A AN B B8 2 B D S B 5 M A A 25
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MANAGEMENT AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management
or administration of the whole or any substantial part of
any business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the employing company within one year
without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement scheme are shown in
note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's retirement scheme contributions charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year amounted
to approximately HK$32,599,000 (2013 restated:
HK$6,282,000).

EERBRKEER

FAL BT LR FEEABRARAZE K
EAERMARBZEAERIITHAR -

BREZEERERRBFASLBEEZEEM
BEARNAZEEMME AR LERAA
PHE-FANTRECEERERSN) MK
IEZBRIEEE -

RIREHE

AEEZRKRGEFBEHNGRS M BRRW
i£2.4 -

AEE - EFEaEaREMEE RS RTK
Z AR SR ERARET 8 2 5K 4) 4 32,599,000 78
T(ZZFE—=%57%:6,282,000/87T)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2014, having made enquiries with
the relevant persons/corporations, the interests or short
positions of such persons/corporations, other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company, in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO are as follows:

FERR

R-ZE-—WE+-_A=+—B KRABA
T/EBERERR BRRAQTDRER
5 R HIE R 336 R AFE < Bt Frac
B ARAL ZE(ARBRESERT R
BABRRIN RAR B R AR R R A
ZRERBORBIT

Number of

underlying Percentage of

shares under issued share

derivatives capital

Number of equity (%)

Name of shareholder Capacity Shares fTATABHET Total interests HERTRE

RRE® BEftE RHE ZEBRHHE ARER AR (%)

Mr. Li He Jun Interest of controlled 33,398,941,886(L) 220,000,000(L)  33,618,941,886(L) 80.75%
FAERE corporation (Note 1)
FriEslEE 2 s (H#1)

2,422,000,000(S) 2,422,000,000(S) 5.82

EREDRMEEHBMRAF  Interest of controlled 32,198,941,886(L) 220,000,000(L)  32,418,941,8861L) 77.87%
corporation (Note 1)
FriEflEE 2 s (Wit1)

2,422,000,000(S) 2,422,000,000(S) 5.82

ARTREENREBRAF  Interest of controlled 32,198,941,886(L) 220,000,000(L)  32,418,941,8861L) 77.87%
corporation (Note 1)
st EE 2 s (Wit1)

2,422,000,000(S) 2,422,000,000(S) 5.82

Hanergy Holding Beneficial owner & Interest of ~ 32,198,941,886(L) 220,000,000(L)  32,418,941,886(L) 77.87%
EaER controlled corporation (Note 1)
EaA ARFIESEE S (1)

2,422,000,000(S) 2,422,000,000(S) 5.82

ERRIENREEBRAA  Interest of controlled 32,198,941,886(L) 220,000,000(L)  32,418,941,8861(L) 77.87%
corporation (Note 1)
PRl B e (H#1)

2,422,000,000(S) 2,422,000,000(S) 5.82

Hanergy Investment Limited  Beneficial owner & Interest of ~ 21,662,024,510(L) 220,000,000(L)  21,882,024,5101(L} 52.56

controlled corporation 2,422,000,000(S) 2,422,000,000(S) 5.82
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EEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued) FERRE)
Number of
underlying Percentage of
shares under issued share
derivatives capital
Number of equity (%)
Name of shareholder Capacity Shares  {TETAERET Total interests HERTRE
BRREE ERitE RAHE ZEBRAEE ERER B (%)
Hanergy Option Limited Beneficial owner 3,002,299,603(L) 69,412,000(L)  3,071,711,603(L) 7.38
ERBAA
GL Wind Farm Investment  Beneficial owner 1,973,684, 104(L) —  1,973,684,104(L) 4.74
Limited ERBA
China Genco Investment Beneficial owner 1,917,937,219(L) —  1,917,937,219(L) 4.61
Limited ERBA 982,000,000(S) 982,000,000(S)
BIBRAMALERE  Interest of controlled 1,200,000,000(L) — 1,200,000,000() 2.88
ERERLAA corporation
FIERIAR s
TRISERRHABAF  Interest of controlled 1,200,000,000(L) 1,200,000,000(L) 2.88
corporation
FiEsEE s
ERARBBEERAA Beneficial owner 1,200,000,000(L) 1,200,000,000(L) 2.88
ERBEEA
Notes: B
L — Long positions L— &
S — Short positions S — KB
1. These shares comprise the Second Tranche of 1. ZZEHBERMEEEE2010F5H20H%5]

1,473,458,688 Subscription Shares at the Subscription Price
of HK$0.12 per Subscription Share and the Third Tranche
of 1,473,458,688 Subscription Shares at the Subscription
Price of HK$0.10 per Subscription Share will be issued and
allotted pursuant to Subscription Agreement dated 20 May

2010 and the subsequent Supplementary Agreement.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, no
other persons/corporations had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
are required to be recorded in the register required to be

kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

EEEREEEEBRLA

VZRBHHELEER 2B E T ARER

AT 2B 5 #£1,473,458,688 R B AR

m BRRAERPDIZETRE=ZHEH
1,473,458,688 I R B A% 17 -

0.1087T °

Bk EX P EEE SN

i

TRBERH
—mmFE+=A

=+—8 #EEMAL SEEEAQARK
o R AERE B P A BB RN AR RRIEE
7 MHIE IRGIF 336 RAF B 2 Bt 2 s
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the Company’s corporate governance
practices is set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”
from pages 94 to 102.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was
established in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules for the purpose of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’'s financial reporting process
and internal controls. The audit committee comprises four
independent non-executive Directors.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and with the knowledge of the Directors, as at
the date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not
less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required
under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young was appointed by the Directors to conduct
audit on the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2014. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-
appoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the board

Li Hejun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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TERERBE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is dedicated to provide effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of

the Company and its shareholders.

The Board has established the following committees to
oversee different areas of the Company’'s affairs. The
composition of the Board and the committees are given
below and their respective responsibilities are discussed
later in this report. The terms of references of these
committees adopted by the Board are published on the

Company’s website (www.hanergythinfilmpower.com).

As at 31 December 2014, the members of the Board and

the committees are as follows:

Board

Executive Directors
Mr. Li Hejun

Mr. Dai Frank Mingfang
Dr. Feng Dianbo

Mr. Liu Min

Mr. Chen Li

Dr. Lam Yat Ming Eddie
Mr. Li Guangmin

Independent Non Executive Directors
Ms. Zhao Lan

Mr. Wang Tongbo

Professor Xu Zheng

Dr. Wang Wenjing

* chairman of the committee

EREERERBEARA

Ezg

BITEE
FTAERAE
Dai Frank Mingfang %t 4
BERE L
REE
BRAO%EE
M—IEE L
TEREE

BYFHITES
HE L
TR#HEE
HILAR
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SRERARARHARIEBEEZE
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REBRZ &ENRBKE
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(www.hanergythinfilmpower.com) °

Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
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TRERBE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(continued)

The Board sets the Group's objectives and strategies
and monitors its performance. The Board also decides
on matters such as annual and interim results, major
transactions, director appointments, dividend and
accounting policies. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility of managing and overseeing the Group's
day to day operations to the Chief Executive Officer
and Executive Directors of the Company and respective
directors of principal subsidiaries of the Group. The
role of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer is
segregated.

Mr. Li Hejun was appointed as Chairman of the Company
on 15 May 2014 and Mr. Dai Frank Mingfang has been
re-designated as the Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company on 15 May 2014. The Company
has complied with Rule A.2.1 in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual.

The Company had received annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive directors as regards
their independence to the Company and based on the
contents of such confirmations, considers that each of the
independent non-executive Directors is independent to the
Company.

The company secretary of the Company assists the
Chairman in setting the agenda of board meetings and
each Director is invited to present any businesses that they
wish to discuss or propose at the meetings. All Directors
have timely access to all relevant information of the
meetings and may take professional advice if necessary.

TEERER#)

EXEERTEAKECEFERRE  TEEH
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FAELER_ZE—NFRATRERZREA
XA @) % M Dai Frank Mingfang 4t 4 %
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fERATHARE, - N2 RIS RIE L8R AT 8
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B5 - WAHEH— ARREIRE -
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AN "X VAN

JLéEEhniﬁg?

THE BOARD ==

The Board held 4 full Board Meetings for the year ended REBZE-_Z—WNE+-_A=+—HILEE "
31 December 2014. Attendances of the full Board meetings %%‘ME%TTZMX%%%%@@% o BREEE
are as follows: eHRIEBLENT

Mr. Li Hejun
(appointed on 15 May 2014)
Mr. Dai Frank Mingfang
Dr. Feng Dianbo
(appointed on 15 May 2014)
Mr. Liu Mi
(appointed on 15 May 2014)
Mr. Chen Li
Dr. Lam Yat Ming Eddie
(appointed on 15 May 2014)
Mr. Li Guangmin
Dr. Li Yuan-min
(retired on 15 May 2014)
Mr. Hui Ka Wah, Ronnie J.P.
(retired on 15 May 2014)
Ms. Zhao Lan
Mr. Wang Tongbo
Professor Xu Zheng
(appointed on 15 May 2014)
Dr. Wang Wenjing
(appointed on 13 August 2014)
Mr. Wong Wing Ho
(retired on 15 May 2014)

Under the Bye-laws, all Directors are currently required to
offer themselves for re-election by rotation at least once
every three years. All Directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy should be subject to election at the first general
meeting after their appointment.

EEEREEEEBRLA

BUERE
(R-F—mMER A+ HAZE)
Dai Frank Mingfang £ 4
BEREL
(R=—F—mERA+HEAZHE)
RIREE
(R-F—mMER A+ HAZE)
BRI
M—IsE T
(R=—F—mERA+HEAZHT)
TEREE
TRREL
(R=ZF—mFE7 H+7ARLE)
R EES A KL
(R=—ZF—mFEx H+7ARLE)
MR
TRBEE
BAL I
(R=F
FNFEEL
(R=ZZF—WFENA+=AZF)
E=OERE
R-FE—ERH+7HRT)

—FERHA+AHHZE)

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

No. of meetings

attended
HESERE

3/3
4/4
3/3

3/3
4/4

3/3
4/4

1/1
1/1
4/4
4/4
3/3
2/3

171

REBEQFMAA 2REFHEAK
WREY - REE
BRECZERAER
BTSSR -

No. of general
meetings attended

HERRAERH
0/1
3/3
0/1

0/1
0/3

171
1/3

0/2
2/2
1/3
1/3
0/1
0/1

0/2

LE=F
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TRERBE

THE BOARD (continued)

The independent non-executive Directors were appointed
for one year up to the date of the next annual general
meeting. During the year, the Chairman had at least
annually held meetings with all independent non-executive
directors without the executive directors present.

The chairman of the board had attended the annual general
meeting of the Company in 2014, while the chairmen of
the audit, remuneration, and nomination committees and
the external auditor of the Company had been invited to
attend.

Every newly appointed director of the Company had
received a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
on appointment. Subsequently any briefing or continuous
professional development will be provided to ensure that
Director has a proper understanding of the Company's
operations and business and is fully aware of his
responsibilities under statute and common law, the
Stock Exchange Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory
requirements and the Company’s business and governance
policies. During the year ended 31 December 2014, all
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
CG Code.

To the best of knowledge of the Company, there is no
financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationships among members of the Board.

Appropriate insurance to cover against liability of the
Directors and officers of the Company was arranged and
will be renewed annually.

BEEgE)
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ERERHRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company was established to
review the Group's financial reporting, internal controls
and corporate governance issues and make relevant
recommendations to the Board. As at 31 December 2014,
the Audit Committee comprises of four independent non-
executive Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee
possess appropriate professional qualifications, accounting
or related financial management expertise as required
under the Listing Rules. Please refer to biography section
of Directors for further details of the committee members.

The Audit Committee may elect to ask its external
auditors to attend its meetings. During the year, the Audit
Committee has met with the external auditors with no
executive Directors present.

BREEY
$QEZ%V§\@Eﬁ¢L%ﬁ$%@Z

EEQREAERS E(\\:f mE+—A
=+t—H EZZESEENEZBELIFENT
EF - EBEZLZEGXIRAELTHABMEAE
LIHEHEEN  SHAEMBEREEE
M- TEEXEZE—SHEBLHES
JEE—Ef -

ﬁﬁ?é/\a REERIINEZHAMLEHEE
cHRAFE  BZZECE HINEZEAE
%ﬂﬂﬁ%ﬂi%ﬁfzga

No. of meetings attended

HESBERE
Ms. Zhao Lan (Chairperson) MR (EE) 2/2
Mr. Wang Tongbo FRB A& 2/2
Professor Xu Zheng RIEHE
(appointed on 15 May 2014) (R=—ZF—mERA+FZHZE) 11
Dr. Wang Wenjing TEXEHL
(appointed on 13 August 2014) (R=ZZF—mENA+=HZ(F) 11
Mr. Wong Wing Ho EoKERAE
(retired on 15 May 2014) (R=ZF—FHA+HHRF) 1/1

EREERERBEARA

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERBE

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The services provided by Ernst & Young and other audit
firms and the fees thereof for the year ended 31 December
2013 and 2014, respectively, were as follows:

BB

LG EBAMEE MBS ERANE
E_E—=FRIZE-WNE+_A=+—H
IFFEDRREZRGLEEBERNT

2014 2013

—E-MmF —E—=F

HK$000 HK$'000

Statutory Annual EEEE FET FET

Ernst & Young LK ETEN BT

— Agreed upon procedure — HRHEIEE MR TR RS 631 450

— Annual audit — FEEZ 5,679 4,197

— Other service — HEMRE 139 —
Other audit firms for the audit and other  Hih @t EHA 2 EZRE

related service 175 B8 IR 7% 5,432 860

11,881 5,507

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company was
established to review the remuneration of Directors and
the Group’s salary policy. A majority of members are
independent non-executive Directors. To minimize any
conflict of interest, any member who is interested in
any given proposed motion is required to abstain from
voting on such motion. During the year under review, the
Remuneration Committee had reviewed the Group's policy
and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management.

FMEES

ARAZEMEZEENINEHNEETME X
REBEH MK - KEBD KB /BT
Ex - ARV EERERERE  EAKEN
Rl 2 EMBZP A ER - AIARZ
HYEMERRE - REBEFE FHEZES
EEMASEEERSMNERABZABEH
BB R Ko 2R A8

No. of meetings attended

HEERRE

Ms. Zhao Lan (Chairperson) MR (EE) 2/2
Mr. Li Hejun TAE LA

(appointed on 15 May 2014) (R=—ZF—mERA+AHAAZE) 0/1

Mr. Dai Frank Mingfang Dai Frank Mingfang 5E4 2/2

Mr. Wang Tongbo FRE LA 2/2

Professor Xu Zheng

(appointed on 15 May 2014)
Dr. Wang Wenjing

(appointed on 13 August 2014)
Mr. Wong Wing Ho

(retired on 15 May 2014)

TREHIR
(RZF—MFRATHHAZEE)

IXEFEL
(R=ZF—MFNA+=HZM)

EmACHLE
(RZF—FRF+HHRE)

11

11
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ERERHRE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company was
established with specific written terms of reference to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board
at least annually, to make recommendations on the
procedures and criteria for appointment of Directors and
to implement those that are adopted by the Board. All
members are independent non-executive Directors.

REZESE
ARBEKIIRHAZEGW N E@MATAELR
BEE URIBFER-REFGZR
B RENMENX  URZREESEZEFRE
ARRHERENEEESEMRMZIETFE
A - 2ENEH DB LIFNITES -

No. of meetings attended

HESBERE
Mr. Wang Tongbo (Chairman) TRBEE(EE) 1/1
Ms. Zhao Lan R 1/1
Professor Xu Zheng RIEHE
(appointed on 15 May 2014) (R=—F—mERA+FHAZE) 177
Dr. Wang Wenijing EXEBLT
(appointed on 13 August 2014) (R=ZF—mFA+=HZHE) il
Mr. Wong Wing Ho EHoKOESRA
(retired on 15 May 2014) (R=ZF—PJF A A+ I HRE) 0/0

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The annual and interim results announcement of the
Company are published in a timely manner and within
three months and two months respectively of the year end
and interim periods.

The responsibility of Directors in relation to the financial
statements is set out below. It should be read in
conjunction with, but distinguished from, the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 108 to 110 which acknowledges
the reporting responsibility of the Group’s Auditor.

Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the annual report and financial statements
of the Company to ensure that these financial statements
give a true and fair presentation in accordance with Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable accounting
standards.
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TRERBE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)
Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial
statements, the Group has applied appropriate accounting
policies that are consistently adopted and made
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
in accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group
keeps accounting records which disclose the financial
position of the Group upon which financial statements
of the Group could be prepared in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policies while monthly updates
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Company’'s performance, position and prospects in
sufficient detail had been provided to all Directors.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and
to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities within
the Group.

Going Concern

The Directors, after due and careful enquiries and by
performing the necessary due diligence work to assess
the credibility and the capacity of the Hanergy Affiliates,
are of the view that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
and that, for this reason, it is appropriate for the Group to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.
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ERERHRE

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has an overall responsibility for maintaining a
sound and effective internal control system (the “System”)
of the Group. The System is designed not only to achieve
the Group's objectives with facilitating an effective
and efficient business operation to ensure a reliable
financial reporting and compliance with applicable rules
and regulations, but also to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance on preventing material misstatement
or loss as well as managing and minimizing risks of failure
in operational system.

The Board should at least annually conduct a review on the
effectiveness of the System including all relevant financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions.

The Directors, through the Audit Committee and the
internal audit department, have continued to review the
effectiveness of the System. The System is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. Controls are monitored by management review and
by a programme of internal audits.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31 December 2014.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF THE
COMPANY

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (the “Model
Code") regarding securities transactions by the Directors
on terms no less exacting than the required standard set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry to all Directors, the Directors confirmed
that they had compiled with the required standard set
out in the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors adopted by the
Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Hejun (“Mr. Li”), aged 47, a vice chairman of All-
China Federation of Industry and Commerce, a member
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
and the chairman of China New Energy Chamber of
Commerce, was appointed as the Chairman, Executive
director and member of Remuneration Committee of the
Company on 15 May 2014. Mr. Li has years of experience
in strategic management and business development. Mr.
Li studied in Beijing Jiaotong University and is the founder,
the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of jZagiEfksE
EAPR AT (Hanergy Holding Group Limited*) (“Hanergy
Holding”). Hanergy Holding is the controlling shareholder
of the Company.

Mr. Dai Frank Mingfang (“Mr. Dai”), aged 51, is the
Deputy Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, a member of
Remuneration Committee and an Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Dai joined the Company on 13 August 2010.
He is an executive vice president of Hanergy Holding. Mr.
Dai has extensive experience in asset restructuring, merger
and acquisition, international financing and development of
photovoltaic business. Before joining Hanergy Holding, Mr.
Dai had been engaged in business management and market
development in the PRC, Hong Kong and the United States
of America ("USA") for many years. Mr. Dai graduated
from the faculty of industrial economy management of
25 A2 (Shenyang University) in 1984 and later obtained
a master's degree in business administration (EMBA) in
2000 from the University of Texas at Dallas, USA.

Dr. Feng Dianbo (“Dr. Feng”), aged 55, was appointed
as Deputy Chairman and an Executive Director of the
Company on 15 May 2014. Mr. Feng has years of
experience in business management and investment
management. Dr. Feng holds a doctorate degree in
Institutional Economics from Jilin University and is
a Professor of Engineering. Dr. Feng is currently the
Executive President of Hanergy Holding. Prior to joining
Hanergy Holding, Dr. Feng has worked at CITIC Trust
Co., Ltd. and possesses years of experience in financial
management, business operation and investment
management.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Liu Min (“Mr. Liu”), aged 41, was appointed as
Deputy Chairman and an Executive Director of the
Company on 15 May 2014. Mr. Liu has years of experience
in financial management, project investments, market
development and business operations. Mr. Liu holds a
bachelor degree in Economics from Renmin University
of China. Mr. Liu is currently the Executive President of
Hanergy Holding and the Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer of Hanergy Global Solar Power and
Applications Group, responsible for global photovoltaic
power generation, application and sales of the Group. Prior
to joining Hanergy Holding, he has worked at Beijing Urban
Construction Group (Daxing).

Mr. Chen Li (“Mr. Chen”), aged 42, has years of
experience in finance management, risk management and
arranging for financing. Mr. Chen, who joined the Company
on 12 December 2011, is currently the Executive Vice-
President and Executive Director of the Company. He
obtained a master degree in business administration from
the University of International Business and Economics in
2006. He is also the senior vice-president and the chief
head of finance unit of Hanergy Holding. Before joining
Hanergy Holding, Mr. Chen has worked in the Jinan branch
of the Bank of China and been responsible for the credit
business.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Dr. Lam Yat Ming Eddie (“Dr. Lam”), aged 46, was
appointed as Finance Director, Senior Vice-President
and Executive Director on 15 May 2014. Dr. Lam has
years of experience in banking and financing. Dr. Lam
is a post-doctorate in Financial Engineering from the
Shanghai Jiaotong University and holds a doctor of
philosophy degree in Finance from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. Dr. Lam is also a Chartered Financial
Analyst, Certified Financial Planner and Fellow of The
Institute of Financial Accountants. Dr. Lam has worked
at various financial institutions, including CITIC Securities
International, China CITIC Bank International, BCT Group,
Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation, and Standard Chartered
Bank. He was the research team advisor of the Korean
Government, Shanghai Futures Exchange and Countrywide
Financial Corp, and is the author of over 30 financial books
published in PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan, covering stock
analysis, investment psychology and financial planning.
He also published articles in a number of newspapers and
international academic journals.

Mr. Li Guangmin (“Mr. Li”), aged 38, was appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company on 13 August 2010
and as the Financial Controller of the Company with effect
from 1 November 2011. He is an executive controller of
Hanergy Holding. He joined Hanergy Holding in 2002. He
had worked for Jb R#EE# M (Beijing Crane Factory) from
2000 to 2002. He graduated from 1t/57% A2 (Northern
Jiaotong University) (currently known as 1t = % i K &2
(Beijing Jiaotong University)) with a bachelor degree in
accountancy in 2000.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Ms. Zhao Lan (“Ms. Zhao"), aged 51, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director, the chairperson of
each of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
of the Company on 23 August 2011 and a member of
Nomination Committee of the Company on 29 March
2012. Ms. Zhao obtained the Bachelor of Economics
from Renmin University of China, the People's Republic
of China (“PRC"), in 1996. Ms. Zhao is a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Beijing City Certified Tax Agents Association. Ms. Zhao
is experienced in auditing, accounting and corporate
management.

Mr. Wang Tongbo (“Mr. Wang”), aged 64, has years of
experience in foreign import and export. He was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company,
a member of each of Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company on 12 December 2011 and
Chairman of Nomination Committee of the Company on 15
May 2014. He obtained a master degree in Economics from
Liaoning University (EZ K2 )in 1995. Mr. Wang is currently
a partner of £B — FREKES (American-China Growth
Fund). Before joining American-China Growth Fund, Mr.
Wang has worked in EE{EZRFESH A (Etech Securities,
Inc) as an executive director from 2005 to 2009; &5 4R
7L % (Shenyang Wilke Medicine) as a director from 2003
to 2004; E5 T AT ELE B 3% = & (Shenyang Municipal
Government Offices) as a chief representative of the United
States of America from 1996 to 2002; &[5 T EIMNEEE 5
Z 8< (Shenyang Foreign Economic and Trade Commission)
as deputy chief from 1990 to 1996; ‘EE A REE LT O
7~ @l (Shenyang Metals and Minerals Import and Export
Corporation) as general manager from 1988 to 1990; and
B R&HEEEF O AQR (China National Metals and Minerals
Import and Export Corporation) Shenyang branch office as
general manager from 1985 to 1988.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Professor Xu Zheng (“Professor Xu”), aged 56, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director,
member of each of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company
on 15 May 2014. Professor Xu has years of experience
in research and development. Professor Xu is a post-
doctorate in Optical Engineering of Tianjin University holds
a doctor of science degree in Solid State Physics from the
Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Sciences and is
currently professor of Beijing Jiaotong University.

Dr. Wang Wenjing (“Dr. Wang”), aged 55, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director, member of
each of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company on 13 August
2014. Dr. Wang has years of experience in research and
development. Dr. Wang is a post-doctorate of the Institute
of Chemistry at the Chinese Academy of Sciences. Dr.
Wang was a director of Beijing Sunda Solar Energy
Technology Co., Ltd. between 2002 and 2005 (dt = A
Beetfgc AR AR]). Dr. Wang currently is the head of
research in the Institute of Electrical Engineering at the
Chinese Academy of Sciences.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

BYRZEMHRES

EY zx

To the shareholders of Hanergy Thin Film Power Group
Limited

(Formerly known as Hanergy Solar Group Limited)
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hanergy Thin Film Power Group Limited (formerly known
as Hanergy Solar Group Limited) (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 111
to 298, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

BYZHMBES

EY zx

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

BYRZEMHRES

EY zx

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

30 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mERERkEMEEIER

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 &Z —_Z—NFE+_-_A=+—HItFE)

2014 2013
—E2-F —EF—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
it FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
REVENUE PN 6 9,615,028 3,283,791
Cost of sales SHE AR (4,110,380) (647,779)
Gross profit EF 5,504,648 2,636,012
Other income and gains H AU A R e 7 323,492 134,512
Selling and distribution expenses HIHER (173,000) (4,588)
Administrative expenses THER (807,280) (236,495)
Research and development costs B Ak A (513,966) (195,063)
Loss on disposal of an available-for-  HERIHEERE 2
sale investment 518 9 (12,274) =
Impairment of an available-for-sale A ERERE
investment 9 (23,610) —
Other expenses HE A (4,269) (39)
Finance costs Bi%E A 8 (2,997) (57,026)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX A= F 9 4,290,744 2,277,313
Income tax expense Fr8Hi 2 10 (983,074) (259,289)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEEF 3,307,670 2,018,024
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)) REZHBEHSIEZE
INCOME TO BE RECLASSIFIED Bz HMERE
TO PROFIT OR LOSS IN (F548) W3 -
SUBSEQUENT PERIODS:
Exchange differences on translation & INE SRS 7 [E 5,
of foreign operations =8 (18,319) 176,338
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ AEEHMEE(ER)
INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF S HIBRBIE
TAX (18,319) 176,338
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

meREERkEtEERERE)

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ —_Z—NFE+_-_A=+—HItFE)

2014 2013
—ZT-lmF —F—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt FET FEIT
(Restated)
(&%)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #AXEEZ>HWKHEEE
FOR THE YEAR 3,289,351 2,194,362
Profit for the year attributable to: FEMRAFEERF
Owners of the parent ISYNEIETZSPN 11 3,307,748 2,018,024
Non-controlling interests FEFE R M (78) =
3,307,670 2,018,024
Total comprehensive income B 2mKRS4a%E
attributable to:
Owners of the parent SAREE A 3,289,429 2,194,362
Non-controlling interests eI (78) =
3,289,351 2,194,362
HK cents HK cents
Bl JEN
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRAEAAEBEER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS ZF
OF THE PARENT 13
Basic E-PIN 10.0 9.1
Diluted i3 7.5 5.1

Details of the dividends for the year are disclosed in note ANFERE ZFBREATBERERMT 125
12 to the consolidated financial statements. 5= o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B RS AR L R

(As at 31 December 2014 R—_Z—F+—-_F=+—H)

2014 2013
—E—MF —F—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HiaE FET FET
(Restated)
(E51))
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y -~ B & EE 15 663,497 320,054
Goodwill RS 17 7,915,318 7,915,318
Intangible assets BIZEE 18 1,070,085 1,211,056
Available-for-sale investment Al ERE 19 — 85,800
Deposits paid for acquisition of items UEEWZE « BiE Kk &kiE
of property, plant and equipment HEZEMNES 32 493
Deferred tax assets BEEFIRE E 32 76,404 23,420
Total non-current assets EMBEELLRE 9,725,336 9,556,141
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 20 659,023 1,649,598
Trade receivables g 5 RN RIE 21 6,078,695 2,307,349
Gross amount due from contract FEWEHNE B
customers 22 3,278,508 1,858,557
Other receivables H h fE U FRIE 23 391,748 59,672
Bills receivable e IR 101,411 —
Deposits and prepayments E& RIBNIA 24 1,630,204 2,000,938
Equity investment at fair value BATEIERERZ
through profit or loss B E 25 — 11,698
Restricted cash 2 PR HIER 26 76,689 —
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESFEY 26 3,033,819 1,367,836
Total current assets MENVEEBTE 15,250,097 9,255,648
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables B S RERENNRIE 27 429,773 620,065
Other payables and accruals FAth B A FRIE R FEET
2H 28 1,464,329 621,599
Interest-bearing bank and other 1T R E AT R
borrowings B 29 462,601 179,579
Convertible Bonds AR ES 30 — 845,584
Tax payable FEfSHLIR 860,908 281,969
Finance lease payables ERERE 31 7,875 7,604
Total current liabilities VEIN=REEE 3,225,486 2,556,400
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEEE 12,024,611 6,699,248
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEAERRBEE
LIABILITIES 21,749,947 16,255,389
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

e IR R (E

(As at 31 December 2014 R —_Z—WF+—-_F=+—8H)

2014 2013
—ZT-lmF —F—=
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
i3 FET FET
(Restated)
(E5))
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities B IEA R 32 561,995 324,501
Interest-bearing bank and other R1T R E AR SERK
borrowings 29 656,258 42,417
Finance lease payables JEMREHE 31 37,015 44,805
Other non-current liabilities HEMIEmBaE 2,004 2,360
Total non-current liabilities B B B 1,257,272 414,083
Net assets BETH 20,492,675 15,841,306
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to the owners of =X FHEA ABGEER
the parent
Issued capital BEITIRA 33 104,084 71,470
Reserves G 35(a) 20,388,004 15,769,836
20,492,088 15,841,306
Non-controlling interests IR AR 587 —
Total equity T B ER 20,492,675 15,841,306
Dai Frank Mingfang Li Guangmin
ZER
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Executive Director and Financial Controller
B FEFTBARH HITEEFRY B
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—F—NF+_-A=+—HItFE)

Attrbutable to owners of the parent

BRTREARE
Share Capital Convertiole Share Non-
Issued premium~ redemption Reseve  Contributed  Bonds equity Exchange option Retained controling
capital account* reserve* funds* surplus* reserve* reserve’* reserve* profits* Sub-total interests Total
TEERS
BEARE  ROREE: EEEER GRSt EARN ERRET  ENRE  BRERR  gmer Nt FihER ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAT FAL 74T 7 i3 i A AT FAT FAT FAL 7L
A1 January 2013 (as previously RZF-=§--8
regorted) (BA7I%) 3571 7,107,964 7,600 23092 161,797 895,685 167,586 24,000 3,290,799 11,712,100 - 1,712,100
Proft for the year (as previously ERERASIE)
reported) = = = = = = = - 2,069,010 2,069,010 - 2,069,010
Adjustment in relaton to the acquisiton 3 Hanergy UK {2
of Hneigy UK fote 4 585 = = = = = = - - mBm s 3
Adjustment in reation to the acquisiton S4B GSE e
of GSE note 4) (hie) = = = = = = = = (37,756) (37,756) = 37,756)
Proit forthe year (restated) HERARIE5) - - - - - - - — o080 201801 -8
Other comprehensive income for the ~ AEFRM2EAE
year
Exchange differences on tianslaton R E v
of foreign operations fas 3523
previously reported) (REAIR) - - - - - - 177071 - - 177,071 - 177,01
Adjustment in relation to acquisiton S Hanergy UK
of Hanergy UK fnote 4) fEz% (W) = = = = = = (703) = = (103) - (103)
Adjustment in relaton to acquisition Bl e Tl v
of GSE ot 4) (Hite) = = = = = = 30 = = 30 = 30
Exchange differences on tianslain of ~ EE STV EN 2R
foreign operations (estated) (1) - - - - - - 176,338 - - 176,338 - 176,338
Total comprehensive income for the FERRENESE
year - - - - - - 176,338 - 2018024 2,194,362 - 2,194,362
Exercise of share options fiFERE 2,91 20540 = - - - - (3431 - 20084 - 220,084
Subscripton of shares Fi bl 34912 1,634,631 - - - - - - — 16695483 — 1669543
Deemed distributon to Hanergy Holding ~ BAEATE &R - - - - - - - - [75,581) (75,581) - (75,581)
Deemed contribution from the then feHanergy UK EERE
shareholder of Hanergy UK ({520
(note 4) = = - - 21908 - - - - 21,958 - 21,958
Deemed contribution fom the then BAEGSEERHRRLE
shareholder of GSE (note 4 (h24) = = = = 98,6840 - - - - 98840 - 98,840
At 31 December 2013 festated) i3
TZR=1-A
(£2) 410 8,963,135 7,600 23092 282,59 895,686 343,924 20,563 5,133,242 15,841,306 - 15,841,306
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(continued)

mERDBER(E)

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE —_Z—NF+_-_F=+—HILFE)

Attributable to owners of the parent

30785 AR
Share Capital Convertible Share Non-
Issued premium ~ redemption Reserve  Contributed  Bonds equity Exchange option Retained controlling
capital account* reserve* funds* surplus* reserve* reserve* reserve* profits* Sub-total interests Total
TERES
BETRA  REEER: EAREER: BRe*  REEM  BERR  ENRET  BRERE B Mt FEREE ae
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKs'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
& & &7 -2 7ET 7ET 7E1 & & & & &7
A1 January 2014 [as restated) RZF-BE-A-A
(i3] 40 8,963,135 7,600 23,09 282,59 895,685 343,924 20,563 5,233,242 15,841,306 - 15,841,306
Profitfor the year TERET - - - - - - - -3 3307748 (18 3307670
Other comprehensive loss for the year ~ ZEFZM2ENE
Exchange differences on transhationof &5 £H7
foreign operations Efz2 - - - - - - 18319) - - (18319) - 18319)
Tota comprehensive income for the year ~ AFE2ANEEE - - - - - - (18,319) - 33m8 3289429 (18] 3,209350
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36 (b))
- - - - - - - - - - 665 665
Cancellation of share premium and
transfer to contributed surplus
(note 12) - [200,000) - - 200,000 - - - - - - -
Dividend declared (note 12) - - - - 429,300) - - - - 429,300) - [429,300)
Exercise of share options (note 33(a) 613 43884 - - - - - (3,158) - 4130 - 130
Share option expense (note 35(b)) - - - - - - - 2431 - 231 - 2431
Subscription of shares (note 33(a) 22,500 877,500 - - - - - - - 900,000 - 900,000
Exercise of convertble bonds (note 30) 9,501 1,733,064 - - - 895,685) - - - 846,880 - 846,880
At31 December 2014 RIE-RE
t2A=t-8 104,084 11,417,583 7,600 23,09 53,205 - 325,605 19,839 8,540,990 20,492,088 587 20,492,675
& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves — * ZEREREREGREUBRARZES

of HK$20,388,004,000 (2013 restated: HK$15,769,836,000)
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

ZREERESEEEMR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Fap EE%/)ILE*&'%:Z

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 &Z —Z—

ME+=—A=+—R1LFE)

2014 2013
=l —T =F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KEFEHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: AR A 4,290,744 2,277,313
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs % E A 8 2,997 57,026
Interest income from banks and ERITHI B A K8 HA
overdue trade receivables FEUNE IR 2 F &
WA 7 (212,828) (4,342)
Gain on disposal of an equity HERAFEYRR
investment at fair value through BmsExmitE 2
profit or loss ek 7 — (2,508)
Amortisation of intangible assets E A EEE 9 144,168 95,570
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 BGRIER A 9 - 39
Impairment of an available-for-sale Al SR E A
investment 9 23,610 —
Depreciation of items of property, ME - BEK
plant and equipment BT E 9 97,618 36,330
Write-down of inventories to net FEMIRZE AT 2R
realisable value FE 9 - 277
Fair value gain on an equity BAFEYRRER
investment at fair value through %ﬁu?xéfz AN
profit or loss s 9 — (4,766)
Loss on disposal of equity investment Hj%TE’AQEWBEBATE
at fair value through profit or loss w2 EmIRE 2 EE 9 4,269 —
Loss on disposal of an available-for- HEHREERE Y
sale investment &5 18 9 12,274 —
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BE KR E
plant and equipment HE 2 BE 9 39 152
Equity-settled share option expenses PARE 2R 45 5 1 IR {7 B A
fl 2 9 2,431 —
4,365,322 2,455,091
Decrease/(increase) in inventories TSR, () 1,012,598  (1,216,545)
Increase in trade receivables FEULE 5 R IEE N (3,764,314)  (1,482,786)
(Increase)/decrease in gross amount FEINA XX F 2%
due from contract customers (#hn), R (1,419,916) 1,182,525
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables E b fEU FIA (A1),
NERAS (101,338) 46,750
(Increase)/decrease in bills receivable FEURZ 35 (3 00) 5 > (101,411) 550
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and Re RENRERD
prepayments (3g) 369,579  (1,864,314)
Increase in restricted cash PR HIER & 12 0 (22,190) —
(Decrease) /increase in trade and bills &5 k2 ENFIE
payables R, /12N (187,936) 326,631
Increase in other payables and accruals HAbfER 318 R FEETE A
#hn 399,789 74,180
Cash generated from/(used in) KEBEES(ER)Z
operations & 550,183 (477,918)
Interest paid EfTFE (14,066) =
Income taxes paid EfTErEE (220,573) (120,220)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating &KLERES,(FRH)Z
activities WEMEFHE 315,544 (598,138)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

meERERERKRE

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_ZE—NF+-_A=+—HILFE)

2014 2013
e T =
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HiaE FET FAET
(Restated)
(&%)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating &LERES(F/R)2
activities WemEFE 315,544 (598,138)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFERHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of property, plant and 1ZE¥% - W= k&
equipment B3 H (440,011) (91,668)
Decrease in deposits paid for acquisition JHAUEEME - BE &
of items of property, plant and REEE 2Bk
equipment 461 1,883
Purchase of intangible assets HEETEE (7,059) (691,935)
Purchase of an equity investment at fair RN FEHRNIER
value through profit or loss 2T A — (8,699)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE — R B A — (99,732)
Advance to the ultimate holding ) B 4R 42 ’Lﬂj{’ﬁﬂjz
company IR - (458)
Repayment from the ultimate holding  (EERAKIER A F 2 EFK
company 458 —
Advance to related parties MR N BIEH 2 B (25,146) (190)
Decrease in pledged deposits BHEAFERZRLD - 8,572
Interest received BT 2 6,976 4,342
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYE e RRIEE
property, plant and equipment B 2 Fr5sa 418 =
Proceeds from disposal of available-for- T SRR Y S
sale investment FRIE 49,916 —
Proceeds from disposal of an equity HERAFEYERIER
investment at fair value through ZHRERIEE Z B IE
profit or loss 7,429 6,988
Net cash flows used in investing BRETYFEACEHERE
activities FER (406,558) (870,897)

ZepERESEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
mERSRERR(E

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ-Z—NFE+_A=+—HILtFE)

2014 2013
= e T =
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 FEx FAET
(Restated)
(&%)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEEREERE
ACTIVITIES
Subscription of shares RER D 900,000 1,669,543
Advance from the ultimate holding E—i@ NGl
company 391,443 16,853
Advance from related parties BE AT 28R 33,528 15,280
Other borrowings received from related =W EE A+ 2 HMER
parties 97,795 49,727
Repayments of other borrowings due to E&EMER T — L @&
a related party AT (242) (7,136)
Other borrowings received from the BRE=F 2 EMER
third parties 573,605 179,337
Repayments of other borrowings due to EBEHMERFE=H
the third parties (157,187) —
Dividend paid to the shareholders EIREZ]E (429,300) (48,520)
Interest-bearing borrowings received SRITH B fiat?’)(
from banks 385,130 —
Repayment of interest-bearing bank EBIRITH EMER
borrowings (396) —
Increase in restricted cash AN R B & 2 FRIE (54,499) =
Repayment of finance lease payables  (EEEMNIEHEHE (9,220) =
Proceeds from issue of shares upon E"ﬁ@iﬂﬂ@é%ﬂﬂxfﬁz
exercise of share options P53 41,342 220,084
Net cash flows from financing activities BEBERE4LX 7EERE
SEEE 1,771,999 2,095,168
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRRESEB/Y 218 M
EQUIVALENTS FH 1,680,985 626,133
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning E#27R4E RIREEEY
of year 1,367,836 707,958
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNESTE R B ) v B - F
changes, net ) (15,002) 33,745
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT SR ZRERELSZEY
END OF YEAR 3,033,819 1,367,836
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF RERBEEEYEHRZ
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS WAt

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in ﬁé‘ﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁiﬂ%&ﬁ%ﬁ%
statement of financial position and in FINERZRE MRS

the statement of cash flow B9 26 3,033,819 1,367,836
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B ISR 2R

(As at 31 December 2014 R —_Z—WF+—-_F=+—8H)

2014 2013
B T =
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB NERE 15 5,904 4,993
Investments in subsidiaries HERKB AR 16 8,435,521 8,435,521
Total non-current assets EMBEERE 8,441,425 8,440,514
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 20 18,322 —
Due from subsidiaries e ENGT 16 2,000,741 2,046,881
Deposits and prepayments e RIBNFIE 24 19,090 6,946
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 26 500,626 51,160
Total current assets MENVEERLR 2,538,779 2,104,987
CURRENT LIABILITIES REIBE
Due to subsidiaries & B B A &) 16 3,711 158,911
Other payables and accruals H eI R BT E A 28 29,283 28,618
Convertible Bonds AR ES 30 - 845,584
Interest-bearing bank borrowings RITHI BfE 29 140,786 —
Tax payable FE#HH I8 2,300 2,300
Total current liabilities MENB(EREE 176,080 1,035,413
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFH 2,362,699 1,069,574
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEAERABEE
LIABILITIES 10,804,124 9,510,088
Net assets BEFR 10,804,124 9,510,088
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEITRA 33 104,084 71,470
Reserves fEis 35(b) 10,700,040 9,438,618
Total equity Wz R 10,804,124 9,510,088
Dai Frank Mingfang Li Guangmin
ZER
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Executive Director and Financial Controller
BIFEFTBAEH HITEFEFY B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Hanergy Thin Film Power Group Limited (the
“Company”) is an exempted company with limited
liability incorporated in Bermuda. The address of
its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal
place of business is Suite 7601A & 7607-08, Level 76,
International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group"”) were
principally involved in (i) the manufacture of
equipment and turnkey production lines for the
manufacture of amorphous silicon and Copper Indium
Gallium Selenide (“CIGS") based thin film power
modules (“Manufacturing”); (ii) the technological
development and production of Gallium Arsenide
("GaAs") thin film power turnkey production lines
(“Manufacturing”); (iii) building ground-mounted
power stations or rooftop power stations for sale
(“Build and Sell”); and (iv) the research and the

development of thin film power application products.

The Company’'s shares are listed on the main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The Group's current operations
are principally based in Hong Kong, the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC" or “Mainland China”),
the Kingdom of Sweden (“Sweden”), the Federal
Republic of Germany (“Germany”), the United States
of America (the "“United States”) and the United
Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland (the
“United Kingdom").

ARIER

B EEEEEEAGRAA(ARA])
REREFMKIAEREBRAT -
H Mt E ML A Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda® HEXrZL XM AEBAEN
BN ITEER—SRRIRkESHEST6E
7601A . 07-08 = °

FAN- ANRAREKBRQE(FHBIA
SEDEFERAFONREYE RIAEEK
H(CIGS) BEZEHGRERR
ERESEEZIRE]) ()&
([GaAs] ) ER B ERGAEFFIITHRE
RAE (i) BEXGEEE WM METE
B AHEE(TREMEE])  K(iv)
BREEEERAERNARE -

ARATRAREBBARBHERAT
(TBESRFT MR £ 6 - AEBEBELE
% AREAE(HE K AN
M) - TR ([RE]) - 2B S8
£RMBE(EE]) - £F2aRA(E
B RATRSIERLEBHYS LH
([5E ) BEBLER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE —

ZH

CEREEREBRA

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)

On 3 July 2014, the Company announced to change
the Company’s name from Hanergy Solar Group
Limited to Hanergy Thin Film Power Group Limited
to better reflect its principal activities and the future
business strategies. The change of the Company’s
name has been approved by the shareholders at a
special general meeting on 18 August 2014. Upon
completion of all the registration procedures, the
new company name has become effective since
16 September 2014. Following that change, the
Company's new stock short name on the Stock
Exchange has been changed to “Hanergy TFP” with
effect from 9 October 2014.

On 27 February 2013, 7,964,611,5684 shares and
300,000,000 shares were issued to Hanergy
Investment Limited (“Hanergy Investment”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hanergy Holding Group Limited
(“Hanergy Holding”, a company established under
the laws of the PRC), and Hanergy Option Limited
("Hanergy Option”), as nominee of Hanergy Holding,
respectively, which resulted in the interests in the
Company held by Hanergy Holding and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Hanergy Holding Group”) and its
concert parties increasing from 20.28% to 50.65%
of the then issued share capital of the Company.
Hanergy Holding has in substance become the
controlling shareholder of the Company from that
date.

On 2 September 2014, 9,000,000,000 shares were
issued to Hanergy Holding. On the same date, the
Convertible Bonds holders, GL Wind Farm Investment
Limited (“GL Wind Farm"”) and China Genco
Investment Limited (“China Genco”), both Hanergy
Holding’s subsidiaries, converted all the outstanding
Convertible Bonds into 3,800,598,461 ordinary shares,
which resulted in the interests in the Company held
by Hanergy Holding Group and its concert parties
increasing to 73% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

—HE+ZA=+—RALFE)

NEER#E)

RZZE—NFELA=H " AQREMAN
N Z % 18 @l Hanergy Solar Group
Limited] ¥ 2 &l Hanergy Thin Film
Power Group Limited] @ LA g i A
FEEBRARREBRE - ElARRT]
ZBOERER -_Z—MmENA+N\B
BIT2RRFRAREG L#E - TRES
AfFERE  HEBE_ZT-—WFENA
TRBRER - BREBEHE - ARRZ
HEXBROHEBIIE_T—NOF+ AN
H#EE A&l Hanergy TFP] ©

RZZE-—Z=ZF_A=Z++t 8"
7,964,611,584 1% 5 300,000,000 /% A%
MARETTEREREEBR AR
(DEgeER ] BEBHBEEXN I ZA
Al) 2 2 &K B A 7] Hanergy Investment
Limited ([Hanergy Investment|) X Hanergy
Option Limited ([Hanergy Option ]|
ERERIER 2B AN) BBUEREE
RREMHB AR (FEEEERER )
RE—BITHATHEEZARAERB
20.28% ENZE 50.65% ° EREIEREH
FHZBRBKARRAR ZERE o

MW=—ZF—p4F N A =8 ' 9,000,000,000
BERAD 2517 TR AEHER% - R B - AT
&% # A AGL Wind Farm Investment
Limited ([ GL Wind Farm |) % China Genco
Investment Limited ([ China Genco])
(MEHYAEZEZERZWERR) B
’\ﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁﬂiﬁﬁz—ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%iﬁﬁ
3,800,598,461 ik I i AR - £ % A 12 A
%I&E—ﬁlﬁ@}\iﬁﬂvﬁzzﬁﬁ
AESENEEARAERITRA
73% °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Hanergy Investment,
which is incorporated in the British Virgin Island
(“BVI") and the ultimate holding company of the
Company is Hanergy Holding, which is established in
the PRC.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
which concern the preparation of financial statements,
which for this financial year and the comparative
period continue to be those of the predecessor
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with
transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
“Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections
76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance.

The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for equity
investment at fair value through profit or loss, which
has been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

2.1

NEER#E)

BEERE AR ZEEERAAAR
RERZHS([RBEAZHS EMK
3 Z Hanergy Investment @ i &N A &
ZBIRER AT R A BIK L 2R REE

% e

AL E A

HERERRIBEEESHMAE
([BESHMASNERZBEEYE
WMEEA([BEHBREELERL ] B
FIBEBBHBEMEER BB SEER
(BEAEHERDRER)RBEELRR
SETRA - WEMBREREFEER
BB MR AR AR B S R RUERIFS 2
BAFEBRRRE  BEFBHAQ AL
(F6228)FIHIRR KRBT IZBE
M RERBLHEREERQAEOHE
622E )M R1M1FE 76 E2871§) » shAR
BFE kLR FE BT E R QREG
(BERNE)VAEARAGH 2 EAEER

E

WEMERRVIZE LKA LRS-
BRAFEFARGE ZBEREAELRF
BIIRERIN - LETBHRRTIAETE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had net
current assets of HK$12,024,611,000. Included
in the Group's current assets as at 31 December
2014 were the gross amount due from and trade
receivables from Hanergy Holding and its affiliates
(collectively “Hanergy Affiliates”) for contract work
of HK$7,623,739,000 and other receivables due
from and prepayments made to Hanergy Affiliates
of HK$1,437,438,000 (details of which are set out
in notes 21, 22, 23 and 24 respectively below). The
Group finances its operations principally by obtaining
progress payments from customers and credit terms
from suppliers and therefore the Group's liquidity
depends very much on the timeliness of settlement of
progress payments by Hanergy Affiliates. The Group
also has bank facilities amounting to HK$2,535,000 as
at 31 December 2014.

The directors of the Company, after due and
careful enquiries and by performing the necessary
due diligence work to assess the credibility and
the capacity of Hanergy Affiliates, are of the view
that Hanergy Affiliates would be able to settle all
progress payments on a timely basis and fulfil all the
contracts concluded with the Group. Subsequent to
31 December 2014 and up to the date when these
financial statements were approved for issuance,
the Group have collected HK$2,865,666,000 from
Hanergy Affiliates. As such, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations
and financial obligations as and when they fall due,
and accordingly, are satisfied that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

Comparative information

Certain items in the consolidated financial statements
have been restated due to common control business
combination, further summary details of which are
included in note 4 below.

ZepERESEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

2.1 RBEEE %)
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2 mENE EF R A12,024,611,000%8
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=T —HZRBEEREYERZER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 RBEEEE)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2014. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for
as an equity transaction.

Business combinations under common control are
accounted for using the merger accounting method.
Detailed accounting policy is set out in note 2.4 to
the consolidated financial statements.

REEE
HEMBBRREBEARALEMELQT
HE_ZT—WFT_A=+—HILEFE
ZHBHREK - MBRAREARRZHB
BRHOBERERR - XRA 2G5
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BaXkEMMEmEEE &N HAE
B RBEE AR ES RN
BUER IR B R SRR T ° T A
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EHRAEREHEH -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY 2.2 S BERBEEREE
AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised AEBERAFE IS REK &I
standards and new interpretation for the first time for TR B BN BRELEN KRR -

the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities BEMBREENE 108 KLEE
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 F12RREBEHER
(2011) F215%201 E)ETR
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial BEQHENERNRBIR HAH2HEELEDH
Liabilities BRE
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non- BEQHEREBRIBIN  HEHEETHEE
Financial Assets BIRE
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of BEQHENEOREIR [TLEIRZEERY
Hedge Accounting HEHEZULE
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies BE(ARMBRERREZE HEF
2)REE2H
Amendment to HKFRS Definition of Vesting Condition’ “T-TRECT-CRAY EEBAHZEE
2 included in Annual LEEMERBBHER
Improvements 2010- ERAE2FEFA
2012 Cycle
Amendment to HKFRS Accounting for Contingent Consideration in “E-TEE-T-CERAY EFeHvaniE
3 included in Annual a Business Combination’ LEEMERTBIER Vd-rivd
Improvements 2010- ERBEIFEA
2012 Cycle
Amendment to HKFRS Short-term Receivables and Payables “E-ZERT-—GRE RUEKEFREN
13 included in Annual LEERENEERBR &t
Improvements 2010- ERBZ13RETA
2012 Cycle
Amendment to HKFRS Meaning of Effective HKFRSs R—EET--FRE FUERUBEEE
1 included in Annual LEEBENE BT R A2 EE
Improvements 2011- ERBIE 1 RIET A
2013 Cycle
! Effective from 1 July 2014 ! H-Z—NF+HA—HRBEX
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

Other than explained below regarding the impact of
HKAS 32 amendments, HKAS 36 amendments and
HKFRS 2 and HKFRS 13 amendments included in
Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle, the adoption
of the above revised standards and interpretation has
had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements.

(a)

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning
of “currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off” for offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities. The amendments also
clarify the application of the offsetting criteria
in HKAS 32 to settlement systems (such as
central clearing house systems) which apply
gross settlement mechanisms that are not
simultaneous. The amendments have had no
impact on the Group as the Group does not
have any offsetting arrangement.

The HKAS 36 Amendments remove the
unintended disclosure requirement made by
HKFRS 13 on the recoverable amount of a
cash-generating unit which is not impaired. In
addition, the amendments require the disclosure
of the recoverable amounts for the assets or
cash-generating units for which an impairment
loss has been recognised or reversed
during the reporting period, and expand the
disclosure requirements regarding the fair value
measurement for these assets or units if their
recoverable amounts are based on fair value less
costs of disposal. The amendments have had no
impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group. Disclosures about the Group's
impaired non-financial assets are included in
note 17 to the financial statements.

2.2

SHBERBBEEREE ©)

BRTXHEBETEREI29: - HES
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
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The HKFRS 2 Amendment clarifies various
issues relating to the definitions of performance
and service conditions which are vesting
(i)
condition must contain a service condition;

conditions, including a performance
(i) a performance target must be met while
the counterparty is rendering service; (iii) a
performance target may relate to the operations
or activities of an entity, or to those of another
entity in the same group; (iv) a performance
condition may be a market or non-market
condition; and (v) if the counterparty, regardless
of the reason, ceases to provide service during
the vesting period, the service condition is not
satisfied. The amendment has had no impact on
the Group. Details of the disclosures for share-
based payment are included in note 34(b) to the
financial statements.

The HKFRS 13 Amendment clarifies that short-
term receivables and payables with no stated
interest rates can be measured at invoice
amounts when the effect of discounting is
immaterial. The amendment has had no impact
on the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

2.3 FAREBTEBUBREE
B R 14 K R 2 B )
HBRE

The Group has not applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not

yet effective, in these financial statements.

AEBA RN ERHERERAER TSI
ERMERRER T REERTER

P75 RS AR o

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ BRMBREEREOR 2HITA
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between EEMBRREENE 0NN KEEFLEBEAAE
and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint BB G ERIF 285 LEZEHEENE
Venture’ (Z2——5)EFA 75 4
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities: Applying the EERBREENF0T . KETE . BALGAN
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception’ BRMBRERNE 1S EBNFE
(2011) REBEIEAF 285
(ZB——%)EFA
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in BRI ERE R 115 YELSERBERNE
Joint Operations’ EHES vy
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts® ERUBREENE1UE  EEEEES
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers® BIBEEHEEDE 155 BFAHUE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative’ BRSHENE 1RETR  HEEE
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of BREEE 16 RERT BENEREHNTE
and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation’ AR EREEHCH A
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants’ BRI ENF 16K RERE 2E LEHEY
and HKAS 41 SHERIE 41 RIBATA
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee BESHENE19RBIR  REEfiE  ESL
Contributions' #
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial EheERE7% BUHBEFFEERSS
(2011) Statements’ (Z2——F)ETR
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs' ZE-TEECT-CF SRABIHREED
2010-2012 Cycle ASFENE ZET
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs' “T—FE-E-=F SRA BB REER
2011-2013 Cycle Az FENE BT
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs “E-—FE-T-NF SRABIHREED
2012-2014 Cycle S FENE BT’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ! R-ZE—MEL+ A —Bs 2 BHIEZ
July 2014 FEHRER

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 RZE—AREF—A—H3Z2ERBZ
January 2016 F[EHIR A

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 3 R-E—+F—A—Hsk2EHAEZ
January 2017 FEHBER

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 4 R-ZE—NF—F—BszBHEZ

January 2018

Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for

its annual financial statements beginning on or after
1 January 2016 and therefore is not applicable to the

Group

FEHBBER

° BREMEBHBREEINELRE
ERAR-_T—RF-A—BXZER
B FREMBRSE B TERARA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND
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DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

(continued)

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) will affect the presentation and disclosure
of certain information in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ending 31 December 2015.
The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these changes.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final
version of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of
the financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39
and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard
introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting.
The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January
2018. The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS
9 will have an impact on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial assets. Further
information about the impact will be available nearer
the implementation date of the standard.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that
will apply to revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND 2.3 A REEITEBUBHREE

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

(continued)

The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January
2017 and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS
15 upon adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation and
disclosure in financial statements in five areas,
including materiality, disaggregation and subtotals,
notes structure, disclosure of accounting policies
and presentation of items of other comprehensive
income arising from equity accounted investments.
The amendments further encourage entities to
apply professional judgement in determining what
information to disclose and how to structure the
disclosure in the financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue
reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are
generated from operating business (of which the
asset is part) rather than the economic benefits
that are consumed through the use of the asset. As
a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used
to depreciate property, plant and equipment and
may only be used in very limited circumstances to
amortise intangible assets. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group upon adoption on 1
January 2016 as the Group has not used a revenue-
based method for the calculation of depreciation of
its non-current assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND 2.3 FEIREBETEBUBREE
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER B % &) R R 40 2 B 78 D RHE A
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ZHEBERE®E)

ORDINANCE NOT YET ADOPTED

(continued)

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010- %fﬁfﬂﬁfﬂﬁéﬁﬂ’]?%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁi
2012 Cycle issued in January 2014 sets out A —F—FFS Z R F
amendments to a number of HKFRSs. Except for /;EJUE%?'Jylﬁﬁxaﬂﬁﬁ%#ﬁ%ﬁﬂ‘lﬂ’\]ﬂ%
those described in note 2.2, the Group expects 5] o BRBYRE2.2 FTal & AN - ANEK E TE H
to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2015. BE-Z—AF—A—HEEMAZEE
None of the amendments are expected to have a 5] - EHIZE BT e H AEBEEK
significant financial impact on the Group. Details of EAFBTE - EARAEBENEE]
the amendment most applicable to the Group are as B

follows:

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments: Clarifies that an entity BAUBEHRELERNFSHALE 75 - B
must disclose the judgements made by management BEERERE U BIREERFE 8
in applying the aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8, NEERE IR ER VAR ETEEELMN
including a brief description of operating segments FIE - BIEMRE LS D IR R
that have been aggregated and the economic FARFE D 22 G U SER -
characteristics used to assess whether the segments ZEBTINMEEN S EERBLEENY
are similar. The amendments also clarify that a REEZUHRBRE TR 2EBRREZ
reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is ﬁ/R—IT?i/,\TBZE% &

only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is
reported to the chief operating decision maker.

132 EaEEEEEEERAT HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company's statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company's investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESTHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

The fair value of financial instruments that are
traded in active markets is determined by reference
to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations
(bid price for long positions and ask price for short
positions), without any deduction for transaction
costs.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation technigues that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T — based on gquoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Business combinations and goodwill

The acquisition of subsidiaries and business under
common control, where applicable, has been
accounted for using merger accounting method,
with reference to the principle set out in Accounting
Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations issued by the HKICPA. The financial
statements of the businesses under common control
are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies.

(%)
APEFEGE)

REHBEEAFEFEFEARELR
BEREH  RPBHRRP AR FER
EXWBELMEEERBBNIZAFE
FHOE W

F—H — REERNEELRBELLE
M5 L2 RECREHAR)

F_& — REEERLHEEHRFE
EREAREZABERER
FHER 2 A ERM

F=M— RBFAUBEERMHRF
B EAEAREZRES
RE R Z fhERIM

ARERYBREERZEERAEM
5 ARBEREREHRBBENNMG
DHR(BEHBEBATEAEREAY
EURESEHRENBEEEEAMRS

HIRER -

<op

EBREOHREE

RRBLGMAEARMZ E5HE5]
F5R[ X HAREBIT 2B HHEREH
GEOEIFRERA - WER AREH 2
MB R REK(HER CERAAHE
AOAARR - RARES 2 X2 B R
RIZEARRERZ 2HPEEA -
ZEBRTBRRE

A

k ANNUAL REPORT 2014

&
-
i

—

135



136

EREREEERBEARA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE -

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

The merger method of accounting involves
incorporating the financial statement items of the
combining entities or businesses in which the
common control combinations occurs as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the control
of the controlling shareholder. The net assets of
the combining entities or businesses are combined
using the existing book values from the controlling
shareholder’'s perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or the excess of the acquirers’
interest in the net fair value of acquirees’ identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the
cost of investment at the time of common control
combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each
of the combining entities or businesses from the
earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under
common control or since their respective dates of
incorporation/establishment, where this is a shorter
period, regardless of the date of the common control
combination. All intra-group balances, transactions,
unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions and dividends are eliminated on
consolidation.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Business combinations, other than business
combinations under common control, are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair
values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability that is a financial instrument and within
the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value either recognised in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
If the contingent consideration is not within the scope
of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the
appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31
December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss
is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of,
the goodwill associated with the operation disposed
of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, construction contract assets,
financial assets and goodwill), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’'s recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’'s or cash-generating unit's
value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESTHTHERHBRE

140

EREREEERBEARA

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to profit or loss of the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss of the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in the period in which it arises.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

(%)
FEMEEZREE)

BMEBEENEERTERRBEAKE
CERER - AL EREER - 5t
RRBeRE DEBARRRFEER
B8 ZABEXRWRAEFIHSHEEERE
BZHEEZEEZFERR - BER
BhEAEEFAHEEER REMEEEK
AR EREDREEENEENTZHE
BERERIMR -

REEREHRSFGEELTHRETE
ERRORERBEE TBFHENA R
Lo MEREAZETR @ AlEHA
oS - EMAEETEERN WEEER
ZEA AR TeROERREE(R
BRRINER ZRERE - RO ZHE
TR B EFEY ERZIAE EE
SRR (B E5 18 T R e B E < AR B (F1BR
ERFTEEH) - BEREBRER
EEHEFAREREBEERER

= Nz
B e



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESTHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
profit or loss of the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write-off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

4% — 5%
10% — 20%
over the shorter of

Land and buildings
Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements
the lease terms
and 25%
Furniture, fixtures and 20% — 25%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20% — 25%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE —

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit
or loss of the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents plant and
machinery under construction, which is stated at cost
less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
installation. Construction in progress is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair
value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be finite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment annually either individually or at
the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets
are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Technology know-how

Purchased technology know-how is stated at cost
less any impairment losses and is amortised on the
straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 10
to 19 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss of the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE —

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other
than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included in
property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss
so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge
over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets,
and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating
leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial investments. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case
of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESTHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position
at fair value with positive net changes in fair value
presented as other income and gains and negative
net changes in fair value presented as finance
costs in profit or loss of the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. These net
fair value changes do not include any dividends or
interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in
HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains
in profit or loss of the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in profit or loss of the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in finance costs for loans and in other
expenses for receivables.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in unlisted equity
investments. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither
classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair
value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair
value, with unrealised gains or losses recognised as
other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment
is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss of the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in other income and gains, or until the investment
is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss of the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in other expenses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
profit or loss of the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as other income and
gains in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and
intention to sell its available-for-sale financial assets
in the near term are still appropriate. When, in rare
circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the
assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-
for-sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the
date of reclassification becomes its new amortised
cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit
or loss of the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the
maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If
the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to
the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement in the asset. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
and that loss event have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’'s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in profit or loss of the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to other expenses in profit
or loss of the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE -

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset
that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net
of any principal payment and amortisation) and its
current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognised in the profit or loss of the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment below its cost. The determination of what
is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in profit or loss of the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income — is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in profit or loss of the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed
through profit or loss of the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Increases
in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE —

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as loans and borrowings. The Group determines
the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
bills payables, other payables and accruals, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings and Convertible
Bonds.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Trade and bills payables and other payables

They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Loans and borrowings (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in profit or loss of the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Convertible Bonds

Convertible Bonds issued by the Group that contain
both financial liability and equity components are
classified separately into respective liability and
equity components on initial recognition. On initial
recognition, the fair value of the Convertible Bonds
is determined using the binomial model that takes
into account factors specific to the Convertible
Bonds. Liability component is then determined using
the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debts. The remainder is allocated to the
conversion option and is included in equity as equity
component of the Convertible Bonds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The equity component will remain in equity until
conversion or redemption of the bond.

When the bonds are converted, the equity component
of the Convertible Bonds and the carrying amount of
the liability component at the time of conversion are
transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the bonds are
redeemed, the equity component of the Convertible
Bonds is released directly to retained profits.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESTHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss of the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired
(treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted
from equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Company’s own equity instruments. Any
difference between the carrying amount and the
consideration is recognised in equity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

The non-current assets of the photovoltaic power
generation projects that are included in the scope
of consolidation and are held for sale are classified
as inventories and are measured in the same way
as other inventories, including the borrowing costs
capitalised until they are ready for use.

If a photovoltaic power generation project held for
sale has been in operation for over one year and has
no corresponding purchase commitment, purchase
option or similar agreements, the non-current assets
related thereto are transferred from “Inventories” to
“Property, Plant and Equipment” in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar
in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the
Group on certain products are recognised based on
sales volume and past experience of the level of
repairs and returns, discounted to their present values
as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current
and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

REESEERLDA

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

24 TESTHTHERBE

(%)
BiE

HEBESHFEHREAERTCOETE
FHEFEEME)  BRARAREARKER
NETEME Yar ERAEEZH
B RIRERRE -

AR EERX - RIFTHER 2 BER
BMAETBEITEEMAZREFRNR
IR 2IE - BRIV ERER B RSN
BN KRB ABERIIBRERA

AEBYETEMREHRERRAMEL
MBEDIZHERBENRIERRER
NER EEENBRLTMREZER
-

Fi 8%
P85 RN E RORIE B - A B IA S
SVIERRTE B 2 BB At 2 M 2 oK
BB RSN ER -

BT MBEREcNBRBEEENAG
TRBRBESHREERIAARERZ
ME(RBBED)  EEAKEEZAH
EERRTRERED - RBHAB
W% E B E SRR E S 2 Bt E o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

(%)
FRS®L (&)

EXEFRBINERBEEANEEHIRE
EEAEZHEREEMBRERERZ
REEMERCMAE R ZHETRE
=

EXEHBRBE A RARNE R EZ8E
R - BRIE -

s EEMBEAFENEYSEREEL
—HRYFEHEHFAERHERT
S S E MK ERTUEN B
ERFE R HTZEERAEM
EE R

e HERENMBARGHEIERN
EREZEmMs  MEREZRRLDZ
] Al TR G SR E B BN A B AS
KAIBE 2 B E IR o

EERIRE E Ty BT A A AR E S =
B AR AR R M AR AR IEA
IR T AR - BEHRIBEE Z FER A
BRI RE K S A FERR T A 45 85 AT HUR E
2R - ARIR B IEE 2 LR AHIEA
BERR - BIE

s HUMBEREZHEEMIRELTHREA
BEDAVNSHRA-RLIFEHKE
HRAERZERIEHEHNK
ERBE N RBRERTEZR S
TCEESREMEL R

A

k ANNUAL REPORT 2014

&
-
i

—

161



162

EREREEERBEARA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE -

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and released to the statement of profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the
following bases:

(@) from the manufacture of equipment and
turnkey production lines, on the percentage of
completion basis, pursuant to which costs to
complete a contract are estimated and revenue
is recognised based on the estimated progress
to completion, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Construction contracts”
below, depending on the structure and terms of
arrangement;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

=
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Revenue recognition (continued)

(b)

i

+~,;§§€

R 5

=X

from sale of goods (including the photovoltaic
power generation projects) are recognised when
the goods have been delivered and title thereto
has been transferred. Sale of photovoltaic power
generation projects whose non-current assets
are classified as inventories are recognised under
“Revenue” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for
the total price of the shares of the photovoltaic
power generation projects plus the amount of
the net borrowings relating to the facility (total
debt less current assets). At the same time,
the related inventories are derecognised with a
charge to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. The
difference between the two amounts represents
the operating profit or loss obtained from the
sale. Each photovoltaic power generation project
adopts the legal structure of a private limited
liability company, the shares of which are fully
consolidated in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements;

from the rendering of services, when the
services are rendered;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract
amount and appropriate amounts from variation
orders, claims and incentive payments. Contract
costs incurred comprise direct materials, the costs
of subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed construction
overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is
recognised on the percentage of completion method,
measured by reference to the proportion of costs
incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the
relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as
they are anticipated by management. Where contract
costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the
surplus is treated as an amount due from contract
customers. Where progress billings exceed contract
costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due to contract customers.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESTHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’'s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration
in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees for grants after 7 November 2002 is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial model, further
details of which are given in note 34 to the financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefit expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit
or loss of the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award
is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control
of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification
of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.
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EREREEERBEARA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE -

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit
or loss of the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the PRC are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute to a certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss of the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss of the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
differences on the items whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE -

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of comprehensive
income are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss of the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHTHERHBRE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and
used for the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets,
a capitalisation rate ranging between 3.0% and 8.7%
(2013: between 5.6% and 6.6%) has been applied to
the expenditure on the individual assets.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are
classified as a separate allocation of retained profits
within the equity section of the statement of
financial position, until they have been approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders
and declared, they are recognised as a liability.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below.

(i) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. Further details are given in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Construction contracts

As further explained in note 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statements, revenue and
profit recognition on contract work is dependent
on the estimation of the total outcome of the
construction contract, as well as the work
performed to date. In addition, actual outcomes
in terms of total contract costs may be higher
or lower than those estimated at the end of the
reporting period, which would affect the revenue
and profit recognised in future years.

Significant assumptions are required to estimate
the total contract costs that will affect whether
any provision is required for foreseeable
losses. The estimates are made based on
past experience and knowledge of project
management.

Impairment assessment on property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets of the Group are reviewed by
management for possible impairment when
events or changes in an operating environment
indicate that the carrying amounts of such
assets may not be fully recoverable. In
determining the recoverable amounts of these
assets, expected cash flows to be generated by
the assets are discounted to their present value,
which involves significant level of estimates
relating to sales volume, selling prices and
manufacturing and other operating costs. When
a decline in an asset’s recoverable amount has
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to its
estimated recoverable amount. Further details
are given in notes 15 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iv)

(v)

EREREEERBEARA

Impairment assessment on trade receivables

The Group regularly conducts assessments on
possible losses resulting from the inability of
debtors to settle the amounts due to the Group.
The assessment is based, inter alia, on the age
of the debt and the creditworthiness of the
debtors. If the financial condition of the debtors
deteriorates, allowance for doubtful receivables
would be required.

Impairment assessment and net realisable
value of inventories

Inventories of the Group are carried at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Management
conducts assessments on the net realisable
value of inventories by reference to their age,
obsolescence, estimated net selling prices
and other economic conditions of the markets
in which the Group’'s customers operate. If
the actual selling prices of inventories are
substantially less than those expected due to
an adverse market condition or other factors, an
impairment loss on inventories may result.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong
Kong and the PRC. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets

The realisability of the deferred tax assets
mainly depends on whether sufficient future
profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are less than expected,
a reversal of the deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for
the period in which such a reversal takes place.

TEEFEE

(%)
{5t
(vi)

(vii)

THBEREE)

Fris®
AEEEBRBERTBEZRAE
B o EHEEMSHZBER - A%
BAEREXAE - E LR XA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS AR MY R

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

4. RESTATEMENT 4.

As a result of the acquisition of Hanergy Solar UK
Limited (“Hanergy UK") and Global Solar Energy,
Inc. (“GSE") (as detailed in note 36(a)) in 2014, the
relevant line items in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for

75

B W= Z—mF I EHanergy Solar
UK Limited ([Hanergy UK) % Global
Solar Energy, Inc. ([GSED (5 1§ R
ffsX36(a) BE_E—=%F+ =B
_‘f’ Elﬂzirzzﬁ/\?@ﬁu&ﬁﬁﬂzﬁ@

the year ended 31 December 2013, the consolidated e _f——¢‘|’ “A= +—A
statement of financial position as at 31 December Z,iv?.é.\ﬁﬁk}ij:,ﬁi‘% ER—_B—=F+_
2013 and the consolidated statement of changes in A=+—HBWERaERE *@H@Z*ﬁ 8 4R
equity as at 31 December 2013 have been restated HE ST -
as follows:
Deemed
contribution
The Group from the then
(as previously Hanergy shareholder of The Group
reported) UK GSE Hanergy UK Elimination (as restated)
~ EfHanergy -
428 UKEBR? 5
(ME2#)  Hanergy UK GSE BiETE B (Z51)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT FAT FAT
Consolidated statement of S-ZEE/ARR
profit or loss and other &ﬁﬁﬁ%@%ﬁ
comprehensive income for
2013;
Revenue WA 3,274,425 6,781 2,585 - — 3,283,791
Profit/loss) for the year ERarl/ (BR) 2,069,010 (13,231) (37,755) - = 2,018,024
Other comprehensive income for £ 12 Bl -
the vear, net of tax et 177,011 (703) (30) - - 176,338
Total comprehensive income for  EE2ElEE%E
the year 2,246,081 (13,934) (37,785) = — 2,194,362
Consolidated statement of RZE-=F
financial position as at +-A=+-Hz
31 December 2013: SAMBRRE
Non-current assets FRIEE 9423451 4,746 127,944 - — 9556141
Current assets THEE 9,197,288 18,291 40,069 21,958 (21,958) 9,255,648
Total assets EEAE 18,620,739 23,037 168,013 21,958 (21958 18,811,789
Current liablties THEE 2624011 36,971 17,376 - (21,988 2,556,400
Non-current liablities FRaefk 324,501 - 89,582 = = 414,083
Total liabilities BlELE 2,848,512 36,971 106,958 - (21958) 2,970,483
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(RfE)%E 16,772,207 (13,934) 61,055 21,958 — 1580130
Equity attributable to the owners BHATIER Al
of the parent o 16,772,227 = = = — 1677222
Deemed contribution BIETE - = 98,840 21,958 = 120,798
Total comprehensive income for  FE2EMNEERE
the year - (13,934 (37,785) — - (51,719)
Total equity EREE 15,772,207 (13,934) 61,085 21,958 — 15,841,306
Consolidated statement of RZE-=F
changes in equity as at T ASTRH
31 December 2013; GoEREIR
Equity attributable to the owners  BAFER AE(7ER
of the parent 16,772,221 (13,934) 61,055 21,958 - 15,841,306
Total equity EalE 15,772,227 (13,934) 61,055 21,958 — 15,841,306

ZepERESEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. R&EpWER
The Group identifies operating segments and REBBERANTEESE i&%ﬁi\?&%@t
prepares segment information based on the regular ﬁﬁaﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ,%%i‘% D hEZLE

internal financial information reported to the executive
directors for their decisions about resources allocation
to the Group's business components and for their
review of the performance of those components.
The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors are
determined according to the Group’'s major products
and service lines.

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their products and
services and has two reportable operating segments
as follows:

— manufacture of equipment and turnkey
production lines for the manufacture of both
amorphous silicon based and CIGS thin film solar
photovoltaic modules (“Manufacturing”);

— building solar farms or rooftop power stations
and the sale of the power stations once
connected to the electricity grid (“Build and
Sell”)

Management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit or
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit or loss
before tax. The adjusted profit or loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit before
tax except that interest income, finance costs as well
as head office and corporate expenses are excluded
from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, equity

: %ﬁf’ﬁtﬂ?&iZi%W*EEﬁ%éﬂ
EEJ%%'J%%%"*B&%%‘% D EPEFL o AT
EXZE2RoABTBEHAZEZBEHD
TRAEETBERNMRGERETE

REEBENME $EI$E%FﬁEEu%&
MRIGEBEBEL - B MW E 2HE
EoBEmT

—  BUEWE MR EW (CIGS)EE
K5 8E J IR 1 B8 R iR B AR
EER(SEE]) -

— BEAGREBURETAESY - Mi—
EREEMAHER B ([2E
TMSHE]D)

EREBERASEEED 2 FE
MELBREIRD B KA DB RR 2
RIE © 23 FRBTIIRGE F] 2 35 305 7
kBB ERBH A G N NERTE
)M o LABR AR HER
ZA B ARNEE 2 BRB AR 2 5T E
ETE‘@ B AT E N EEN BN

CHBER URERERNEER
gzo

DHBEAETBEBELERBEE  RAT

investments at fair value through profit or loss, BIERRES s E=RE - AJfEER
available-for-sale investment and other unallocated BEREMKRDEEHRERRTCEEE -

head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

ﬁ%%%%ﬁéﬁ%%%%ﬁ °

Segment liabilities exclude Convertible Bonds, DEHEED &?‘ﬁ—ﬁﬁ‘ﬂxﬁ% FEIER IR
deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head BENE ﬂﬂiﬁ C4a f}#%ﬁg)}u;%i%
office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are & BRE = E\{f}}%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ °
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with DEEHEERBREI2ERE HTZEﬁﬁ
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to MEBHEETE=FERZHEEBE
third parties at the then prevailing market prices. R e
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE —Z—

ME+=—A=+—RBLFE)

REFHER (&)

(continued)
Manufacturin Build and Sell Total
Year Ended 31 December 2014 BE-EZ-ME+-A=1-ALEE ﬁlg BEAHE At
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T FAET FAET
Segment Revenue 2EHBA
Sales to external customers AR HE 5,983,873 3,631,155 9,615,028
Segment Results AEEE 3,954,434 470,956 4,425,390
Including: a
Research and development costs FrEmA (513,966) = (513,966)
Reconciliation of segment results: fyi/ﬁ%faﬁég
Segment results DL 4,425,390
Interest income B 6,976
Finance costs SRR (2,997)
Impairment of an available-for-sale HEHERERE
investment o (23,610)
Loss on disposal of an available-for-sale  HERAHERE 2 EE
investment (12,274)
Unallocated other income and gains FAOMEMBA Rz 1,336
Corporate and other unallocated expenses ¥R EMANEER (104,077)
Profit before tax BAT& A 4,290,744
Segment Assets AHEE 22,803,931 4,682,877 27,486,808
Reconciliation: 2
Elimination of intersegment receivables ¥[34 7 BB (3,418,083)
Deferred tax assets EERRAE 76,404
Corporate and other unallocated assets PERERASDEE 830,304
Total assets EERE 24,975,433
Segment Liabilities ARG 3,103,433 4,040,171 7,143,604
Reconciliation: HE
Elimination of intersegment payables A UEEH (3,418,083)
Deferred tax liabilities BLHAR G 561,995
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities SEREMAAIEEE 195,242
Total liabilities REAS 4,482,758
Other Segment Information HipHEs
Depreciation and amortisation Tﬁ%&%ﬁ] 233,002 5,057 238,059
Reconciliation: % .
Corporate and other unallocated t%&ﬂﬁ*ﬁ@i?ﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁ
depreciation and amortisation 3,721
Total depreciation and amortisation WELEERE 241,786
Capital expenditure * ARRT* 128,809 117,339 246,148
Reconciliation: B }
Corporate and other unallocated capital ~ A¥REMAIRARER
expenditure 203,566
Total capital expenditure EARLEE 449,714
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, @ EARAIBREAEME  BEEXE

plant and equipment and intangible assets.

ZepERESEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. R&EFHWER (&)
(continued)
l\/lanufactur'mg Build and Sell Total
Year Ended 31 December 2013 BEZE-ZHT-RA=1-HIEE Ui RENHE At
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$000
FET FET TET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(Z51) (231) (25)
Segment Revenue DHEA
Sales to external customers MR PEE 3,277,010 6,781 3,283,791
Segment Results PHEE 2,362,584 (28,055) 2,334,529
Including: B
Research and development costs TR A (194,273) (790) (195,063)
Reconciliation of segment results: PHEEHE
Segment results PEEE 2,334,529
Interest income HEKA 4,342
Finance costs HBER (57,026
Unallocated other income and gains AR Hﬂﬂ”&)\&”& 45,726
Corporate and other unallocated expenses R EMARPEER (50,258)
Profit before tax eyl 2,277,313
Segment Assets AHEE 17,608,082 3,314,890 20,922,972
Reconciliation: %
Elimination of intersegment receivables ﬁiﬁ/ﬁaﬁf‘ﬁﬁ%u& 2,298,666)
Available-for-sale investment AfEERE 85,800
Deferred tax assets EERREE 23,420
Equity investment at fair value through  ATEJIERER 7 BRRE
profit or loss 11,698
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ SEREMANEEE 66,565
Total assets BERE 18,811,789
Segment Liabilities ARG 1,142,691 2,914,982 4,057,673
Reconciliation: E7d
Elimination of intersegment payables “Tié]“* S 5 2,298,666)
Convertible Bonds ARES 845,584
Deferred tax liabilities BLHEAR 324,501
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities tEREMANEEE 41,391
Total liabilities BEAE 2,970,483
Other Segment Information HttaHER
Depreciation and amortisation ?ﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁ 129,611 520 130,131
Reconciliation: % .
Corporate and other unallocated PEREMAPRE R
depreciation and amortisation 1,769
Total depreciation and amortisation REREHLEE 131,900
Capital expenditure * é“mﬂi* 775,903 5,284 781,187
Reconciliation: g
Corporate and other unallocated capital m%&ﬁﬁﬁi FRERE S
expenditure 4,183
Total capital expenditure BEARY B8 785,370
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, @ EARAIBREAEME  BEEXE

plant and equipment and intangible assets.

AR EE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—Z—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE)

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. ReEHER (2

(continued)

Geographical information i & & K

(a) Revenue from external customers (a) HEINIKEEZWKA
Group
AEH

2014 2013
ik — T =F
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

(Restated)

(&%)

Mainland China R A 9,475,570 3,243,704
United Kingdom e 97,936 6,781
United States EEH 25,854 2,585
Sweden T £ - 30,721

Others EMER 15,668 —

9,615,028 3,283,791

The revenue information above is based on the EXZWABRTIBRERF ZFT1E
locations of the customers. iy o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(continued)
Geographical information (continued)

(b) Non-current assets

REFTER (&)

HEER(E)
(b) FREBEE

Group

AEE
2014 2013

= b T —

HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
(Restated)
(E51)

Mainland China R
United States ESE
Germany =
Sweden T g
Hong Kong B
United Kingdom HEH
Others HMEIR

1,486,544 1,387,569

191,588 127,944
13,886 =
23,553 4,858
10,932 6,486

4,155 4,746
2,956 =

1,733,614 1,631,603

The non-current asset information above is
based on the locations of the assets and
excludes goodwill, available-for-sale investment
and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue of HK$5,957,936,000 (2013: HK$3,274,425,000)
was derived from sales by the Manufacturing segment
to Hanergy Affiliates.

Revenue of HK$3,378,250 (2013: Nil) was derived
from sales of solar power stations by Build and Sell
segment to a customer.

EXZERBEEERIRIBEEE
ZHEBRTEERE  AIHEEE
BREMEREFIREE -

ERTEEFZEH

I A 5,957,936,0008 L (ZE— =4 :
3,274,425,0008 7T ) Ty 2k B &LiE 5 E0 A
BB N TIEITINE o

WA 3,378,250 L (T —=4F : &)

PR EREREES BB HEY
ARELE L -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—Z—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE)

6. REVENUE 6. WA
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, mainly WA BIREB 2 E%E%E  TEHRET
represents an appropriate proportion of contract ZEHREE B ELHOBRARME P HE
revenue of construction contracts and the sale of EXRGee B R AGREXREBIREE
solar power stations, rooftop power stations and solar TEE UL R 5T R FEBEWA -

photovoltaic panels to customers.
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAZAHTIT -

Group

rEE
2014 2013
CE-MF el
HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)

Revenue WA
Contract revenue =X OLON 5,955,293 3,243,704
Sale of solar power stations HE KNGS iL 3,378,250 —
Sale of solar photovoltaic panels SHE KI5 RE N IR E AR 169,693 2,585
Sales of rooftop power stations HERTEE Uk 111,792 6,781
Research and development revenue A58 & BAZEIA - 30,721

9,615,028 3,283,791
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

7. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7. HttWAR Wz
An analysis of other income and gains is as follows: HibUg A R U DT R ¢

Group
AEE

2014 2013
b T =
HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FEIT
(Restated)

(E%)
Government grants* BT AL * 57,379 39,153
Reversal of other payables B 5 SRIEHE [E] - 40,319
Foreign exchange differences, net MERZER - JH5R 37,848 34,968
Fair value gain on an equity BAFEYERERER
investment at fair value through R E 2 A ERE
profit or loss — 4,766
Bank interest income HRITH EWA 6,976 4,342
Interest income on overdue trade 60 B FE WOR BE BB A B
receivables from Hanergy Affiliates B 558 2 F B WA 205,852 —
Gain on disposal of an equity HEZAFEIERERZ
investment at fair value through R E 2 W
profit or loss — 2,508
Gain on sales of spare parts HETHMH 2 W 1,870 1,610
Others H A, 13,567 6,846
323,492 134,512
a Government grants are tax refunds for the research * B EREEAEBRAI 2 AE
and innovation works of the Group’s subsidiaries [ B8~ m A9 B ST R BT TAEMAR @
to which the related expenses have already been AR o
incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—Z—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE)

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MKEHM
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MEEBR OMNOT
Group
rEH
2014 2013
i S T —
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&E5)
Imputed interest expenses on the AR EH 2 HEF B
Convertible Bonds (note 30) (H1:£30) 1,296 56,025
Interest on other borrowings from a  FEfTREE A T HME 2 A &
related company 2,457 322
Interest on other borrowings from FERHERESE = HHMERZ
unrelated third parties B 16,625 25
Interest on bank borrowings RITEERE 10,511 —
Interest on finance lease FENmERERE 1,701 679
Total interest expenses FEMZ 25 32,590 57,051
Less: capitalised interest 0 BARMEFE
(note 15, 20) (Btet 15, 20) (29,593) (25)
2,997 57,026
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. FANEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after REBZBADHEAME MR (GTA) T3
charging/(crediting): BH :
2014 2013
“E-MF e
HK$000 HK$ 000
(Restated)
(&E%1)
Crediting: SN
Bank interest income (note 7) Eﬁﬂ E’J%U\(/WEIU 6,976 4,342
Interest income on overdue trade QHHFE”Q;%HZ tBARIE S
receivables from Hanergy Affiliates RIE & LIﬁU\(/WEIU
(note 7) 205,852 —
Fair value gain on an equity BAFEIRN B 2 i
investment at fair value through éZ N EW S (AT 7)
profit or loss (note 7) — 4,766
Foreign exchange differences, net EH=R  FEME7)
(note 7) 37,848 34,968
Charging: Bk -
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN S
— Audit service — BT 10,844 5,057
— Others — Hftb 1,037 450
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEMIE(ME18)
(note 18) 144,168 95,570
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB RRETE
equipment (note 15) (H1z15) 97,618 36,330
Employee benefit expenses: EERAFX
Salaries, allowances and benefits in %% 2B EWH R
kind 691,486 226,198
Performance related and incentive BIERRES
payments 47,958 8,618
Contributions to retirement benefit RIRERIFT B K
schemes 32,599 6,282
Equity-settled share option PATE 25 45 B MO IRt BARE R 2
expenses 2,431 —
Sub-total INEt 774,474 241,098
Research and development costs GIREID RN 513,966 195,063
Impairment of an available-for-sale A SR ERE
investment 23,610 —
Impairment of trade receivables* B 5 e W SR IE R E * — 39
Write-down of inventories to net F & MRz Al &35 % B
realisable value — 277
Loss on disposal of an available-for- HERMEHERE 2 EiE
sale investment 12,274 —
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE « HENMKREER 2
plant and equipment =] 39 152
Loss on disposal of equity investment ﬁ§T§@$1§§\J@EEA? 2
at fair value through profit or loss* miIvE 2 e 4,269 =
Minimum lease payments under KEHE  ERHES
operating leases:
Land and buildings T RIEF 99,687 39,637
Equipment B 20,952 20,682
* These items are included in ‘other expenses’ on the * ZEBEHFAARAEBR ZEABRLE
face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss WEEWEE [ HeER R -

and other comprehensive income of the Group.
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10. INCOME TAX

The Company is incorporated in the Bermuda and
conduct its primary business through its subsidiaries
in the PRC and other countries. Under the current
laws of the Bermuda, the Company incorporated in
Bermuda is not subject to tax on income or capital
gains. Hong Kong Profits Tax rate was 16.5% during
the years reported. The Company’'s Hong Kong
subsidiary has both Hong Kong-sourced and non-
Hong Kong-sourced income. The latter is not subject
to Hong Kong Profits Tax and the related expenses
are non-tax-deductible. For the Hong Kong-sourced
income, no provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
was made as such operations did not generate any
assessable profits arising from Hong Kong during the
year. Furthermore, there are no withholding taxes in
Hong Kong on the remittance of dividends.

Effective from 1 January 2008, the PRC's statutory
corporate income tax (“CIT") rate is 25%. Certain of
the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC were designated
as “High New Technology Enterprise” and were
applicable for a preferential CIT rate of 15%. The
Company’s other PRC subsidiaries are subject to
income tax at 25% on their respective taxable
incomes as calculated in accordance with the CIT Law
and its relevant regulations (“the actual method"”)
except for Apollo Precision (Kunming) Yuanhong
Limited (“Apollo Kunming”). In 2013, the Company
received written confirmation from the local tax
bureau that Apollo Kunming was taxed on a deemed
profit method based on the deemed profits at the
25% statutory tax rate. Practicably, the CIT was
collected approximately at deemed profits determined
at 10% of the sales. The Company’'s subsidiary in
Sweden is subject to income tax rate at 22%. The
Company’s subsidiary in United Kingdom is subject to
income tax rate at 21%. The Company’s subsidiaries
in United States are subject to income tax rate at
41% to 43%. The Company's subsidiaries in Germany
are subject to income tax rate at 29%.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

10.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. B8 (&)

Under the prevailing CIT Law and its relevant
regulations, any dividends paid by the Company's
PRC subsidiaries from their earnings derived after 1
January 2008 to the Company’s Hong Kong subsidiary
are subject to a 5% or 10%, depending on the
applicability of the Sino-Hong Kong tax treaty, PRC
dividend withholding tax. For the Group, the historical
applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. No
provision for income tax was made for the overseas
subsidiaries as there were no assessable profits
during the current and prior years.

RIBERITREEMEPUARERBESR
RZZZNF—A—HR  ARAZFP
BB A FRMARE 2 BEENEBRF
R 2 EMBEEBNTEZRER
5% 3% 10% * 5 F P 78 T Kt 72 P B AR
EEMBRERBR - MAKEMS -
BEBRARESE5% - Hitt - NEEZA
HE-ZEENF-A—HELZARNA
ZERHBERZ KB AR DR BE
IS TEIORL -

H b ith 77 FERBUS A < RIB VIR AR E
REMEREHREITZHEGNE - i
RERFERBEFE  BIHBLTE
ik e e s GV S I O 3
SRR -

Group REE
2014 2013
ik T —
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax: BERRIA -
— The PRC —
Income tax expense for the year REZEHBEZ L 870,790 178,225
Overprovision in respect of prior BEFELEE
years (71,278) (8,471)
799,512 169,754
Deferred tax charge — The PRC RERIAS ) — P E
(note 32) (K1at32) 183,562 89,535
Total tax charge for the year NEFHE S L4 983,074 259,289
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE —Z—

0. INCOME TAX (continued) 10.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions
in which the Company and the majority of its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the

ME+=—A=+—RBLFE)

8% @)

BRARRIREKRIED
Bl 2 75 TE B S
2 B BR T
XHEERNAT ¢

oM BN B R AT
R EEARBA R
ERREFE R

effective tax rates is as follows:

2014 2013
—E-F et

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FE&T

(Restated)

(E51)

Profit before tax 758 A1 A 4,290,744 2,277,313

Tax at the statutory tax rates RIEEREFTE 2 IR 1,072,686 588,364
Effect of different tax rates for BEERNEMEEE R

specific entities or enacted by local ~ ZFRIF Rz g2

authorities (174,092) (98,843)
Adjustments in respect of current tax B7E B ENHATE 18 2 A%

of previous periods 212 (8,471)
Effect of the deemed profit method — RIEEFH A2 28 (361,397) (329,216)
Income not subject to tax BAGRKA - (7,247)
Expenses not deductible for tax PRI R X2 420 2,275
Effect of tax reduction inside the PRI SR 2 &

PRC (14,637) (14,605)
Tax losses not recognised KR TIAE R 240,564 34,925
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on 5% TEHB A AN E AP BB A

the distributable profits of the RIAI DR E F 2 7 &

Group's PRC subsidiaries 222,265 92,764
Others Hitb (2,947) (663)
Tax charge at the Group's effective  IEAEBEEERERAE 2

rate B 983,074 259,289

11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE B AREE AEMLZF

OWNERS OF THE PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to the owners of
the parent for the year ended 31 December 2014 of
HK$3,307,748,000 (2013 restated: HK$2,018,024,000)
includes a loss of HK$67,317,000 (2013: HK$59,285,000)

HEz_Z—
FEBRABEARABREESE ST
3,307,748,000 B (= FE —=FFJ% :
2,018,024,000387T) &

mME+-_A=+—RH1

BREERARAHT

which has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company (note 35(b)).

ZepERESEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

HRERANEIE 2 E 167,317,000 7T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE —

12.

13.

DIVIDENDS

On 24 March 2014, the board of directors of the
Company proposed the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.015 per ordinary share out of the contributed
surplus through transfer from share premium of the
Company, totaling HK$429,130,000 in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2013. On 15 May 2014, the
annual general meeting of the Company approved the
share premium cancellation by way of cancellation of
HK$200,000,000 out of the account standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company.
At the same time, a final dividend of HK$0.015 per
share (totaling HK$429,300,000 as at the dividend
record date) out of the contributed surplus account
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2013 was
approved on 15 May 2014 and was subsequently paid
in June 2014.

The board does not recommend to declare a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO THE OWNERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
the owners of the parent, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 32,969,132,000 (2013:
22,168,542,000) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to the
owners of the parent, adjusted to reflect the interest
on the Convertible Bonds, where applicable (see
below). The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used
in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential

ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

12.

13.

—HE+-RA=+—RALFE)

iR =

RZZE—NE=A=+MH XAAE
EEEREBERBEARRAZRMEE

REMBHPREBZE T —=—F1+=
A=tT—HLEFEZREREEGRT B
§%0.0157%8 ot & % /429,130,000
TLeR-_E—WFRA+THAB  EAR
AREAFAE FEIEFHERDEE
R AR ABEBEHEARARMEER
2 Bk © %8 200,000,000 7T © BB
—T-NFERATRHBHERERRHG
PFYNEE-_TE—=F+=-A=+—H
IEFEZRAREERR0.015 87T (AR

Btk BHAE /\7%429 300,000 7T ) -

WHEEBER T —WFERNAIRS ©

EEETRAERAE T
A=+—BiFE KRS -

ME+=

BRARFERAEEZRER

EREARFZEBEIRESARES

ABIEFEREAURFADEITEER

2 DNHE 19 8032,969,132,000 % (= F
—=4F : 22,168,542,000 )t EBH -

SREERNZSBDRESAREA
A FEAE B 208 ) A B2 48 58 B A [ R AT 42
REFzANEAEGHER - &
X)) o RERHE Z BB INETFHERS
FH{/E BERERBNZFANECERTE

BERHE - REBREEITESLEAE
BEEELRRSEARMEEET
BB Z I8 o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS AR MY R

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. BARIEEAELEBRERN &)
TO THE OWNERS OF THE PARENT

(continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per FIRER KSR R TEE 58 B 5t
share are based on: =
2013
—F—=
HK$'000
FET
(Restated)
(E31)
Earnings |
Profit attributable to the owners of BETEEREARBNZER
the parent, used in basic earnings AIHEE ANEE R
per share calculation 3,307,748 2,018,024
Imputed interest expenses on the ABRRES ZHEMERAX
Convertible Bonds (note 8) (H17#8) 1,296 56,025
Profit for the purpose of diluted RIEsTE SRR s R A 2 a F
earnings per share calculation 3,309,044 2,074,049
Number of shares
BB EE
Shares B 5
Weighted average number of ordinary F{EstEEREARET 2 F R
shares in issue during the year BT EBRINE T E
used in the basic earnings per
share calculation 32,969,132 22,168,542
Effect of dilution — weighted average #8582 — L@ MNE
number of ordinary shares: g
Assumed issue at no consideration FARBARIEITEMB RTT
on deemed exercise of all share PR M (B BT
options outstanding during the
year 567,521 1,163,070
Deemed conversion of all REBE A R R ESH
Convertible Bonds 2,551,087 3,403,749
Deemed exercise by Hanergy RAIEZ R E A TIEPT B R1T
Holding of all outstanding 150 SR i 1
subscription rights 7,951,489 14,248,792

Weighted average number of ordinary F{EstESREERT 2 FER

shares in issue during the year BEITE B INETFTE
used in diluted earnings per share
calculation 44,039,229 40,984,153
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION AND KEY
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for
the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange and Section 78 of Schedule 11 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), with
reference to Section 161 of the predecessor Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

14, EERFETHRAEFMRE
EEEBEAEME

BB FTE R EmAR (T EWRAD
REBRAUEH(F622F )R+ —5
781& - WA ER BB R AMEHI(E3I2
BE)F 161 (BRI AFEEEREET
BABHMAT

2014 2013
= b —T =
HK$’000 HK$°000
FEx FET
Fees we 2,315 1,468
Other emoluments: Emme
Salaries, allowances and benefits in  #4& - 2B REWHE
kind 9,307 11,650
Discretionary bonuses B IEAT — 835
Equity-settled share-based payments LM%E HEE RS 105 —
Contributions to retirement benefit RRFBFIET B R
schemes 71 46
9,483 12,531
11,798 13,999

The directors and chief executive represent the key
management personnel of the Company.

During the year, a director was granted share options,
in respect of his services to the Group, under the
share option scheme of the Company, further details
of which are set out in note 34(b) to the financial
statements. The fair value of these options, which
has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss
over the vesting period, was determined as at the
date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the
above directors’ and chief executive's remuneration
and key management emoluments’ disclosures.

EERFETBRAEBEARAIZZEE
AE °

RAFE  BEBEAQARERETS - —
BESEPRERAER 2 RBER THER
T BRI B IRER M E34(b) o Z
LHEREZ2ATERGBHATIERE
PR WREHEABEE - MHEAKR
FEMBMEZEBEFALAEER
FETBRAETHREZZEEAEMS
A o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—Z—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 14 EBERFETHRAEBHFMRE

REMUNERATION AND KEY EEBAEME )
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS (continued)

In prior years, certain directors were granted share RBEFE ETESHHESEHAER
options, in respect of their services to the Group, ZIREBREARAQGERESSERE
under the share option scheme of the Company, R #E - E— S IBEH R ®mE M &+
further details of which are set out in note 34(b) to 34(b) °

the financial statements.

(a) Executive directors and independent non- (a) BITEBRBIUFHTES
executive directors

Salaries, Contributions

allowances Equity-settled to retirement

and benefits ~ Discretionary  share-based benefit
in kind bonuses payments schemes Total

e 2R NEREEN  RNENGE
ke EOAR BRRL RGA i3 &
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS00  HKS'000
&7 TEn [ [ &7 &7

2014 ZE-PE
Executive directors; HHEES:
Mr. Li Hejun EEREN 245 - - - - 245
Mr. Dai Frank Mingfang Dai Frank Mingfang 15 381 3147 - - 17 3,545
Dr. Feng Dianbo (i BEREL/) 245 - - - - 245
Mr. Liu Min i YRR/ 245 - - - - 245
Mr. Chen Li R%E 21 1,083 - - 17 1,321
Dr. Lam Yat Ming Eddie ()~ #—B& L/ 147 1,659 - 105 1 1922
M. Li Guangmin ZERAE 21 90 - - 17 1,188
Mr. Li Yuanmin (v SnRELY 68 1,005 - - 3 1076
M. Hui Ka Wah, Ronnie J.P. (v 3FREXEAFAL W) 68 1,463 - - 6 1537
1,841 9,307 - 105 n 11,32
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEE:
directors:
Ms. Zhao Lan BEXT 135 - - - - 135
Mr. Wang Tongbo EE )i 13 - - - - 13
Professor Xu Zheng (vi R W) 68 - - - _ 68
Dr. Wang Wenjing fvii TXER L 9 - - - - 9
Mr. Wong Wing Ho (i) BERL A 4 - - - - 4
I - - - - 44
Total emoluments “E-IEHE
for the year 2014 ks 2315 9307 - 10 7 11,798
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 14 EBERFETHRAEHFMRE

REMUNERATION AND KEY EEBEAEME 2
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Executive directors and independent non- (a) BFITESRBIUFHTES(E)
executive directors (continued)
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
and benefits  Discretionary benefit
Fees in kind bonuses schemes Total
e EZHR BAERIEE
ik Enila BT 1 GHI

HK§000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  AKS'000
TAT TAL TAT TAT TAT

2013 “E-=F

Executive directors: Yrgs:
Mr. Dai Frank Mingfang Dai Frank Mingfang 7t 364 3,261 126 14 3,764
Mr. Hui Ka Wah, Ronnie J.P. FREL A AL 189 4,225 = 15 4,429
Mr. Li Guangmin ZERLE 189 542 210 5 946
Dr. Li Yuanmin EREL 189 2,539 500 7 3,235
Mr. Chen Li BhkE 189 1,083 = 5 1277
1,120 11,650 835 46 13,651

Independent non-executive directors: B FHTES

Ms. Zhao Lan BELL 116 = = = 116
Mr. Wong Wing Ho BELE 116 = = — 116
Mr. Wang Tongbo IREEE 116 - - - 116
348 = = = 348
Total emoluments for the year 2013~ —Z—=FHe % 1468 11,650 835 46 13,999
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 14 EBERFETHRAEBHFMRE

REMUNERATION AND KEY EEBAEME 2
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Executive directors and independent non- (a) BITESRBIUFHTES(E)

executive directors (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Mr. Li Hejun was appointed as an executive
director and chairman of the Company with
effect from 15 May 2014.

Dr. Feng Dianbo was appointed as an executive
director and deputy chairman of the Company
with effect from 15 May 2014.

Mr. Liu Min was appointed as an executive
director and deputy chairman of the Company
with effect from 15 May 2014.

(ii)

(iii)

FHERLECEZTERATHN
TESRER  BH-ZT—NFH
Bt+RB#BER -

HERELEEZEREARRN
HOTEFREEFE BTN
FRATHBERER -

BIREAEBEZ T AKRQTNH
TESHEERE BH-T—NF
RA+EBREXR -

(iv) Dr. Lam Yat Ming Eddie was appointed as an (iv) M—ISETEEZEREARFTN
executive director and finance director of the BTESHRUBES H=-FT
Company with effect from 15 May 2014. —FERA+ABBER -

(v)  Mr. Li Yuanmin retired as executive director of (v) ZFrRRBTERERARBMITE
the Company with effect from 15 May 2014. ER%E B -_ZT—NWERA+H

AfEAE -

(vi)  Mr. Hui Ka Wah, Ronnie J.P. retired as finance (Vi) BAREEELFHLBRERR
director of the Company with effect from 15 R BESERS =T —N0
May 2014. FRATABMRENR -

(viii  Professor Xu Zheng was appointed as an (i) RIEHBEEEZEABILIENTT
independent non-executive director with effect EFE H_ZT-NFERATHEA
from 15 May 2014. RBAERK ©

(viiii Dr. Wang Wenjing was appointed as an (vii) EXFELEEZEABILIEHR
independent non-executive director with effect TEE BT —HmFNAT+=
from 13 August 2014. B4R °

(ix)  Mr. Wong Wing Ho retired as an independent (ix) BEXEREBREARADRRBIIE

HREEREARAR

non-executive director of the Company with
effect from 15 May 2014.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

BITESRS  BH-_ZT—WHFH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION AND KEY

14, EERFETHRAEFMRE
EEBEAEME 2

MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Executive directors and independent non-
executive directors (continued)

No emolument was paid by the Group to any
director as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office
during the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013.

There was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year included
two (2013: three) directors and chief executive
whose emoluments are included in the analysis
presented above. The emoluments payable
to the remaining three (2013: two) individuals
during the year are as follows:

(a) BITESERBIUFHTES(E)

HE-ZT—NFR=-Z—=F+=
A=+—BLFE A&EHE
MERNESINME - URSIEFEE
MARE B R IMAREB ERR
B - SkEABERRAE(E -

BE_Z-—NFR-_ZFT—=F+=
A=+— ii&ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%%
RES R ENERREAIE 2 &
HE o

(b) EEBESHFMAL

RAEE  AEBREHEEFHMA
TEEME(ZE—Z=ZF: =Z8)
EERFETHAE  HMeEH
REXHHT - FRERNBT =4
—ZE—=F :WB)ATZEHEm
™

Group
TEE
2014 2013
i B T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other emoluments e REMME 16,044 5,099
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 14 EBERFETHRAEBHFMRE

REMUNERATION AND KEY EEBEAEME 2

MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (continued) (b) EEEBREFMALE)
No emolument was paid by the Group to any top BHE_ZT-—NEFR-ZZT—=F+=
five highest paid individuals as an inducement A=+T—HLFE  ~NEEHER
to join or upon joining the Group, or as FAREERSFMA TS
compensation for loss of office during the years LARR 5| 18 &5 1A 2N 52 B s 7 ol AR
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. SEEARY - SKIEABERE -
The number of non-director and non-chief- e N FATSE ZIEEE NIEE
executive, highest paid employees whose BITHA S » &% MES A
remuneration fell within the following bands is T
as follows:

Number of employees

BEAR

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 BLE

2,500,000/ 7T — 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 BTE

3,000,00078 7T — 1
HK$3,000,000 and above 3,000,000/8 73 A £ 3 —
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. Y15 - BERRE

Group rEH
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
fixtures
Land and Construction Plant and and Motor
buildings in progress machinery equipment vehicles Total
HENE
LR .
THREF fRIR HEREE RERRSE AE &
BRSO HSO0 HSDD HSODD  HSID HSO
A7 7T TR 7T 77 77
31 December 2014 ZE-METZA=T-A
At 1 January 2014 (retated): R-2-mE-A-H(E5)
Cost ro 68,378 28,863 289,547 75,222 9817 4n 821
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment  ZiHTER(E (13,320 20,591) (84,500) (21.713) (5,649) [151,773)
Net carrying amount GHFE 55,058 8272 205,047 47,509 4,168 320,054
At 1 January 2014, net of accumulated RZZ-mE-A-A MR ES
depreciation and impairment (restated) NERBE(E) 55,058 8272 206,047 47,509 4,168 320,054
Additions b 38 312121 82,642 42,998 4,509 442,655
Disposals HE - - (344) (113) = (457)
Transfer g5 - (35,176) 29576 5,600 - =
Depreciation provided during the year ERIERR (1,866) - (65,719) (27972) (2,061) 97618)
Exchange realignment EiRE - (46) (599) (476) (16) (1,137)
At 31 December 2014, net of accumulated ~ KZZ-METZA=7-H"
depreciation and impairment MBRHERAE 53,577 285,171 250,603 67,546 6,600 663,497
At 31 December 2014: RB-METZR=1-R:
Cost A 68,763 305,762 400,822 123231 14310 912,888
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment  ZiHrER(E (15,186) 20,591) (150.219) (55,685) (7.710) 249,391)
Net carrying amount HEFE B3577 285,171 250,603 67,546 6,600 663,497
31 December 2013 (restated) ZE-ZETZAST-A(ER)
At 1 January 2013; R-2-=F-R-R:
Cost s 12,545 35,742 146,513 44,767 9,724 249,291
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  ZiHAERHE (12,545) (20,591) (67,634) (10.946) (3727) [115,443)
Net carrying amount BEFE - 15,151 78,879 33821 5997 133,848
At 1 January 2013, net of accumulated RZZ-=5-A-H HHZ
depreciation and impairment TERHE = 15,151 78879 33821 5997 133,848
Additions P - 84,361 352 8,722 - 93,435
Disposals it - - - (152 - (152
Transfer : — (92,980 80,797 12,183 - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries HENEAT 55,833 - 58,298 8688 = 122,819
Depreciation provided during the year ERfERE (775) - (16,866) (16,767) 1,922) (36,3301
Exchange realignment EjHE = 1,740 3567 1,014 9 6,434
At 31 December 2013, net of accumulated %:E—Eﬁ?ﬂ =t-f
depreciation and impairment MRRHTERAE 55,058 8272 205,047 47509 4,168 320,054
At 31 December 2013: RB—=F12R=1-R:
Cost 0E 63378 28863 289547 75222 9817 471,807
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  Z3HAERAE (13,320 20,591) (84,500) Q1713) (5,649) (161,773)
Net carrying amount GHFE 55,058 8272 205,047 47,509 4168 320,054
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR MY R

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. M1% - BMERZE#)

(continued)

Company RATF
Leasehold improvements
HEMELE
2014 2013
L — T =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
At 1 January Rn—HA—H
Cost DN 7,017 2,905
Accumulated depreciation 25 E (2,024) (968)
Net carrying amount IREDFE 4,993 1,937
At 1 January, net of accumulated R—A—HB  HBRIFITE
depreciation 4,993 1,937
Additions NE 3,980 4,112
Depreciation provided during FRITERE
the year (3,069) (1,056)
At 31 December, net of accumulated W+Z—A=+—H ' Ik &t
depreciation e 5,904 4,993
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H”
Cost DN 10,997 7,017
Accumulated depreciation 2FthE (5,093) (2,024)
Net carrying amount AR A 5,904 4,993

The net carrying amounts of the Group’s fixed
assets held under finance leases included in the
total amounts of land and buildings at 31 December
2014 amounted to HK$53,210,693 (2013 restated:
HK$55,057,660). Interest expense arising from the
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings was
capitalised in plant and machinery at an annual rate
at 5.1% for the year ended 31 December 2014
amounted to HK$2,644,000 (2013: Nil) (note 8).

ZepERESEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

RZE—WEF+_A=+—HBzLti#xk
BFEEY  BEASERREHER
B EEEERESEDS3,210,693 7T
—ZT—=FF% :55057,660F7T) °
REBEEZZT—NF+-_A=+—HIEF
B st BRITREMEEMELEZFE
X BIRERL 1% EME N 22
AN &5 52,644,000 T(ZF
—=4 : ) (f1sEs) -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. BERKHEB LT
Company
AAF]
2014 2013
SE-OF e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TS - EREANE 8,435,521 8,435,521
The amounts due from and due to subsidiaries FEW R ENHB AR HES B BEAA
included in the Company's current assets and current AR —ME+_A=+—H2ZRE
liabilities of HK$2,000,741,000 as of 31 December &7 2,000,741,0008T(ZF— =% :
2014 (2013: HK$2,046,881,000) and HK$3,711,000 2,046,881,000 70 ) RN = F — U &
as of 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$158,911,000), TZA=+—RHBZR®AES711,000
respectively. The amounts due from and due B (= T — = 4 :158,911,000%8
to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and T0) o BN R ERT B AR 2 3B A E
repayable on demand. IR - B ERNEKEFEK ©
Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December RZE—NMF+=-—A=+—HZEZEN
2014 are as follows: BARFBEOT -
Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of issued/
registration and registered share capital/ Percentage of equity
business paid in capital attributable to the
Name HMAYL/ BRE  ERf/ERBRAEE/ Company Principal activities
2R E3 5k EER FAEGEREALE  FEEE
2014 2013
-_-v_ﬁ :E—E¢
Hanergy Hi-Tech Power International ~ BVI Ordinary US$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited* EBRIHER EHER1,0005T RERR
B iR RERERNBR AR
Hanergy Hi-Tech Power (HK) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary US$1,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding and
EHRbRER(EE)RNBRAR B4 T 1,000,000%T trading of equipment and

turnkey production lines

RARRRERRBREE

EER
Apollo Precision (Fujian) Ltd." (a The PRC/ Registered US$3,800,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of equipment
wholly-owned foreign enterprise) Mainland China 473,800,000 and turnkey production
RRARRIREARAA hE /P E lines
(2ENELE) HERERRELER
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

200

16. BERMB LT #)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of issued/
registration and registered share capital/l  Percentage of equity
business paid in capital attributable to the
Name SR/ BRIk CEG/ERRAEE/ Company Principal activities
8 E4 8 EWEA RAARMEERASL  TEER
—E-BF s
Apollo Precision (Beijing) Ltd.* The PRC/ Registered RMB5,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of equipment
(a wholly-owned foreign Mainland China  FHF &4 AR 5,000,000 and turnkey production
enterprise) &/ RER lines
tREHEE R ERBERAR HEREREELES
(RBIERE)
Apollo Precision (Kunming) Yuanhong  The PRC/ Registered RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of equipment
Limited* Mainland China ~ ERERARE and turnkey production
ERNBREERNHARAA /R E 20,000,000 7C lines
HERERRELES
Apollo Precision (Kunming) Yuantong ~ The PRC/ Registered US$5,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of equipment
Limited® Mainland China % 7%5,000,000% T and turnkey production
(formerly known as Apollo mE/RE R lines
Precision (Kunming) Rijun Limited) BERERRELER
(a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise)
ERGRERNRBERAR
(FRARARGAZLRRE
BRAF)
(RENELE)
Sun Reliant International Limited* BVI Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
RBRRHS LRR 1 ET RERR
Hanergy Global Solar Power Group BVI Ordinary US$5,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited* EERLES £3A#5,000,000%7 REZR
ERERtREEEEARAR
HGSG-NA Land Power 1, LLC The United States  Registered US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
%8 i &750,000% 7T RERR
Xinjiang Hanergy Thin Film The PRC/ Registered 100% 100%  Investment holding
Solar Power Investment Limited" Mainland China RMB172,000,000 RERR
(a wholly-owned foreign enterprise) &,/ HE MM HMERARE
MR IRAR A REBRAR 172,000,0007C

(2EELR)

MLH Phase 3, LLC

Columbia Solar Energy, LLC

The United States
X8

The United States
X

Paid in US$942,400
BUER 942 400K T

Paid in US$12,000,000
EIER12,000,000% 7T

ZepERESEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

100% 100%

100% 100%

Construction of photovoltaic
power generation projects

BRANEERA

Construction of photovoltaic
power generation projects
BRANERER



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE —=

16.

—HE+-RA=+—RALFE)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RERKME AR (#)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Nominal value of issued/
registration and registered share capital/l  Percentage of equity
business paid in capital attributable to the
Name SR/ BRIk CEG/ERRAEE/ Company Principal activities
2R E3i 8k EKER RAAEEREASN  TEXER
2014 2013
—EF-BF ey
Solibro Research AB Sweden Paid in SEK37,214,640 100% 100%  Provision of research and
It EWEA37,214,640 development service
iz g RERERALRE
Beijing Hanergy Solar Investment The PRC/ Registered RMB50,010,000 100% — Investment holding
Co, Ltd. Mainland China &R AR%50,010,000 REER
(a wholly-owned foreign enterprise) &/ REA T
LR REERRAT
(2ENELE)
MiaSolé Hi-Tech Corp. The United States  Registered US$10 100% —  Manufacturing of
el HER10%T photovoltaic product and
equipment
HERRERRRE
Hanergy Solar UK Limited** United Kingdom Registered GBP1 100% — Sale of rooftop power station
#El HMER1EE HEREREY
Global Solar Energy, Inc.*** The United States Paid in US$12,470,737 100% —  Manufacturing of
X8 BWER12470,7375 photovoltaic product and
equipment
HEKRERRRE
Savanna Solar Limited.**** Ghana Registered GHC400,000 70% — Construction of photovoltaic
né FfFE 400,000 MAES POWer generation projects
BRANEEER
* Direct subsidiaries of the Company & ARalz BEEMBAR -

**  The subsidiary was acquired on 9 February 2014.

***  The subsidiary was acquired on 9 December 2014.

**** The subsidiary was acquired on 31 March 2014.

#

identification purpose only.

Unofficial English transliteration or translations for

*x %W%Qﬂﬁéig—ﬂfﬁiﬁﬂﬁw

* % % ‘JZM‘“% G qu+ AAR
UYg iz -

xxxx GENFRN _E—NE=A=1+—
B -

FEAEX FEREZ - EHBER

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

FRIMEERRIEZERNFERE
SR ANEREERNEEFRAILD 2B
nE - BEERA - REEMKHBLARZ
HEgTREEN TR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

17. GOODWILL

=

4
A

b
b

=

7

5

The goodwill arose from the acquisition of the
Manufacturing Business in 2009 and its net carrying
amount is analysed as follows:

Net carrying amount at
1 January and 31 December

FREDFE

R—A—Bkt+t-A=1+—HZ

ERHEEREFESNAT
Group
rEH
2013
b BIE N T —
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
7,915,318 7,915,318

The goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating unit
of the Manufacturing segment and its recoverable
amount was determined by the directors of the
Company, based on value-in-use calculations
covering a detailed 6-year budget plan followed by
an extrapolation of expected cash flows. The 6-year
budget plan is based on contracted cash flows
according to the production plan and capacity of the
Group in the next 6 years. The growth rate reflects
the expected long-term average growth rate for the
product lines of the cash-generating unit and the pre-
tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 15% (2013: 18%).

The key assumptions also include stable profit
margins, which have been determined based on
past performance, and management’s expectations
for market share, evidenced by the sales contracts
entered into during these years and after taking into
consideration published market forecast and research.
The growth rate used is consistent with the forecast
included in industry reports. The discount rate used
is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the
Manufacturing segment.

Impairment testing has taken into account the sales
contracts entered into before the end of the reporting
period, together with the management’'s assumptions
on the growth and rate of return. No impairment
of goodwill was associated with the Manufacturing
segment based on this value-in-use calculation.

Apart from the considerations described in
determining the value-in-use of the Manufacturing
segment above, the Group’'s management is not
currently aware of any other probable changes that
would necessitate changes in its key estimates.
However, the estimate of the recoverable amount of
the Manufacturing segment is particularly sensitive to
the discount rate applied.

REESEERLDA

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

BESEERENDBZBEEELEN -
METKEESEITEARNAES @ B
BMEANFARELEFEZFEREESE
FEARMEBRRERBET - ~NF A
BB NREARBERETE - MAR
BERIIBIEARNEBARKNE 2 EELT
BIMERSHE - BERNMIRSEAES
UERRIZBHRPFHEERARL
FERARBE S REEt 2RARE A
15% (ZZE—=%F:18%) °

I2REANEEREIERNE - HT)
BREBERAREEERAZMISHER
(AFERILZHERRER) LKEEE
ERfmGEARINREE - IERBZ
BRERETRREA TN —B - FK
Rz REBR R BHAT - I [ BREESLE D B
BRZBTERR

BERAHAE R RRE BRI L2 HE
ERAREEEABEREOERE R
& R ERBEAETE LB
BRELDRIESHRCELEME
[

B £ R & 0 B8 2 (8 B E K AT
ZERI AEEEEER AL TAE
EREMBA S MARER T E G
ito R - BUED B 2 fEt AT E £ 5
HFTERA 2 BRI R E SR -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BILEE
Group rEE
Technology Customers’
know-how contracts Total
9 0 5 EFE&RE &5t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
31 December 2014 —E-NEF
t=A=t—H
Cost at 1 January 2014, R-ZE—mF—H—H
net of accumulated B AE
amortisation and HIBR R E &
impairment (restated) WA (EF)) 1,211,056 — 1,211,056
Additions NE 7,059 — 7,059
Amortisation provided F NS
during the year (144,168) — (144,168)
Exchange realignment bE H AR (3,862) — (3,862)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—EOF
+=—A=+—H 1,070,085 — 1,070,085
At 31 December 2014: R-ZE—NF
+—-A=+—8":
Cost D@ 1,490,231 374,613 1,864,844
Accumulated amortisation RETEESE RORE
and impairment (420,146) (374,613) (794,759)
Net carrying amount BRmEFE 1,070,085 — 1,070,085
31 December 2013 —E—=+=H=+—8
(restated) (&%)
Cost at 1 January 2013, N_E—=F—H—H
net of accumulated TR AME
amortisation and HIBR Rt EEH &
impairment RIE 551,091 — 551,091
Additions NE 691,935 — 691,935
Acquisition of a subsidiary  UEEHI B A7) 41,948 = 41,948
Amortisation provided F N S
during the year (95,570) = (95,570)
Exchange realignment PE % 21,652 — 21,652
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=4F
+—-A=+—8H 1,211,056 — 1,211,056
At 31 December 2013: RZE—=F
+=ZA=+—A8":
Cost PR AR 1,487,104 374,613 1,861,717
Accumulated amortisation 2T NORE
and impairment (276,048) (374,613) (650,661)
Net carrying amount R FE 1,211,056 — 1,211,056
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE -

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

—HE+ZA=+—RALFE)

19. JtHERE

2014 2013

it LR T ——
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET

Unlisted equity investment, at cost ELmERRE

(DN — 85,800

In 2012, the Company, through its wholly-owned
subsidiaries Sun Reliant International Limited (“Sun
Reliant”) acquired a 36.16% equity interest in Jun
Yang Solar Power Investment Holdings Limited
(“Jun Yang”), incorporated in Cayman Islands, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Jun Yang Solar Power
Investments Limited (“Jun Yang Solar Power")
(formerly known as China Gogreen Assets Investment
Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, at a consideration of
HK$85.8 million. The Group’s interest in Jun Yang
was subsequently diluted from 36.16% to 32.10% in
2012 because a director of Jun Yang has exercised
his share options of Jun Yang.

In the opinion of the directors, the Group’s equity
interests in Jun Yang was accounted for as an
available-for-sale investment instead of an investment
in associate, given that (a) the Group is not entitled
to appoint any director to the board of Jun Yang and
(b) pursuant to the memorandum of association and
articles of associations of Jun Yang, any resolution
put to vote at the board meeting shall be decided
by simple majority which made the Group not in a
position to exercise significant influence over Jun
Yang.

In addition, the directors consider that the fair value
of the Group’s equity investment in Jun Yang cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the investment does
not have quoted market prices in an active market;
(b) the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for the investment; and (c) the probabilities
of the various estimates cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value. As such,
the Group’s equity investment is stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

% T——F ARRBBEZENE

727 Sun Reliant International Limited
(rsun Reliant]) ¥ £ {€ 85,800,000 &
TWEEGAENREERAGE
51)236.16% k1 - BEGRHASHS
M - BEBAIGEENRERR
NA([EBKGeE N ) (FTE A+ EH
REEEREBRRAADZEZEMER
A MEBKIGEE N ABRB B AT
FRETZATE - KR ARER—F
EETHEAZGERE  BWAKERE
B EHRN T — —FH36.16% # &
£32.10% °

EERR AEERES ZBREARH
HEREMIERNBERRZKREA
R RARG@QASEEEZEEMNES
MAZEBZESE : k(b REEGZAE
BERAMMAR  FREFSER
ERERFRRZIRER  BNBFH
BB BEAKEEEIHEBTREEAN
TET -

ot EERBAEERER 2R
ﬁZQi@ﬁ&T%ﬁE‘E-EM
ZIBWEWEER TS 2 TIH|ME
éﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ-ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé
AN Rle) SEMET 2B LG
ﬁﬁ&%#ﬁ#ﬂ?@ Eit - NEE
RE G 2 1% & T4 i AN H0 Bk (Al Rk
EEBYIE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 19. AItHERE#®)

(continued)

On 7 April 2014, Sun Reliant entered into an
agreement with Jun Yang Solar Power, in respect of
the exchange of the 32.10% issued share capital of
Jun Yang for the consideration of HK$109,105,267,
which shall be satisfied by the allotment and issue
of 1,091,052,670 shares by Jun Yang Solar Power
at the issue price of HK$0.10 per share. As of 30
June 2014, the pre-conditions to the agreement
have been substantially completed. Accordingly, the
Group recognised the impairment of an available-for-
sale investment of HK$23,610,000 at the difference
between its carrying amount and the present value
of the discounted estimated future cash flows,
approximately the fair value of 1,091,052,670 shares
of Jun Yang Solar Power as of 30 June 2014. The
exchange transaction was completed on 3 July 2014.

On 11 August 2014, the special general meeting of
Jun Yang Solar Power approved to consolidate every
4 issued and unissued existing shares of Jun Yang
Solar Power to be 1 consolidated share. Following the
transaction, Sun Reliant held 272,763,167 shares of
Jun Yang Solar Power.

At 31 December 2014, Sun Reliant sold all the
shares of Jun Yang Solar Power with receipt of
HK$49,916,000. As such, the Group then recognised
a loss on disposal of an available-for-sale investment
of HK$12,274,000 in its financial statements.

MR-Z—PF/MA+H - Sun Reliant&
EGAGREE NI IBE  NEB@EH
ERBG 2B EHITRAL32.10% © 1EE
#109,105,267 & 7T - ZHA B 5 K58
BNILFRRD 0108 T 2 B1TERL 2
K %17 1,091,052,670 f% BX 19 < 1~ A
—T-MERNAZTH ZBEZ LR
BB AR ETA © it - AEBERER
A] & &% & R {8 23,610,000 7% T
BVEREE MR R R\ S RBE
(BEB A E H1,091,052,670 B
BOR—_ZE—NFSAA=FTBHZAF
ERB)ZHANERE ZRXHFER=ZT
—E+A=ZH%K °

R_Z—mFENA+—8  BBKBEE
BAREFNASHEBESGAGES
NBHREFTRRETEERMDEH
B—RE D - R 51% + Sun Reliant
BEEGABGIES 272,763,167 B %

,(/'\ ®

W-ZT—mWE+=-A=+—H"Sun
Reliant HE 2B RIF8EE DD -
WU EI 49,916,000/ 7T BT E + &
EBEREMEEMBERRAERLE A
HEREEIB12,274,0008 7T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR MY R

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—Z—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE)

20. INVENTORIES 20. &

Group

rEH
2014 2013
it LR T — =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Raw materials R 284,436 426,329
Photovoltaic modules SERAR 1 180,764 133,733

Photovoltaic power generation BT HEZHREEIRE
projects to be sold 193,823 1,089,536
659,023 1,649,598
Company

KATF

2014 2013
= b —T =

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Photovoltaic modules S IRAE 15 18,322 —
18,322 —

A provision for impairment of inventory amounted
to HK$20,213,000 was made for the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013 restated: HK$21,342,000).
Interest expense arising from the interest-bearing

bank and other borrowings was capitalised in

photovoltaic power generation projects at annual

rate ranging from 3.0% and 8.7% (2013: between
5.6% to 6.6%) for the year ended 31 December 2014
amounted HK$11,422,000 (2013: HK$25,000) (note 8).

ZREERESEEEMR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

Hz_Z-—NWF+=-A=+—AHLHF
B FEREEER20,213,000% T
(ZZT—=%5F%|:21,342,000/87T) °
HEz_Z-—NWF+-A=+—HLHF
B SRITREAMM BERELEZFSH
X 11,422,000 B TR AR EEIBE EN
F3.0%%E87%(ZFE—=%F: H5.6%
£6.6%) ZFMEER(ZE—=
F : 25,000870) (MF5E8) ©



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. EZRWRE

Group
REE
2014 2013
- Sl T —— 4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kt FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Trade receivables: FEUERF ¢
— Due from Hanergy Affiliates — FEUCERERE B N R (i) 4,345,231 2,308,734
— Due from third parties — BWE=7 (ii) 1,733,464 3,615
6,078,695 2,307,349
Notes: Biat -
(i)  Trade receivables from Hanergy Affiliates (i) FEWCEREHEE QRN

The balances are mainly related to contracts with
Hanergy Affiliates, settled in accordance with the
terms of the respective contracts which is generally
from 5 to 10 days. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Based on the invoice date, the
ageing analysis of the Group’'s net trade receivables
from Hanergy Affiliates is as follows:

HFHIEREREBBEARNZLARA
M REBEBEESRZGRERE  — K
AR5E10H o AL EI Rt HEMER
REREF B E AR R EMINRE
B o AN B R OE BB B 1N Bl K
HFRERBEREARZREOMOT

2014 2013

—E-—NF =%

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 3 months 3EAA 2,823,545 1,235,844
3 to 6 months 3EGEANRN 1,521,686 —
6 months to 1 year 6EIAZE—%F — 1,067,890
4,345,231 2,303,734

—ZT—MFFHR ANNUAL REPORT 2014



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE —Z—

ME+=—A=+—RBLFE)

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. EZEWFIE®)
Notes: (continued) ez - (&)
(i)  Trade receivables from Hanergy Affiliates (continued) EUYCEREEE N RBRR(Z)
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables from FEUBOZREREE R AR I EALIR A
Hanergy Affiliates that are not individually nor 18 51l 3 3 H R MR E 2 B 5 K IE
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows: 2RI ¢

2014 2013

—2-OmEF —E=F

HK$000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Neither past due nor impaired 7 % 480 HA R Rk (B 1,848,630 221,214

Less than 3 months past due ‘LR 3EA 974,915 1,014,630

3-6 months past due BHASEGMAN 1,621,686 —

More than 6 months past due mHAEB6EA - 1,067,890

4,345,231 2,303,734
Trade receivables of HK$2,496,601,000 as R-E—NF+_A=+—H8" EK
at 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013: AR $02,496,601,000 8 (=& — =4
HK$2,082,520,000) were past due for less than 1 + = A=+ —H :2,082,520,000%
year. Subsequent to 31 December 2014 and up to TTIBEBBHIR—F  RZT—NF
30 March 2015 (when the financial statements were +ZA=+T—HERHE-ZT—RF

approved for issuance), Hanergy Affiliates have settled
HK$2,659,814,000 of the trade receivable.

The directors of the Company have conducted a
financial due diligence to assess the credibility and the
capacity of Hanergy Affiliates and are of the view that
Hanergy Affiliates would be able to settle all progress
payments on a timely basis.

Furthermore, pursuant to the relevant sales contracts,
the Group is entitled to claim Hanergy Affiliates
interest penalty on the overdue progress payments.
Interest penalty of HK$205,852,000 as 0.04% per
day of the overdue trade receivables was included in
the other receivables due from Hanergy Holding as
at 31 December 2014. Up to 30 March 2015 (when
the financial statements were approved for issuance),
Hanergy Affiliates have settled all the interest penalty
of HK$205,852,000.

£vR] HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

“A=tRE(UHHREBEEEMHZH
H) ZREBEBARDAEBRERK
72,659,814,000 T

AAEECDETHMBERESN G
BEEBMBARZEERESN  LARB
BB B AR ENREEEMEER
R e

o - RIEHBEHEESR  A5EE
ERBREERBREEHBARR
*‘E"E cHR-ZE—WE+-_A=+—
C —IEADEREIEIRWER - EBERF
HHQHX?@EHEEH&E%%XIQZO.M% :
205,852,000 st K &1 8 B 5 A
HitEFBEB - #E-_T—HF=
A=+ E(EM‘%%&%E}&?‘%ZH
) BB ARCBEEMASEE
205,852,000 7T °
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B 35 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. EZEWFIE®)
Notes: (continued) Kiat - (&)
(ii)  Trade receivables from third parties (i) EWE=FERM
The balances are mainly related to the sales HETEERELRLREREE
agreements with Beijing Hongsheng Photovoltaic KEES(BRER)([ILRILR]D
Industry Investment Fund (Limited Partnership) RN AANXREBEFEZLER
(“Beijing Hongsheng”) in respect of the photovoltaic ECEBREBBEGEREN - RZF
power generation projects, settled in accordance with —NE+ZAZ+=H " ARRKH
the terms of the agreements. On 23 December 2014, 2EHRANBRARE L AMMAM LK
the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, BEMTUERLR #BEESKREA
sold five domestic photovoltaic power plants to 1,800,942,000% JT » 1R 1 1 % 2 1§
Beijing Hongsheng, with a total cash consideration Fo AT REREIIMEETEL
of HK$1,800,942,000. According to the terms of the ERA - I ZE—NE+=—A=+—
agreements, 20% of the total cash consideration B A1 4415 360,188,000 7 Ju (BN 4838 &
amounting to HK$360,188,000 have been paid by REZ220%) o b AR 17 3 &
Beijing Hongsheng within ten working days upon 1= AR RNEARAD B E
signing of the sales agreements before 31 December BB T Z266%K156% - R=_F — N
2014. The remaining 65% and 15% of the total cash F+-—A=+—H#E #HE=E=-ZFT—H
consideration shall be paid by Beijing Hongsheng FZA=tTHWEBRREEEMHZA
within three months and six months upon signing of H9) AL HSARB AN RIEEZ265%
the sales agreements respectively. Subsequent to ©%/51,170,612,00078 7T °
31 December 2014 and up to 30 March 2015 (when
the financial statements were approved for issuance),
65% of the total cash consideration amounting
to HK$1,170,612,000 has been paid by Beijing
Hongsheng.
Based on the invoice date, the ageing analysis of the BIBEZHZERAH  AEERKE=FK
Group's net trade receivables from third parties is as FOFREZ R ATT ¢
follows:
2014 2013
—E-ImF —F—=5F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(E%))
Within 3 months 3EAMR 1,731,126 3,615
3 to 6 months 3@A=E6MEA 2,338 —
1,733,464 3,615
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

21.

22.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. ESEWFIE#)
Notes: (continued) ez - (&)
(i)  Trade receivables from third parties (continued) (i) ERE=FERRGE)
The above trade receivable from third parties RZE—MF+—A=+—H kit
are neither past due nor impaired as at 31 FEWEE =75 8 5 FIAN B EASOR(E o
December 2014.
The financial assets included in the above balance are ST AR E#R 2 &Rl E B BT BN MR 4
related to receivables for which there was no recent RFIAEE 2 FEWGRIER A -
history of default.
The directors of the Company considered that the fair AR BRGBETRERAL
values of trade receivables are not materially different B MARRESERAZZIRBAZATF
from their carrying amounts because these amounts EHAERAETESAESR -
have short maturity periods at their inception.
GROSS AMOUNT DUE FROM 22. EREHEFARE
CONTRACT CUSTOMERS
The Group’s gross amount due from customers for REBEWEHNRPEBEZEREBA
contract work was related to contracts with Hanergy AZEHNBHE  6HNEFBEABN
Affiliates. The movement of gross amount due from ™
contract customers is as follows:
Group
KEH
2014 2013
et B T =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January Rn—H—H 1,858,557 2,981,937
Contract costs incurred plus BEEEERMAAN
recognised profits less B W R = AR
recognised losses B EE 6,520,849 3,631,308
Progress billings EERERIA (5,104,520)  (4,658,702)
Exchange realignment PE H SE R 3,622 (95,986)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 3,278,508 1,858,557

ZepERESEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

23. OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. HittEWRIE

Group

rEE
2014 2013
il T =
HK$000 HK$°000

FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Other receivables: Hfth FEUGRIA -
— Due from the ultimate holding — USRI AT
company 205,852 458
— Due from Hanergy Affiliates — FEWOEBEREE AR 25,336 190
— Due from third parties — EWE=7 160,560 59,024
391,748 59,672
The financial assets included in the above balance are T AL L8R 2 & Bl E B BT HA Y A 4
related to receivables for which there was no recent RERIBR SR EMGRIER 4 -
history of default.
The directors of the Company considered that the fair P E R IGRIE B R s R R H A
values of other receivables are not materially different EH - A RRESRBZRENRBEZA
from their carrying amounts because these amounts TEEEEMETEERAEE -
have short maturity periods at their inception.
24. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 24. RERFEMNKIE
Group
rEH
2014 2013
=l T =
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaE FET FET
(Restated)
(EH)
Deposits e 26,506 70,614
Prepayments paid to: ERTUAT AT ZBNFIE :
— Hanergy Affiliates — EREBBE AT (i) 1,206,250 1,571,128
— Unrelated third parties — FAEF=F 405,292 366,972
1,611,542 1,938,100
Less: impairment R ORE (7,844) (7,776)

1,630,204 2,000,938
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

24. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(continued)

None of the above assets is past due. Included in the
above assets, HK$291,039,000 of the prepayments
has an ageing over 1 year, whereas all the remaining

deposits and prepayment have an ageing less than 1

year.

Note:

(i)

EEEEREEEEEBRANA

The balances mainly represented the prepayments
for the purchase of photovoltaic modules under the
master agreement signed between the Company
and Hanergy Holding on 11 April 2012. During
2013, the Company's subsidiaries entered into
several photovoltaic module purchase subcontracts
("Subcontracts”) with Hanergy Affiliates, nominees of
Hanergy Holding, to purchase photovoltaic modules
with a total capacity of 677.9 MW for construction
of the downstream photovoltaic power generation
projects. According to the terms of the Subcontracts,
approximately 50% of the total contract amounts
have been paid by the Company’s subsidiaries on the
placement of the orders in 2013. As of 31 December
2013, a total of 58.5 MW photovoltaic modules have
been delivered by Hanergy Affiliates. The delay of
delivery of the photovoltaic modules was mainly due
to the production arrangement by Hanergy Affiliates,
which has caused the delay in the construction of the
photovoltaic power generation projects by the Group.
Accordingly, the Group reached mutual agreement
with Hanergy Affiliates to return the prepayments
of HK$1,262,629,000 before 31 December 2014 in
relation to a total capacity of 459.4 MW photovoltaic
modules and terminate these purchase subcontracts
simultaneously.

During 2014, the Company's subsidiaries also entered
into several new photovoltaic module purchase
subcontracts with Hanergy Affiliates to purchase
photovoltaic modules with a total capacity of 558
MW for construction of the downstream photovoltaic
power generation projects. According to the terms
of the Subcontracts, approximately 50% of the total
contract amounts have been paid by the Company's
subsidiaries on the placement of the orders in 2014.

24, WERFBERNREE)

tHEERESRR - LAEEPEE—
TH /%291,039,000 /& JTHY B 38 — F FE T

R

C RRFT AR RN FRIAZ KK

BOR—F -

Hfat

(i)

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

EREREBEARRIEEGRIERR T
——FNAt+—BEBzAGE B
BAXKTHRKDBG AN TERE
HBARZENRE - R_FT—=
FRARAIZHB AR EZELEBEBA
Al BREERZARIBAC FINZHR
RBGEAKRBIGE(HBHZE]D
MEZTHAREEEEEABRER
A 677.9MW 2 St K48 1 o B 1R S B
MEETR A2 ZHBRARAER
TE—=FTENERITERA
SENB0% R-—EBE—=F+_#
=+—H ZEBRBEARDXNER
558 5MW Z KA 1 o 18 XA
RAGTERARELEBEARZE
EXHERAEEERNKAKREESIER
BRTERFIE - Elt - AEBEEEZ
BEEMBARERE R HE  URZZ
—E+=-A=+—BARBEEMNK
A48 2 AE 5 459 . AMW K Y6 (A48 14 4B 8
HIFIE 1,262,629,00078 7T » I [F] B 48
IFHESBEEHE -

—TNEM - ARRZHB AR
EEEH B A R R R ML Z 5 ¥k R4
GHEREWNBRE UWEBELERLS
558MW B AR - AR T
REEEE - REZSHNBIHEZIE
FARARZHBARAIER -Z—NO
FREERINFERESELS0% °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

24. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 24, RERFENRIE(E)

(continued)

Note: (continued) Kzt - (&)

A total of 28.8 MW photovoltaic modules have been
delivered by Hanergy Affiliates in 2014. As of 31
December 2014, there are a total capacity of 689.2
MW photovoltaic modules have not been delivered by
Hanergy Affliates and these remaining photovoltaic
modules will be delivered to the Group in accordance
with the further construction plan of the Group.

R-ZE—OFR - wa%/lz\\ﬂ;ﬂié
fE £ 288|\/|vvzylzf7tiﬂ1¢ i
—mME+ZA=+—H ZE&EHEL
Al M AR R E S 6892MW27‘51/*\ZE
o BBAREE 2 RRERE
%%Tzwﬂﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁéfﬁw&ﬁﬁz&@
Al Z R EIR AT -

Company

¥ NN

2014 2013
—E-F —_F—=

HK$000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Deposits bizecia 2,275 4,251
Prepayments TERTRIE 16,815 2,695
19,090 6,946

None of the above assets is past due or impaired. e P EED B EASRIE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—Z—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE)

25. EQUITY INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE 25. BAFEIBRNRESZZERKR
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS &

Group

rEE
2014 2013
—E-AF et

HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET TRET

Equity investment stated at market  IZTH{EZYIE 2 EHKRE

value — listed in Hong Kong — REBLEM — 11,698
The above equity investment was classified as LSRR EDERBEER  EUX
held for trading and was, upon initial recognition, WRE  ~EEBESBEAZEAFET
designated by the Group as a financial asset at fair BRNERC EREE -

value through profit or loss.

214 ZREERESEEEMR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 26. RERREEZBYRZIREIR

RESTRICTED CASH &
Group Company
xEE AT

2014 2013 2014 2013
TE-NF et —ENF et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET
(Restated)

(&%)
Cash and bank balances IR& NMER1T4E1F 3,033,819 1,367,836 500,626 51,160
Restricted cash ZRHIRE 76,689 — — —
Less: Restricted cash i - ZR&EIRE (76,689) — - =
Cash and cash ReMREeEEY
equivalents 3,033,819 1,367,836 500,626 51,160
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—Z—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE)

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED CASH (continued)

The breakdown of cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash by denominated currency as at 31
December 2014 is as follow:

Group
EE

2014

=k —T =

HK$°000
TET

(HK$ equivalent)
(FBERBT)
(

AT E%EHEZ

Cash and bank balances

26. RERBEESEYRZRHR

cAC )

R=B-—mET=A=1+—8  &itE
E%EH 2 RERASEENRERS
CESLE T

Company

ZNA

2013 2014 2013
—E—NEF —F—=
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FEr
Restated)

(E71)

denominated in: R MIRTTHET
RMB AREE 2,194,532 1,251,347 115 116
usD e 613,686 54,634 388,029 501
HKD BT 160,075 51,256 112,482 50,543
EUR (E1¢7 56,766 2,747 — —
SGD T B 73 8P 3,229 — — —
GBP ES7 2,350 7,807 — —
Others HAh 3,181 45 — —
Total k) 3,033,819 1,367,836 500,626 51,160
Restricted cash T3 ERTHEZ

denominated in: ZREHES
RMB AR 52,044 — — —
usD e 24,645 — - —
Total ok 76,689 — - —

ZREERESEEEMR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 26. RERREEZBYRZIREIR

RESTRICTED CASH (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
cash equivalents of the Group denominated in
RMB amounted to HK$2,246,576,000 (2013:
HK$1,251,347,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under
the PRC’'s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day
to three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

T (#)

RBEER  AEBUARBEEMNZ
Re MRS FEYE2,246,576,00075 7T
—Z—=4:1,251,347,000/87T) ° A
RETABERLBRABEMER - Al -
R HE A B2 SNE & Il 101 2 45 B B IR AR
T AN EELEEBEREEITINE
E¥B2RITBARE LI BEMER -

RITREREST B RITERNERFE
T BEREUN S - A E BTE R AR
H—HE=EALE  RTEAKEZA
RIS HRME - WIREEHEMER
BEREIANE - RITEF RO ERER
FRRNEERFEEIRAERICE R
T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR MY R

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—Z—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE)

27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 27. ESREBENSRIE

Group

rEH
2014 2013
it LR T — =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
(Restated)
(&%)

Trade and bills payables due to: BRTUATALZES
REREMNFKIE !

— Related parties — BiEATL 138,486 11,263
— Third parties — $=x 291,287 608,802
429,773 620,065

Based on the invoice date, the ageing analysis of the

REZZEH  AEEEZRZBEN

Group's trade and bills payables is as follows: FIEZ BRE DT T -
Group
rEE
2014 2013
LR T —
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
(Restated)
(E%1))
0 — 30 days 0—30 H 190,075 448,200
31 — 60 days 31— 60 H 79,200 6,226
61 — 90 days 61 — 90 H — 7,367
Over 90 days 90 H I 160,498 158,272
429,773 620,065
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are ENESRIEL ML —R&EEER

normally settled on 60-day terms.

ZREERESEEEMR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

28. HttENRERETEA

Group
rEE
2014 2013
e T ——
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Deposits bieecia 7,027 5,000
Other payables due to: FERT T AT AT 2 B
FERTFRIE -
— The ultimate holding company — E&&ZIERZ A E] (i) 391,443 —
— The immediate holding — BEZERAT
company (if) 16,863 16,863
— Related parties — BEAL (iii) 73,632 71,308
— Third parties —E=7 686,113 364,257
Sub-total NEE 1,168,051 452,428
Accruals EstE R 289,251 164,171
1,464,329 621,599
Notes: Wizt -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Payables to the ultimate holding company represent
the advances from Hanergy Holding to the Company
for the daily operation purpose. The balances are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Payable to the immediate holding company represent
the advances from Hanergy Investment to the
Company for the daily operation purpose. The balances
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The balance included the advances of HK$49,032,000
(2013 restated: HK$15,504,000) from Hanergy
Affiliates to the Company for the daily operation
purpose, and the balance of HK$24,600,000 (2013:
HK$55,804,000) payable to Sichuan Hanergy
Photovoltaic Limited (“Sichuan Hanergy"”), Hanergy
Holding's affiliate relating to rental of a production line,
office premises, factory premises and staff dormitory,
and the usage of relevant equipment, material and
facilities, etc. The above balances are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

()  RNREERRAEZFIBEEEER
FEEEERNNTARAZAMNK
B ZEHEBAERR 28 RRE

(i) FENEEERAQEZFKIEEHanergy
Investmentft B % && B W FARQ
AZTENRIE % EEHRREERAR -
BB RREREFER -

(il AHBFEEHBEARGAELESR
"1 F AR A 7] Z 71 FUE 49,032,000
B(ZF—=FFJ : 15,504,000
B RMEALERS  BHABA -
ITRWEMREIES A RERHERR
5 MR RS EE R A 2 BB
ARYIERES KB R AT ([ EIIIE
8% ) FEft 2 #27K% 24,600,000 8T (—F
—=%F : 55,804,000/87T) o Luli &k
BEEIE - R RN EREFER o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—Z—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE)

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. HttEENRIEREAER (&)
(continued)
Company
¥ /N
2014 2013
i B T —
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaE FETT FET
Other payables due to: FERT T LA AT 2 Efh
FE(5RIE -
— The immediate holding — BEEERAT
company (i) 16,863 16,863
— Third parties —%=7 1,972 —
Sub-total aN; 18,835 16,863
Accruals fest &R 10,448 11,755
29,283 28,618
All amounts are short term and hence the carrying FrESHEARE At EMmERNFIER
amounts of other payables and accruals are A ER s EHEFERAREATEZE
considered to be a reasonable approximation of their IBAYEL o B Bl B ERSN - E M ET FRIB
fair values. Save for those disclosed above, other KEABRATE - —fRi%60 B HIR
payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and are ©E -

normally settled on 60-day terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 29. 817K H it [ B {& 2k
BORROWINGS

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
ZE-RETZAZT-R ZE-SErf=t-R
Effective Effective
interest Interest
rate (%) Maturity HKS$ 000 rate (%) Maturity HK$ 000
Notes RS LGRS
Group k&R it (%) L &1 (%) ki FAT
(Restated)
(&)
Current; e .
Bank overdrafts — unsecured BAgY — als ~ O demand
RRER 134 = = =
Bank loans — guaranteed Fhfs — CER ] 18 2015 63,362 - - -
Bank loans — guaranteed and secured — H7fH — EEARER ) Prime rates+1.75, not
less than 6
BEEHEATS
FHRG 2015 36,075 - - =
Bank loans — unsecured Bs — BEA 6 month US dollar
LIBOR+3.5
~ERETRIEIRE
8435 2015 140,786 - - -
Interest-bearing other borrowings EthEET
Related parties — unsecured B — 2R 5 2015 2233 3 2014 242
Third parties — guaranteed 7% —BiER ] - - - 56 2014 76,314
Third partes — unsecured £5—EER 6610 M5 23597 66 M4 103023
Current portion of long-term borrowings Rtz 2 Il
Bank loans — guaranteed Ffs—BER ] 5% above PBOC
benchmark lending rate
AMTEEEHRAE 5 2015 5,104 - - -
Bank loans — quaranteed and secured ~ FTES - CEARER () 55 2016 690 = = =
Tota ait 462,601 179579
Non-current: #08 .
Bank loans — guaranteed B — BER (] 5% above PBOC
benchmark lending rate
AGEEEHARGL 2016209 130516 - = =
Bank loans — quaranteed and secured ~ RAET — ZEERER (0 55 20162024 7,461 = = =
Interest-bearing other borrowings EHIEER
Related partes — unsecured BEn — RER 3 018 13799 3 2018 Q41
Third parties — guaranteed #=5 —BER (] PBOC benchmark
lending rate
MTBEERHE 022 3029 = = -
Tota ait 656,258 0417
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—Z—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE)

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

31 December 2014
Z§-BETZAZT-R

Effective

interest

29. |RITREMHEERE)

31 December 2013
A

rate (%) Maturity HK§ 000

Effective

interest

rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
LGRS 3

ENEZ 34A 98
Company NG (%) FAT (%) FAT
Current; 0g .
Bank loans — unsecured R — g8 6 month US dollar 2015 140,786 = = =
LIBOR+3.5
~MERRTRIRORE
f8435
Group Company
REE RAF
2014 2013 2014 2013
TE-MNF o — T T EeSaeed
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FHT &
(Restated)
(&5)
Analysed into: =
Bank loans and overdrafts BB TRERES

repayable:

Within one year or on demand —FERFIEBREE 246,771 — 140,786 —
In the second year FE-FR 12,123 — — —
In the third to fifth years, E-ZZFRERNEER
inclusive MEREEN) 36,626 — — —
Beyond five years i T F 89,228 — — —
384,748 — 140,786 —
Other borrowings repayable: H b fETE 5K :
Within one year —FR 215,830 179,579 — —
In the second year EFFER — — _ _
In the third to fifth years, F-ZFTFRER
inclusive MEBEEN) 137,990 42,417 — —
Beyond five years HBAF 380,291 — — —
734,111 221,996 — —
Total & 1,118,859 221,996 140,786 —

ZREERESEEEMR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE —=

29.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

These borrowings are guaranteed by Hanergy Holding.

The bank borrowings are guaranteed by Hanergy
Holding and two subsidiaries of the Company and
secured by the lien on the rights held by the Group
upon the photovoltaic power generation project located
in the United States, including the Group's security
interest in such photovoltaic power generation project,
the power purchase agreement, the engineering,
construction and procurement (“EPC") contract, the
operation and maintenance (“O&M") agreement,
security agreement in membership interest, the fee
title of the leasehold estate to be acquired upon which
the photovoltaic power generation project locates
as well as the security interest in the funds of such
photovoltaic power generation project.

The bank borrowings are guaranteed by a subsidiary of
the Company.

The bank borrowings are guaranteed by a subsidiary
of the Company and secured by the lien on the
rights held by the Group upon the photovoltaic
power generation project located in the United
States, including the Group's security interest in such
photovoltaic power generation project, the power
purchase agreement, the engineering, construction
and procurement (“EPC") contract, the operation and
maintenance (“O&M") agreement, security agreement
in membership interest, the fee title of the leasehold
estate to be acquired upon which the photovoltaic
power generation project locates as well as the
security interest in the funds of such photovoltaic
power generation project.

—HE+-RA=+—RALFE)

29. RITREAMBH EEK

K (&)

HiaE -

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

SREF AR

RITERE BIERIERRAR T ME
PES N T?ﬂﬁﬁ’—‘% I AR &R B A L
REBRKREEER 2% 821
REBEZ R EFEEEE R EERF
@ RREEmE IR 2ERK
BIRE 2ERKRBDAR €&
MRE(T2ERRE ) HE  SFHEE
BmPHERGE  ZAREEEB MR
EzRABEBENEHENEZMA R
- URZNAAREEBHEAESHHE
R R (SR o

IRITEHABARRR ZH B AR R EE
R o

RITEREBAR B Z M E R AR M
R WAAREBERAREE AR
BEHB G BRASEEZL
REEHEBRNERN G EREE
W TR ZERRKBE(IR &2
ERRBDAR 2 ERRE(EE
MREDHH  SEERDOERTB
o RNAREERAB A ZEASR
BOHEMEZRBREE ARzt
REEBHE BT RERFREER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

=

4
A

b
b

7

5

On 25 November 2009, the Company issued zero
coupon convertible bonds, as part of the consideration
in respect of the acquisition for the Manufacturing
business, with a principal amount of HK$3,814,950,000
(the “Convertible Bonds"”). The Convertible Bonds
were issued in two tranches. The principal amount
for the first tranche is HK$1,040,440,000 and the
second tranche is HK$2,774,510,000. The Convertible
Bonds were matured on 25 November 2013 and were
converted into fully paid ordinary shares with a par
value of HK$0.0025 each of the Company at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.329 per share, subject to the
adjustments in the event of, inter alias, consolidation
or subdivision of the shares, capitalisation of profits
or reserves, capital distributions in cash or specie or
subsequent issue of securities at a discount of the
then market price, in the Company.

The holders of the Convertible Bonds will have the
right to convert the whole or part of the outstanding
principal amount of the Convertible Bonds during
the conversion period subject to the applicable
restrictions contained therein. The Convertible Bonds
that remain outstanding on the maturity date shall be
redeemed at their then outstanding principal amount.

On 27 February 2013 and 24 September 2013, the
conversion price of the Convertible Bonds was
adjusted from HK$0.329 per share to HK$0.272 per
share, and then to HK$0.249 per share, resulting
from the completion of the 2010 First Subscription,
the 2011 First Subscription, and the 2011 Second
Subscription, respectively (note 33(a)).

REESEERLDA

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

30. AIRRES

ERBBEREEBEEZ —H5 &
RER_TEENF+—A=ZTHHEE
TN %853,814,950,0008 T2 T =
BABRBREHR(TBRRES] - 1J#k
BEHOMMPET - B 2ASER
1,040,440,000%8 T M B =#t 2 A& 5
£2,774,510,0007% 7T o Al AR & % 1%
RZZT—=F+—A=+HABZH &
RS BRETRR0.329B LA BRE
ANAR)FREEO.0026 BT 2 BR LB
B MR EAE(EREE) R E O
S BFSEEEARE  BeRE
MERDRIBEREITARAER 2B
AT FUAARE - DERARRERFHENR

i3
A °©

RIBHIA - ATRBRESFFE AR AE
RB@uRBRER 2 2B O RLBA
SR(ZARFHRATE 2 ERARBIFAR)
REE B EAR B2 AT R E R AR E
ERARLBASEED -

RZE—=F_A=+tAR=ZZT—=
FAA=ZtWMA  —E—ZTFF—ER
BEE —T——FF-HRABEEK
—E—FE_BEREFHETKDFIE
AR ES 2 RREBER0.329%
THABEER0272B T BARES
§%0.249 77T (FizE 33(a)) °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

On 4 October 2013, the Company entered into
the deed of amendments with Hanergy Holding's
subsidiaries, namely GL Wind Farm and China
Genco, which are the holders of all the outstanding
Convertible Bonds then, to amend certain existing
terms of the Convertible Bonds as follows:

1)  the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds is
extended from the 4" anniversary of the date of
the first issue of the Convertible Bonds (i.e. 25
November 2013) to 31 December 2014,

2) it was provided under the existing clause 5.1(1)
of the Convertible Bonds that no conversion
right of the Convertible Bonds may be exercised
to the extent that following such exercise, a
bondholder and parties acting in concert with it
(within the meaning of the Hong Kong Takeovers
Code), taken together, will directly or indirectly,
control or be interested in 29.9% or more of the
entire issued shares of the Company. Pursuant
to the deed of amendments, it is proposed to
amend as no conversion right of the Convertible
Bonds may be exercised to the extent that
following such exercise, a bondholder and
parties acting in concert with it (within the
meaning of the Hong Kong Takeovers Code)
shall have an obligation under the Hong Kong
Takeovers Code to make a mandatory general
offer in accordance with the provisions of the
Hong Kong Takeovers Code; and

3) the words “2013" in the subheading of the
existing certificate of the Convertible Bonds
is proposed to be deleted and substituted by
“2014".

30. TEERESH &)

RZE—=F+AWB ' A2F#8E
BETE IR 2 Y B A A1GL Wind Farm &
China Genco (&= E RFT A R1TEE AT HAR
EHZHFHB AN MIET R - BT
AR ESF 2B TRBGHROT

1)

2)

AR ES DB B E R
HRBEFAPENAF(BI =%
—=ZF+—A-t+HBE)ERE=
E—mE+=-—A=+—8:

AHRREFRB K511 RE
WITE AT AR ES 2 SRR - &
FREARE—BTHAL(EE
REBWESADGMHE  BE
Bk - ER R A AR 2 IE
BTN 229.9% KA LR A
o BINSITERE AR Bk - R
BISETEHE - RIS MITE AR
RiEH 2RI EE  BFERFEA
RE—HTHAT(EEREBK
BTRDREFSRETAEES
IRAR B A UEE <7 Al 2 1 SVEH 32
MEEWE - BB AL RETSET
F: &

EEMB AT RERESFREEZ IR
BeFRIZZE—=4F] WIUI=
T—POF JBRK -

A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

On 2 September 2014, the conversion price of
the Convertible Bonds was further adjusted from
HK$0.249 per share to HK$0.223 per share, resulting
from the completion of the 2011 Third Subscription
and Incentive Agreement (note 33). The Convertible
Bonds holders, GL Wind Farm and China Genco,
then converted all the Convertible Bonds into
3,800,598,461 ordinary shares with a par value of
HK$0.0025 each of the Company on 2 September
2014.

The movements in principle amount of the Convertible
Bonds during the year are as follows:

Company and Group

30. TEERES &)

RZZE—MEAA-R BREK_-Z
—— FE-—EREFER-_T——FHE
B R EE(MIE33) r AT MR ESRZ
B E TR B 0.249 8 it — R
£0223%8m e JIRESFA AGL
Wind Farm % China Genco) &R =
T—NFNA-—BHEEBAIRBRESR
#43,800,5698,461 X {8 0.0025 /8 7T
ZANEE @

FAABRREFASRZEEHNT
AARRAEE

2014 2013

Sl T —
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FE&T
Principal amount at 1 January R—A—BZA&HE 847,530 847,530
Conversion of the Convertible Bonds  #E# [ # &5 (847,530) —
Principal amount at 31 December R+—A=+—HzA&® — 847,530

On initial recognition, the fair value of the Convertible
Bonds is determined using the binomial model that
takes into account factors specific to the Convertible
Bonds. Liability component is then determined using
an effective interest rate of 8.23% for an equivalent
non-convertible bond. The remainder of the proceeds
is allocated to the conversion option and is included
in equity as equity component of the Convertible
Bonds. Pursuant to the extension of maturity date in
2013, the effective interest rate decreases to 0.23%.

EREREEERBEARA

R TERE - AIRRES 2 ATFERE

A& RAIMRESSERZ 2 ZIBIE
NETE - BEHH HEFEREEFIEAR
BEHFZEBFRS23%ETE ° FT15
IR D L E LR - WIERPIHAR
BEHF LRI AEZ  RIBE=
T-—FHHBEE  BEREMNERLE
0.23% °

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 30. JRRES @)
The Convertible Bonds recognised in the statement of R RERZ A BRESTEMN
financial position are calculated as follows: o
Company and Group ERATARAER
Liability Equity
component component Total
=Rt R &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEIT
Net carrying amount at R—E=——F+=-H
31 December 2012 and =+t—HBER-ZB—=%F
1 January 2013 —R—RZEmFE 789,559 895,685 1,685,244
Interest expenses FERAZ 56,025 — 56,025
Net carrying amount at R_B—=F+=A
31 December 2013 and =t—BR-E—NF
1 January 2014 —A—RZEREFRE 845,584 895,685 1,741,269
Interest expenses FEMAX 1,296 — 1,296
Conversion during the year INF 2 HfR a2 iR (846,880) (895,685)  (1,742,565)
Net carrying amount at R-ZZE—WOF+=A
31 December 2014 = +—HZEEFE — — =

—Z—pEER  ANNUAL REPORT 2014 227
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lease payments

RIEEERE

2014
—E-mF
HK$'000

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

31. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 31.
The Group leases certain of its plant and buildings
for its Manufacturing segment. These leases are
classified as finance leases and have remaining lease
terms ranging from one to five years.
As at 31 December 2014, the total future minimum
lease payments under finance leases and their
present value were as follows:
Group
Minimum

EABMEEE
AREZWEHHARETRE &2
T AMEEFARAEE - HTAD
NF—FERETE -

RZE—NFE+-_A=+—H @EM
ETARARKEEEFEBERALREN
T

REE

Present value
of minimum lease

REHSRE

2013 2014 2013
== —E-—me e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET

Amounts payable: FERTFRIE -
Within one year —&FR 9,308 9,306 7,875 7,604
In the second year F_F 9,308 9,306 8,153 7,873
In the third to fifth E=FERF(BE

years, inclusive BEMF) 30,098 39,322 28,862 36,932
After five years hF% — — — —
Total minimum finance @& E HIEFIA

lease payments FERE 48,714 57,934 44,890 52,409
Future finance charges KRB (3,824) (5,525)
Total net finance lease EfRIEHEF4E

payables #H 44,890 52,409
Portion classified as M AEREEESD

current liabilities 7,875 7,604
Non-current portion FEmEh & 37,015 44,805

ZepERESEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

32. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

32. IEEHRIA
FREER AR AR AR BB

during the year are as follows:

Group EH
Loss
Unrealised available for
Recognition  profit or loss offsetting
of differences on intra-group ~ Fair value against
on revenue of transfer ~ Adjustments With- Other future
construction ~ of assets or  on business holding temporary taxable
contract  transactions  combination Tax Accruals  differences profits Total
SEnERE it
IR ERSC  EBRl FRERR
ARMAZE  AEBER  ATEER BB EER EMERER AR ait
HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK8 000 HKS'000
74 74T FAr i 74 AL A i
At 1 January 2013 N=%-=-F-A (3,957) 2809 (27.079) (222,668) 10,303 29331 4,65 (206,589)
Deferred tax credited) EmiERREMZENER
(charged) to the statement Rt A/ (H1i%) ZBRER
of profitor oss and other ~~~ (#270)
comprehensive income
during the year (note 10) (11473) 3908 4,450 (92763) (144) k] 6,146 (89,535)
Acquision of a subsidiary ~ WERBAF - - (4,809) - - - - (4.809)
Exchange realignment S - - - (1499) 179 919 263 (148)
At31 December 013and  RE-=E+ZA=1-BR
1 January 2014 “3-IE-A-A (15,430) 6,737 27.438) (316,930) 10338 30,591 11,01 (301,081)
Deferred tax credited) EmiERREMZEYER
(charged) to the statement 3t/ (H1R%) ZERERE
of profitor loss and other (Wit10)
comprehensive income
during the year (note 10) 19,304 (5,999) 5,532 (222,265) 30792 = (10966)  (183,562)
Exchange realignment EiAE - - - (894) 134 (103) (63) (948)
At 31 December 2014 AE-METZA=1- 3914 738 (21.906)  (540,089) 41,264 30,488 - (48559

—EFEFER
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32. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset in the statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the
deferred tax balances of the Group after jurisdictional
netting for financial reporting purposes.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE —Z—

32.

ME+=—A=+—RBLFE)

EERIE &)

REJZBNME BETECHREEE
RBBERMBARERAEHE - AT R
A BE2ERENME » RADERRZR
EEFEBERIASEELTIAGR
DT

Group
rEE
2014 2013
- Sl T ——
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net deferred tax assets recognised RERE MR ARERZ
in the consolidated statement of FIREHIEEE
financial position 76,404 23,420
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised R4R& BN R IER
in the consolidated statement of FRERIAR G
financial position (561,995) (324,501)
(485,591)  (301,081)

The Group has tax losses of HK$1,068,917,000 (2013:
HK$178,594,000) that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose, subject to the rules of the tax
jurisdictions in which the Group operates. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
HK$1,068,917,000 (2013: HK$106,662,000) as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

ZepERESEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

A& E 2 FisE 18 1,068,917,000 7 T
(ZZ— =% :178,594,000/8 7t ) Al i
REEKEMERSE REER 2HRE2
BT - AAKEEEEE CARZK
RERBEN - ARNZEEBHEEBE
—BREAZHNBARMES  THER

A] BB JE AR T % A P] PR VB 4K 85 T 15 /&S
B M EREEZ 1,068,917,0007%8 (=
T— =1 : 106,662,000 % 70 ) FERIE LT
MIBEE °



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

33.

SHARE CAPITAL 33. &
(a) Shares (a) M2
2014 2013
ot LIRS T — =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Authorised: ETE
64,000,000,000 (2013: 64,000,000,000 A%
64,000,000,000) ordinary shares —T—=
of HK$0.0025 each 64,000,000,000 i%) &
A& 8 0.0025 BT 2 &
AR 160,000 160,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRHE
41,633,609,000 (2013: 41,633,609,000 %
28,587,819,000) ordinary shares (ZE2—=%F:
of HK$0.0025 each 28,587,819,000 fi%)
SHREE0.0025 T
2 BB 104,084 71,470

—ZT—MFFHR ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

33. kA& (#)

Shares (continued) (a) BRB(E)
A summary of the transactions during the year FRNZRXHGBERT :
is as follow:
Number of Share
shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
ERTRAEE ERTRA Ry aEE ]
‘000 shares HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7 i3 Fi i3
At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 WN=F——%—-f-H"
and 1 January 2013 “E-—5+-B=1-RBR
—3-=£-i-H 13,431,022 33577 7,107,964 7,141,541
Subscription of shares (note (b)): RnREWE )
— 2010 First Subscription — F-TEE-EARER 1,964,612 4912 464,631 469,543
— 2011 First Subscription —E—FE-BIEEH 6,000,000 15,000 585,000 600,000
— 2011 Second Subscription — 5 -FEEAREE 6,000,000 15,000 585,000 600,000
Subrtotal Gt 13,964,612 34,912 1,634,631 1,669,543
Exercise of share options (note 34) EBREhZ M)
— Share options granted to the — RTAEEERREREL
consultants and the management BRE W2 540)
of the Group (note 34(b)) 12,800 32 2,198 2,230
— Other Options 11 (note 34(c)fi) — SRR (4 4/c)i) 920,985 2,303 150,951 163,254
— Qther Options 11l (note 34(c)fi) — EMERIE I 341l 258,400 646 63,954 64,600
1,192,185 2,981 217,103 220,084
Transfer from share option reserve ERRERERE
(nate 35(a)(iv) (it 35()iv) - - 3437 3437
Sub-total gt 1,192,185 2,981 220,540 223,521
At 31 December 2013 RZF-=4+-f=+-H 28,587,819 71470 8,963,135 9,034,605

ZepERESEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a)

33. A (#)

Shares (continued) (a) BB (&)
Number of Share
shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
EEGLVEE BERIRA RARER ag
‘000 shares HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i AT FAT AT
At 31 December 2013 and RZEB-=F+-A=+-Rk
1 January 2014 “Z-ME-A-A 28,587,819 71,470 8,963,135 9,034,605
Subscription of shares (note (b)): RERD W)
— 2011 Third Subscription —T-—FE-EIESS 6,000,000 15,000 585,000 600,000
— 2011 Incentive Subscription —Z3—FREAEEE 3,000,000 7500 292,600 300,000
Sub-total 9,000,000 22,500 877,500 900,000
Convertible Bonds conversion (note 30 RIRAERERHZ350) 3,800,598 9,501 1,733,064 1,742,565
Exercise of share options (note 34) R ERE )
— Share options granted to the —RTREEERREREL
consultants and the management BRE W2 5410)
of the Group (note 34(b)) 16,600 4 2,120 2,762
— Other Option 11 (note 34(c)ii) — EWERE (W2 3400)) 220114 555 36,40 36,960
— Other Option I1l (note 34(c)fii) — HAERIE N (2 340c)i7) 6,478 16 1,604 1620
245,192 613 40,729 41,342
Transfer from share option reserve EREERERE
(note 35(a)iv)) (W2 350/ - - 3,155 3,155
Sub-otal 5y 245,192 613 43,884 44,497
Cancellation of share premium and HERDREUEEZESR
transfer to contributed surplus — — (200,000) (200,000
At 31 December 2014 R=Z-BE+ZA=1-H 41,633,609 104,084 11,417,583 11,521,667

—ZT—MFFHR ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE —

33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

EREREEERBEARA

Subscription rights

On 20 May 2010, Apollo Precision (Fujian) Ltd.
("Fujian Apollo”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and Hanergy Holding
entered into a sales contract (“2010 Sales
Contract”) pursuant to which Fujian Apollo
agreed to sell, and Hanergy Holding agreed
to purchase the turnkey equipment, tools
and machinery of solar photovoltaic modules
production system with annual production
capacity of 3,000 MW to be delivered in three
batches for a total contract sum of US$2.55
billion. On the same date, the Company
entered into a subscription agreement (“2010
Subscription Agreement”) with Hanergy Holding.
According to the 2010 Subscription Agreement,
subject to the fulfilment or waiver of the
conditions set out in the 2010 Subscription
Agreement, Hanergy Holding is entitled to
subscribe for an aggregate of 4,911,528,960
shares of the Company, in three tranches,
namely the first batch of 1,964,611,584 shares,
the second batch of 1,473,458,688 shares
and the third batch of 1,473,458,688 shares.
The subscription price is HK$0.239 per share.
Pursuant to the supplemental agreement entered
into on 18 September 2011, the exercise price
for the second batch and the third tranche of
the 2010 Subscription was revised to HK$0.12
per share and HK$0.1 per share, respectively.
The exercise period of the 2010 Subscription

Agreement was in following manner:

—HE+ZA=+—RALFE)

33. kA& (#)

(b) FREEME
RZZE-—ZTFRA_+H B
fEBﬁ#%I SEARAB([1E2H

F ARRIZEEEEMNBAT)
ﬁi%ﬁ%%ﬁ&%Tﬁﬁﬁ%Aﬁ(f_ﬁ
—ZTEHEAR] Bt w2
HECRBHEMERERERE

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

BAFEMAERB3000 MWZ
ARG REBGEERF 2 EER
- TARKSE BRI -
BAEREEA265EET - R
B - AR EZEREIERE] N REE
#Z(ZZ-—ZFEREHZED - 1R
BT TERERE T2
fgiwﬁﬁfz%%ﬁﬁ%zm#um&

e EREREESZHR
%:. £4,911,528,960 f& AN 1A &) J&
3 - B1ZE—1#t1,964,611,684 % -
55 —#£1,473,458,688 % M F =4t
1,473,458,688 % - REERER
0.23987L - RER=ZZF——F N1
AT NBEI 2Rtz —F—
TERBESHIE_MRE=H
TEED ISR A ERR0.128 T
REGRONBTL  —E—ZFERME
g2 ITEAAT



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b) Subscription rights (continued)

Exercise periods

33. A& (%)
(b) REBREE
Number of
options
1T1EHA BREZR

On the third business day after the
payment by Hanergy Holding in
respect of the 2010 Sales Contracts
received by Fujian Apollo to be not
less than HK$3.3 billion

On the third business day after i) the
payment by Hanergy Holding in
respect of the 2010 Sales Contracts
received by Fujian Apollo to be not
less than HK$5 billion and ii) the
down payment of not less than 8%
of the consideration of the second
batch production lines in respect of
the 2010 Sales Contract, or upon
Hanergy Holding having an irrevocable
undertaking to pay within 24 months
from the date to complete such batch

On the third business day after i) the
payment by Hanergy Holding in
respect of the 2010 Sales Contracts
received by Fujian Apollo to be not
less than HK$6 billion and ii) the
down payment of not less than 8%
of the consideration of the third
batch production lines in respect of
the 2010 Sales Contract, or upon
Hanergy Holding having an irrevocable
undertaking to pay within 24 months
from the date to complete such batch

wEAGWEEEERL —F —
TEHESRNTIR3E3
BETRFE=ELEXEA

1,964,611,584
i) B EAIG W EE IR A B =

T -TFHESRI NN

5084 Ri)VpE=E—F
FHEGRINTLREN

EEZIEES% ZHIBEATE

NES » S ZE AR T AT

5] b B 18 P sz B SE K B AR R

FH24 A A& RIBESE

=E&E%ER

1,473,458,688

) BIEAG R EEEIEIR G ==
—ZEFHESRZNTIR
60EETL: Ri)H=F—F
FHESRINTIRE=H
HERIEER% 2 IAEATE
NE® « SERIERT AT
5] Hb# 58 18 A sz B SE K A AR
24 BRA A NZAKIBES
= fE=%R

1,473,458,688

4,911,528,960
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE -

33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

EREREEERBEARA

Subscription rights (continued)

On 18 September 2011,
Hanergy Holding entered into a sales contract

Fujian Apollo and

(“2011 Sales Contracts”) in relation to, among
others, the sale of the turnkey equipment, tools
and machinery of solar PV modules production
system with annual production capacity of 7,000
MW to be delivered in three batches and the
provisions of the technical and engineering
support, training services and the grant of a
software licence in relation to the equipments
by Fujian Apollo to Hanergy Holding, for an
aggregate consideration of US$5.95 billion.
On the same date, the Company entered into
a subscription agreement (“2011 Subscription
Agreement”) with Hanergy Holding. According
to the 2011 Subscription Agreement, subject
to the fulfilment or waiver of the conditions
set out in the 2011 Subscription Agreement,
Hanergy Holding is entitled to subscribe for, in
three tranches, an aggregate of 18,000,000,000
shares of the Company at the subscription price
of HK$0.1 per share. The exercise period of the
2011 Subscription was in following manner:

—HE+ZA=+—RALFE)

33. kA& (#)
(b) REBHE(E)
R-Z——FNLA+TN\B - BEH
[ E RG] L HEAR([ = F
——FHEAR])  REARR(H

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

BIE)HEFEHEERR7,000
MW 2 K F5 88 Y IR 4B 1 £ EE R 5°
CRERME  TANRMKSE H%’;}_
HER AT+ LA R AR A2 e 12 Ak
REBEARE TR IR ER
% SESIRES R H R R
®IEERB95EET - KAEH -
AR a) B ZE e IR AT 3 WA BE W
(ZZ2E——FREHZE]) - VIR
T —5RBhe T ——
F SR B 15 a5 P S 6 1R X Sl
R EREREESISHRESH
18 000,000,000 & A& 2~ A fg 1n

ﬁ%f BER0IAITL —F——
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 33. A& (%)
(b) Subscription rights (continued) (b) REBREE
Number
of options
Exercise periods 1T BREHR
Within one year after the cumulative BEMAGWE =T ——F 55

consideration in respect of the

EARZAFEEIIR

2011 Sales Contracts received by 1,800,000,000 % T2 —F W

Fujian Apollo to be not less than
HK$1,800,000,000

6,000,000,000

Within one year after the cumulative BEAGWE — T ——FH

consideration in respect of the

EARZRAMEEIDIR

2011 Sales Contracts received by 3,600,000,000 8018 —F A

Fujian Apollo to be not less than
HK$3,600,000,000

6,000,000,000

Within one year after the cumulative BEAGWE - ——FH

consideration in respect of the

EaRZZHEET IR

2011 Sales Contracts received by 6,300,000,000 /87012 —F K

Fujian Apollo to be not less than
HK$6,300,000,000

6,000,000,000

18,000,000,000

On 28 September 2011, the Company and
Hanergy Holding entered into a subscription
agreement (“Incentive Agreement”), pursuant to
which Hanergy Holding is entitled to subscribe
for 3 billion shares of the Company at the
subscription price of HK$0.10 per share, upon
the fulfilment of the conditions precedent
under the Incentive Agreement, among others,
the completion of subscription for all three
batches of the 2011 Subscription Agreement
by 31 October 2013. On 31 October 2013, the
Company and Hanergy Holding entered into
supplemental agreement to extend the expiry
date from 31 October 2013 to 31 October 2014.

A

RZZE—FNHA=ZTNB ' AR
A ELE A R AR T 7 SR 17k ([ 428
WaEl) - Bt - FEEEIHEZ LR
G (EhaiER—_2—=F1+A
=t+—HAIER = ——FREW
BZETAZBLRE)ERE B
ZR AR ER0.108 T 2 RE
EREBIOERARBRMD - R
T—=F+HA=+—8  ARQFHE
EERETEIRET R T ek ¢ LA B ED
BE=-ZT—=F+A=1+—HBE&#%
E-T—MNFEF+HA=+—H-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
(b)

EREIRE

I
%E

Subscription rights (continued)

On 28 December 2012, the ordinary resolution
approving the Whitewash Waiver was duly
passed by the independent shareholders of the
Company. From that date, all the pre-conditions
of the 2010 Subscription Agreement and 2011
Subscription Agreement have been substantially
met except the obtaining by the Company of
the written consent from all the bondholders of
the Convertible Bonds to waive any adjustment
to the conversion price pursuant to the
provisions of the Convertible Bonds caused by
the transactions contemplated under the 2010
Subscription Agreement and 2011 Subscription
Agreement (“Convertible Bondholders’ Waiver”).

On 27 February 2013, pursuant to the obtaining
of the Convertible Bondholders’ Waiver and
the cumulative payment received by Fujian
Apollo over HK$3.3 billion and HK$1.8 billion
in respect of the 2010 Sales Contract and
the 2011 Sales Contract, respectively, the
Company completed the issue and allotment of
the first tranche subscription of 1,964,611,584
shares of the 2010 Subscription Agreement
("2010 First Subscription”) and the first
tranche subscription of 6,000,000,000 shares
of the 2011 Subscription Agreement (“2011
First Subscription”) in respect of the 2010
Sales Contract and the 2011 Sales Contract,
respectively, to Hanergy Investment, a company
wholly-owned by Hanergy Affiliates, at the
subscription price of HK$0.239 per share and
HK$0.1 per share, respectively.

On 24 September 2013, pursuant to the
obtaining of the Convertible Bondholders’ Waiver
and the cumulative payment received by Fujian
Apollo over HK$3.6 billion in respect of the
2011 Sales Contract, the second batch of the
6,000,000,000 shares of the 2011 Subscription
Agreement (the “2011 Second Subscription”)
were issued and allotted to Hanergy Investment,
at the subscription price of HK$0.1 per share.

SEBERAR

33. kA& (#)

(b)

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

RBEE)

RZZE—=—F+=—A=+/\8 ' #it
R EZ TRRBEREERRD
AIBVRRIENBE - AE AR -
TEEEREHER T ——
RIB M 2 FTA ORI E R
FEK - AR RIEATE AR E
FEFEEANGERRE  #R
ARBE-ZT—ZFREHELE=Z
—— FREBBRET IR HEH
RIBAT AR EH 2 G HIREE
2 AT FARR RN AT E 5
BARR]) °

RZE—=F_F=++tH " R
BFASMERESFEEARE - B
MEEAGHR —E T FHESR
RZZ2——FHEER D KA
2R BIBEE T KL 18ES
T ARBITERA B ZFE—F
FHEARE-_E——FHEHES
EIRREE SR 0.2398 T B
01 BRI EEHBARZEHE
Z A&l Hanergy Investment 1T
N ERE % —#EFREE 1,964,611,584
B ([ ZE—SFE—IARABE
18 |) R 8 —#t 58 6,000,000,000
B ([ ZE——FE—HRARE
IH]) o

RZE—Z=FNLA=+MA &
BRBABRRESFFEARE
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& R E ZEH A LR 36 B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

Subscription rights (continued)

On 2 September 2014, pursuant to the obtaining
of the Convertible Bondholders’ Waiver and the
cumulative payment received by Fujian Apollo
over HK$6.3 billion in respect of the 2011 Sales
Contract, the third batch of the 6,000,000,000
shares of the 2011 Subscription Agreement
(the “2011 Third Subscription”) were issued
and allotted to Hanergy Investment, at the
subscription price of HK$0.1 per share. Upon
the completion for all three batches of the
2011 Subscription Agreement, 3,000,000,000
shares of the Incentive Agreement were issued
and allotted to Hanergy Investment, at the
subscription price of HK$0.1 per share.

The following table summarises the subscription
right transactions during the years:

33. A (#)

(b)

RZFE—MNFALA=ZR  AEE
MmRESFHEA#RE  NLEE
BB — T —FHEADOK
Bz 2ERIEEB/EIEE T
ZE-—FRBHITIE=H
6,000,000,000 & B {5 ([ =& — —
FE-HERBSTEERREE
FR0.1B TR IT R % TE R
BRE - TR —T——FERBEmE
NEF=Ho%& HREHBETZ
3,000,000,000 f& J& (5 B 12 REEE
TR 0.1 B ITEIT RAL R TiERR
ﬁ o

TERBEFRETRBRRS ¢

Weighted
Subscription average
rights exercise
outstanding price
AT MEFY
REE THEE
‘000 HK$
F17 BT
Outstanding at 1 January 2012, R-ZE——%—F—H-
31 December 2012 and —E-——F+-RA=t-HK
1 January 2013 2 =E-F-ARKRTHE 22,911,529 0.11
Granted [BEs i —
Exercised 2178 (13,964,612) 0.12
Outstanding at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+ZA=+—HHKTE
and 1 January 2014 k=E-mFE—-F—H 8,946,917 0.10
Issue of subscription right granted BTN _E——F RN
in 2011 REE 3,000,000 0.10
Exercised [REpy:d (9,000,000) 0.10
Outstanding at 31 December 2014 RZZE-—ME+=-A=1+—BHATE 2,946,917 0.11
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE —

34. SHARE OPTIONS

(a)

EREREEERBEARA

Share option scheme

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 28 August
2007,
scheme (the

the Company adopted a share option
“Scheme”) relating to the grant
of share options to directors, employees and
other participants (the “Grantee”) including
consultants, advisers, suppliers and customers

of the Group.

The directors may specify the minimum period,
if any, for which an option must be held or
the performance targets, if any, that must be
achieved by the Grantee before the option can

be exercised.

Share options may be granted without any initial
payment and at an exercise price (subject to
adjustments as provided therein) equal to the
highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares;
(i) the closing price per share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of the grant of the share option; and (iii) the
average of the closing prices per share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of the grant of the share option.

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon the exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme and any other share
option scheme(s) of the Company shall not
exceed 10% of the share capital of the Company
in issue on 28 August 2007, the date of adoption
of the Scheme, unless a refresh approval of the
shareholders is obtained.

—HE+ZA=+—RALFE)

34. B E
(a) BBARAEEHE
BER-—ST+tEN\A=-+/\HR
BB REE  ARARKN—IEE

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

R E([ZFHE D RARE 2
5= EEREMZ2EE([AR
Al BREER - &RA - HED
REF)EHBAAE -

Sy e RERREAETENL
ARTA Z AR (B ) AR A
VREHZRBBZ(NE) -

B R F] BB S HERI N 2 IR M
B (TEEGIRE EP%EEZE

AFABE)BRER T =FF 2 &
EZ )R ZEE (i) RHD B’\\ﬁ§
HX%WHZ'IMEE X FT R HIREBR

Frit 2 BRI E ¢ R (i) IR 7
EEERERLE R AEEZER
REER P B RE R AT 2 R
HTE o

E1TEREZET 8 RARQ RERE
b AR AT Bl TR 2 23
feEm A e 2 R =aE A T
BSHRBRARR_ZEZTLFENA
Z+N\B(BMEMZETE 2 BE) 2
BEBEITHRAZ10% @ HERER
B2 FEATHEAERR SN o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE —

34. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(a)

Share option scheme (continued)

Pursuant to the special general meeting held
on 11 June 2010, the resolution approving the
renewal of the 10% of the general limit was
passed by the shareholders and the maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the
share capital of the Company in issue on 11
June 2010. The total number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme is 461,224,947
(representing 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of passing the
resolution to refresh the 10% limit).

The maximum number of the shares (issued and
to be issued) in respect of which share options
may be granted under the Scheme to any one
Grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the share capital of the Company in issue
on the last date of such 12-month period unless
approval of the shareholders of the Company
has been obtained in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

The Scheme was approved by the shareholders
of the Company on 28 August 2007 and has a
life of 10 years until 27 August 2017.

—HE+-RA=+—RALFE)

34. BRE®)

(a)

BREEE(E)

BER-ZE—FF A +—B81T
ZBRERENARE  HEFEF10%
— R EMR 2 R RIERR AL - T
BT R IRZ T8 RA R R HE
tERETESE TRE 2B
fREMAIRE T2 RN E=EE
\ﬁ&@$gﬂm_§—giﬂ
AT—BZBEETRAZ10% °
AR R 2T BIE T 2 R B R
461,224,947 I (5 78 A & 7Y 3 18
EH10% LRZRZRERAZE
BITRA10%) ©

FMEAR 12 (& B B3 AR 45 7% =t 81 3%
TR —BAR A BREEFT IS R
ZBRHhE=EE (BTG T®
TT)$T%‘§E5@$A AIREZ 12 1@ A 88

MxE—BZBEETREAZ1% -
MERE EMAREREARRGRE
2 BUEBRAD ©

ZABIERN—ETLFNAZTN
BEARARRLE K10
F -HEE_Z—+tFN\AZTLR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—Z—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE)

34. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b)

Share options granted to the consultants and
the management of the Group

The following share based payment arrangements
were outstanding during the year:

34. BRE®)
(b) BFAEEEERTERBRE

AT AR AD B ERE 2 (LB F
MR ARITEE

2014 2013
“E-|E —T—=F

Weighted Weighted

average average
exercise price \TILEIE  exercise price Number
per share of options per share of options

SR mE st
FHTEE EREE FHTREE BREHE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT FE BT T
At 1 January n—H—H 0.1664 90,800 0.1664 103,600
Granted during the year ERRL 1.716 63,100 =
Exercised during the year ~ ER{T{E 0.1664 (16,600) 0.1664 (12,800)
Lapsed during the year FAXH 0.25 (2,400) —

At 31 December iy

=+—A 0.8912 134,900 0.1664 90,800

The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for share options exercised during the
the year was HK$0.1664 per share.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 134,900,000 share options outstanding
under the aforesaid options as listed in the table
above. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 134,900,000 additional ordinary shares of
the Company and additional share capital of
HK$22,447,360 (before issue expenses).

FABITEBRERITE B E 2
HEEHRE AT 0.1664 8T °

REREIIR - RARBIEZ LiliE
Pt A 134,900,000 17§ A4 1 K
I - WEEITEMKRITERER
W RBAARIRBRALRE 5
%17 134,900,000 B A A 7] 3738 X
A% - IR IE AR AN 22,447,360 7%
TLORMBREITHAZ) °

ZREERESEEEMR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

34. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 34. B #)
(b) Share options granted to the consultants and (b) BFEEEEEECBREE)
the management of the Group (continued)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the RBERRMKRITEZBREZTT
share options outstanding as at the end of the FEERITERNT

reporting period are as follows:

Number of options Exercise price* Exercise period
BREHE fTfEE* g

Granted to HKS$ per share

BT SRR
Consultants of the ~ BUEHK - 2,400 0.25 25 November 2010 to
Manufacturing B 24 November 2014
Business (i S s =
ZE-EF+—R=THEA
Management of the ~ ~&[E 71,800 88,400 0.1664 16 December 2011 to
Group | (i ERE| (i) 15 December 2016
—Z——%+-f+5~AZ
—E-—rE+ZATEA
Management of the ~ ~&[E 63,100 = 1.716 27 October 2014 to
Group I (iii ERE (i) 31 October 2019
ZE-METAZTLAE
“Z-NE+R=T-H

134,900 90,800
& The exercise price of the share options is * BERR R 2 TR AR AL AR 38 175K
subject to adjustment in the case of rights on AR A B AR A BRIy
bonus issues, or other similar changes in the EL FAEE -

Company’s share capital.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

34. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(b)

34. BRE®)

Share options granted to the consultants and (b) BFHrEEEEE2BREE)

the management of the Group (continued)

Notes: KieE -

(i) On 25 November 2009, being the date of (i) R—ZEETEAhF+—H=-Z+H
the completion of the acquisition of the BAPER WEREXK A
Manufacturing Business, the Company B) RDRAAEEEET
issued 320,000,000 share options to certain 320,000,000 7 i Ak 4 T~ B3 35
consultants of the Manufacturing Business for BB TER (TEEBAFK
nil consideration at an exercise price of HK$0.25 02587 UEBFEHEE
per share as an incentive of their contribution to ¥XBBEEFELER - B TE
the development of the Manufacturing Business. EEFEECBEREZEZER
The vesting date of the share options granted AREBHEF—F -RZ2FT
to consultants of the Manufacturing Business —E+=-—A=+—H "  FTH
was one year from the date of grant. As of 2,400,000 3 AR 5K -

31 December 2014, the remaining 2,400,000
options were lapsed.

(i) On 16 December 2011, the Company granted (i) R-Z——F+_-_A+/,xH '«
100,000,000 share options to the management N AIAZE(E X £ 100,000,000
of the Group for nil consideration at an exercise DERETASBEEEE - 176F
price of HK$0.1664 per share. The exercise BAER0.1664B L - R T A
periods of the share options granted to the SEEEREZBIREZTERW
management of the Group are as follows: T

Number of options
Exercise periods 1T1EHE BRERE
‘000
F17

16 December 2011 to 15 December 2016 —Z——%+=-F+/xHE
—ZT—XF+=-A+HH 10,000

16 December 2012 to 15 December 2016 ~ —ZT——F+—-F+xBE
—ZT—XF+=-A+=HH 10,000

16 December 2013 to 15 December 2016 —ZT—=F+—"H+,xBE
—F—XF+=-A+=HAH 10,000

16 December 2014 to 15 December 2016 ~ —Z—ME+—-F+XBE
—T—XF+=-A+=HAH 10,000

16 December 2015 to 15 December 2016 —Z—AF+-F+BE
—T—RFE+=—A+HH 60,000
100,000

E£E AR AT HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE —=

34. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

—HE+-RA=+—RALFE)

34. BRE®)

(b) Share options granted to the consultants and (b)
the management of the Group (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

On 27 October 2014, the Company announced to
grant 68,300,000 share options to the employees
of the Group for HK$1 as consideration by each
of the Grantees at an exercise price of HK$1.716
per share under the Scheme approved by the
shareholders of the Company on 28 August
2007(note 34(a)). As at 31 December 2014,
63,100,000 share options were validly accepted.

The fair values of the management options,
which are classified as equity, were estimated at
their grant date using the binominal model with

the following assumptions:

RYyr-sEEERE 2BREE)

Wizt - (&)

(i) N-ZE—ME+A_++H"
ARBRBARRABRRN -
TEENA_+TNBHAEZZ
FEl AAEEEEASRD
68,300,000 17 & fx 4 - KB &
BRUARABT  (THREAS
f%1.7167%8 JT(Mf 3E34(a)) ° B
—ET—NmFE+-A= =g v
63,100,000 17 B A 15 B e 4 o
EmERE L N FEGIAE
ﬁn)m;zflézw;-zztgé&&ja,ﬁﬂ

BRI SRR

Director General staff

= —REBE

Stock price as at grant date (HK$) ®HEERZBREGET) 1.71 1.71

Exercise price (HK$) TEEET) 1.716 1.716

Earliest exercise date (T) SEITEBE(T) T1: 27 Oct 2014 T1: 27 Oct 2014

T ZF—NFE T ZT—0F

+A=++H +A=++H

T2: 1 Nov 2015 T2: 1 Nov 2015

T2: ZF—RF T2 ZFT—FF

+—HA—H +—A—H

T3: 1 Nov 2016  T3: 1 Nov 2016

T3 ZF—R"F T3 ZF—XHF

+—HA—H +—A—H

T4: 1 Nov 2017  T4: 1 Nov 2017

T4 —F—+F T4 _F—+F

+—A—H +—A—H

T6: 1 Nov 2018  T5: 1 Nov 2018

T8 —F—\F T5: —_F—N\F

+—A—H +—A—H

Volatility S IE T1: 63% T1: 63%

T2: 62% T2: 62%

T3: 55% T3: 55%

T4: 62% T4: 62%

T5: 60% T5: 60%

Risk free rate Rk = T1: 0.092% T1: 0.092%

T2: 0.273% T2: 0.273%

T3: 0.641% T3: 0.641%

T4: 1.025% T4: 1.025%

T5: 1.225% T5: 1.225%

Dividend yield A% BB 37 K 0.2% 0.2%

Trigger price multiple R EE S 2.8x 2.2x

Exit rate BB L = 0% 22.2%
The exercise periods of the share options BYAEEERE 2 BRIEZTT

granted to the management of the Group are as EHEmT :

follows:

Number of options

Exercise periods Cogcd BREZA
‘000

F

27 QOctober 2014 to 31 October 2015 —FT-ME+A-t+tHE-F—RFt+A=1—H 6,310
1 November 2015 to 31 October 2016 :?—ﬁﬁ‘l‘—ﬂ—aﬁ_?—*ﬁﬂ‘ﬂiﬂ‘—ﬁ 6,310
1 November 2016 to 31 October 2017 :2 ~NEt—A—-BE=Z—+fF+A=1—H 6,310
1 November 2017 to 31 October 2018 —+E+—HA—-RAE-F-N\E+A=+—H 6,310
1 November 2018 to 31 October 2019 :T NE+—A—HE-ZE-NF+A=+—H 37,860
63,100
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE —

34. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

EREREEERBEARA

Other share options

Beside the abovementioned share-based options

issued, the Company granted the following share

options as financial instruments to the grantees.

i)

Hanergy Options

On 6 August 2010,
granted options to the companies which

the Company has

are owned by the employees of the
Hanergy Holding as an incentive of
contribution to a smooth execution of
the 2010 Sales Contracts (the
Options”). The Hanergy Options were not

“Hanergy

granted under the Share Option Scheme.

The Hanergy Options entitled the Hanergy
Holding’s employees to subscribe for an
aggregate of 602,448,000 shares of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$0.72.
They were exercisable during the period
commencing on the payment in full of the
three instalment prepayments for the sale
of the first batch of production lines for the
2010 Sales Contract, and ending on the day
immediately prior to the fifth anniversary
of the date of grant. They will lapse, upon
the earlier of: (i) the fifth anniversary of
the date of grant; and (ii) on 31 December
2011 if Hanergy Holding fails to pay the
three instalment prepayments in respect
of the sale of the first batch of production
lines under the 2010 Sales Contract in full
before that day. Since Hanergy Holding
failed to pay all three instalments in full
before 31 December 2011, all the Hanergy
Options lapsed on 31 December 2011.

—HE+ZA=+—RALFE)

34. BRE®)
Hibgs e

RIF L2 BT 2 AR BERRE
IR - ARBRERARBIATE

(c)

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

BRIEEREBMTIA -

i) ERIBRE
RARAER_T—ZF)N\A
/\ H Fﬂ EE/S% laT HX{E,\%ﬁ
ZRBREBIRE  (ERRK
ERIEFEL T —TFH
EERMIEL TR Z 2ZE

(MEREREAAE]) - BB
ERIER R F i

LB IRER TIE TR E
BREMITIZITHEET2E

JC R B A £602,448,000 f%
KRAARGD - =T —FF
HEGRME - AEERE
AREEF—IEERZ =
HEMRERSEINRER
ERTASPAAFIZAL
HERNTE EEERED
IR
ML BHARE: K
W ZREIE AR RBERZ B AT 2
BXN T —ZFHEESR
BTEF—#HtAEERz —HE
NRIE: =2 ——F+=
A=+—8 - @REeeZER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE —

34. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Other share options (continued)

ii)

Other Options Il

On 18 September 2011,
entered into an option agreement (“2011

the Company

Option Agreements”) with Hanergy
Holding, pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to grant the options
("“Other Options IlI") to Hanergy Holding (or
The
options issued to Hanergy Holding were

its designated individuals or entities).

mainly to ensure its signature and smooth
execution of the 2011 Sales contract.

On 16 December 2011,
the conditions precedent to each of the

after fulfilment of

2011 Options Agreements, the Company
had granted the Other Options Il to
Hanergy Option Limited (Hanergy Holding’s
The Other Options Il
were not granted under the Share Option

designated entity).

Scheme.

The Other Options Il entitled Hanergy
Option Limited to subscribe for an
aggregate of 1.3 billion shares of
the Company at an exercise price of
HK$0.1664. They will lapse upon the fifth

anniversary of the date of grant.

—HE+-RA=+—RALFE)

34. BRE®)

(c)

A

Hih @R (Z)

i) BEEREI
RZFE——FLA+N\H -
ZK _Jgﬁi/gﬁb I uTiaﬁﬂX
EmE( 2T ——FHERE
Wl Bl ARARABK

—

fFI R = AR A AR (B 45
EZATHER)REER
(THEMBBEREND - &7

TERE Iﬂxzﬁﬁﬂx%\ixﬁ

BREFERIENFZLI-F
——FHEAR o

RZE——F+ A+~
B REK_ZT——FER

EEWEE B 2 RIRIGHEE
RN @]E M Hanergy Option
Limited CEgEIEIR 2 HEEE
B EMEERRE - Hih
R R RE || 0 JE AR 45 B AR R 5T
2R -

H b B A #E 11 B T Hanergy
Opt|on L|m|ted$§ﬂ—ﬁizﬁ
5 /80.1664 % TR B4 &
1I3EBRAQERMD » R
RHBSRAFRY -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

34. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 34. BRE#®)
(c) Other share options (continued) (c) EHuniEmeEZE)
ii)  Other Options Il (continued) i) ErEREI(E)
For the Other Options Il granted on 16 RZE——F+=ZA+7~H
December 2011, the exercise periods are BEZHMEREENZTE
as follows: HAGN R -
Number of
options
Exercise periods TS BREEE
‘000
Fig
16 December 2011 to 15 December 2016 —E——F+=-A+XBE
—T—RFt+-B+HH 610,000
16 December 2012 to 15 December 2016 —ZE——F+__A+,HZE
—E-R"¥+-A+HhA 310,000
16 December 2013 to 15 December 2016 —ZT—=%+_A+BZ
—E-R"E+ZA+HHAH 310,000
16 December 2014 to 15 December 2016 —ZE—M&E+_-A+BHZE
—Z-R"ETZATHA 10,000
16 December 2015 to 15 December 2016 —Z—FRE+-A+BE
—E-R"F+ZA+HA 60,000
1,300,000

248 B HEERTEESRAT HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

34. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 34. B #)
(c) Other share options (continued) (c) HimEmEE)
ii)  Other Options Il (continued) i) ErEREI(E)
The following table summarises the TERBE M E A B AR RE I RN
movements of the Other Options Il during A7 EE)
the year:
2014 2013
—B-mE —E-=F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number exercise price Number
per share of options per share of options
SRmE S
FHTHEE BREHE TR EREHE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
A i AT &
At 1 January ®-A-H 0.1664 379,015 0.1664 1,300,000
Granted during the year ~ ER&KH - —
Exercised during the year FER{T{E 0.1664 (222,114) 0.1664 (920,985)

Expired during the year ~ £RfET - -

At 31 December W+ZA=+-8 0.1664 156,901 0.1664 379,015
The weighted average share price at the FRNEITEBRENITER
date of exercise for share options exercised HzmMEFHRERT KR
during the year was HK$0.1664 per share. 0.1664 87T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

34. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 4. BRE#)
(c) Other share options (continued) (c) EHuniEmeEZE)
ii)  Other Options Il (continued) i) ErEREI(E)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of RS AR B RIT 2 HAtb
the Other Options Il outstanding as at the AR 2 1T (B & 17 5 HF
end of the reporting period are as follows: (N

Number of options
BREHE
31 December

t=A=+—H

Exercise price*
TREE*
HK$ per share Exercise period

BT AT

86,901 309,015 0.1664 16 December 2013 to 15 December 2016
TR+ _ATRAEZZ—RF
+=ZA+EHAH
10,000 10,000 0.1664 16 December 2014 to 15 December 2016
—E-NE+ A+ ANBEZE—RF
+=-A+AA
60,000 60,000 0.1664 16 December 2015 to 15 December 2016
—E-hF+TZATARBEZE—RF
+=-A+AAH
156,901 379,015
@ The exercise price of the share options is * FERRAE 2 TR BA AT R AL AR
subject to adjustment in the case of rights BITHA R AR AHIEE
on bonus issues, or other similar changes ALl BB RS (EH R

in the Company’s share capital.

ZepERESEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

34. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

Other share options (continued)

iii)

Other Options Il

On 6 September 2012, the Company
and Hanergy Holding entered into an
option agreement, pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to grant
Hanergy (or such person(s) at its direction)
options (the “Other Options [II") to
subscribe for an aggregate of 600,000,000
shares of the Company at the exercise
price of HK$0.25 per share. Since the
Hanergy Options, which were acting as
an incentive of contribution to a smooth
execution of the 2010 Sales Contract,
have lapsed in 2011, the Company and
Hanergy Holding entered into this option
agreement to grant options as incentive for
the smooth execution and expediting the
transactions contemplated under the 2010
Sales Contract.

On 31 December 2012, after the fulfilment
of the conditions precedent to the option
agreement, the Company had granted the
Other Options Ill to Hanergy Investment
Limited (Hanergy Holding’s designated
entity). The Other Options Il were not
granted under the Share Option Scheme.
They will lapse upon the fifth anniversary
of the date of grant.

34. BRE®)
HAh R ()

(c)

iii)

A

—

Btz 21

RZZE—Z—FNANH &
A B B RE 1 AR AT 3 B AR A
W& - Bt ARFEBK
i B B M E e (S H AT
TZBBRAL)RLEKRE
(TEMEERREND) - RS
fR0.25B T 2TFEEREE
600,000,000 f& Z& A &) B
17 o RREEEEIRE(EAY
BRI —E—BEHES
FEH BRI Z BB ER =
——F R AR EE
BEPERR AT ST Ut BB AR A%
AR B IR M R B ) 25 57
MINRBE - —TFHE
BERBET IR ZHE -

R-B——&FE+=-A=+—
H EEREBE 2
ERGEHEER XRAABE
M Hanergy Investment
Limited CEREIERIEE 2 E
BRI EAREARE | o H A
RERRE | I IEAR IR B AR A 5T
EIEE  THERNEREBER
BERRY o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—Z—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE)

34. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c) Other share options (continued)

iii)

Other Options Il (continued)

For the Other Options Ill granted to
Hanergy Investment Limited on 31
December 2012, the exercise periods are

34. BRE®)
(c) HiEEmREE)
iii) BB EE I ()

RZE—Z—ZF+A=+—
H#% ¥ Hanergy Investment
Limited Z HAbEEARMEIZ

as follows: 1T ERN T ¢

Number of options
Exercisable period TR BREZE

31 December 2012 to 31 December 2017 —ZE——F+-A=+—H%
—T—+F+-A=+—H 300,000

31 December 2013 to 31 December 2017 —ZE—=%+_A=+—H%
“E—+F+-A=+—H 150,000

31 December 2014 to 31 December 2017 —ZE—WF+-_A=+—HBZF
—T—+tF+=-A=1+—H 150,000
600,000

The following table summarises the

SR A A R AR 1

movement of the Other Options Il during Sl
the year:
2014 2013
—E-mF —E-=F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price \VIplo-IQ  exercise price Number
per share of options per share of options
SR mE G e
TATEER fERERE THTEE B ES R
HK$ HK$ ‘000
BT BT TR
At 1 January »—A—H 0.25 341,600 0.25 600,000
Granted during the year FRRH - - = =
Exercised during the — FRTE
year 0.25 (6,478) 0.25 (258,400)
Expired during the year ERER - - = =
wnt+=A
At 31 December =+—H 0.25 335,122 0.25 341,600

The weighted average share price at the
date of exercise for share options exercised
during the year was HK$0.25 per share.

FRETEBERERITEA
Bz mEFAORERETR
0.25%87T °

ZREERESEEEMR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

34. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(c) Other share options (continued)
iii)  Other Options Il (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of
the Other Options Ill outstanding as at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

Number of options

34. BRE®)
(c) HtbBmEZ)
iii)  E g EI (&)

R B N R AT E 2 A
R AR A 111 2 771 18 J2 47 45 29
m -

Exercise period

1T

BRERE
31 December
t=A=+—H
2014 2013 Exercise price*
=Bl — T — TEE*
‘000 ‘000  HK$ per share
F&7 T BB T
35,122 41,600 0.25
150,000 150,000 0.25
150,000 150,000 0.25
335,122 341,600

The exercise price of the share options is
subject to adjustment in the case of rights
on bonus issues, or other similar changes
in the Company’s share capital.

31 December 2012 to 31 December 2017

2+ -A=+-—HEZZ—+F
+=-A=+—H

31 December 2013 to 31 December 2017

—E—=F+-A=+—HEZZT—+tF
+=—A=+—H

31 December 2014 to 31 December 2017

—E-ME+_A=+—HEZZE—+F
+=A=+—8

* BB Z AT E B AT Y
BITRARRRAHBRE
RN B R AR AR 2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

34. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 4. BRE#)
(c) Other share options (continued) (c) EHuniEmeEZE)
The following table summarises the movements TR UE R - Hab AR
of the Hanergy Options, Other Options Il and N A BERSAE (1| A FE A Z & H -

Other Options Il during the year:

Weighted
Share average
options exercise
outstanding price
RITHE n#EFH
W TEE
‘000 HK$
F15 T
Outstanding at R-ZE—=%—H—H
1 January 2013 AT 1,900,000 0.1928
Granted 25 H _ _
Exercised 2171 (1,179,385) 0.1847
Expired 2B W _ _
Outstanding at RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H
31 December 2013 CENGNE 720,615 0.2060
Exercised 2178 (228,592) 0.1688
Expired [N EN] — _
Outstanding at RZE—WOF+=-_A=+—H
31 December 2014 fH AT 18 492,023 0.2233
At the end of the reporting period, the Company RIBEHF - AQFIRE FRF5)
had 492,023,000 share options outstanding > BERRREA 492,023,000 17 BE R 4
under the aforesaid options as listed in the table MRTTE o (4R ETE M /TR
above. The exercise in full of the outstanding MakE - RN TR AR AR
share options would, under the present capital ¥ 2517 492,023,000 & AN 2 7] $7 12
structure of the Company, result in the issue IS - N0 E AR AN 109,868,736
of 492,023,000 additional ordinary shares of HEIT(RHMBBETEL) -

the Company and additional share capital of
HK$109,868,736 (before issue expenses).

254 EaEEEEEEERAT HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

35. RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and

the movements therein for the current year

are presented in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity on pages 115 and 116 of the

consolidated financial statements.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents an
amount equivalent to the par value of the
ordinary shares cancelled as a result of the
share repurchase.

Reserve funds

Pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC, a portion of the
profits of the Company’'s subsidiaries
in the PRC has been transferred to the
reserve funds which are restricted to use
to offset against accumulated losses or
to increase capital. As at 31 December
2014, approximately HK$52,035,000 (2013:
HK$19,999,000) has been recognized to

the reserve funds.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus arose from the
capital reorganisation in prior years.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair
value of share options granted which are
yvet to be exercised, as further explained
in the accounting policy for share-based
payments in note 2.4 to the consolidated
financial statements. The amount will be
transferred either to the share premium
account when the related options are
exercised, or retained profits should the
related options expire or lapse.

35. f#E
(a)

A

AEHE
REEBRAFEZHBCERAESE
BENRE M EHREKFE 115K 116
BZRAEREERK -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

—

EXEE#E

EXBEOREZ2BENE
{0 fE 1= 1 ot 86 2 & B AR
-

#EE

R 15 R B AR BRA B ROE AR
ARRAE 2 BB AR Z 5
STRFNEEEE ARG A
B EES NWIEHERGT
BEIEMER RZF
—mE+—A=t+—8"'4%
52,035,000 (=& — =
119,999,000 7t ) E B
REESRER -

EHREG

ERBRDEEANBEFE
ZEXREH -

BRERE

BREFREERECELER
TEZBREZAVE R
RAVBHmREAME2460
B zgtBEE—F
Mt o %2 KR AEEEK
RETERBRERMNEE
xS AR B R AR FE S
ABEERERT RN ©
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35. RESERVES (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—Z—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE)

35. f#E#)

Company (b) ZAATE
Share Capital Convertible Share
premium  redemption  Contributed  Bonds equity option  Accumulated
account reserve surplus reserve reserve losses Total
- TRkE
RitEER  REGE  EEER  GEERE  BRERG gkl it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
AT FAT 7T FAT FET 7T FAT
At 1 January 2013 RZZ-Z£-f-R 7,107,964 7,600 262,432 895,685 24,000 (651512) 7,646,169
Subscription of shares PERA 1,634,631 - - - - — 1634631
Exercise of share options ~ 7(F B MR fE 220540 - - - 3.437) = 217103
Transaction with owners  EEBAZRS 1,855,171 - - - (3.437) - 1851734
Total comprehensive loss ~ AEE2ABELE
for the year - - - - - (59,285 (69,285
At 31 December 2013 and ~ H=E-=
1 January 2014 t-A=t-HR
ZE-WE-A-R 0 896313 7,600 262,432 895,685 20,563 (110.797) 9438618
Cancellation of share BE )l e s
premium and transfer o AR
contributed surplus 200,000) - 200,000 - - - -
Subscription of shares R 877,500 = = = = = 877,500
Dividend declared EERKE = = (429,300) = = — (429,300)
Exercise of share options ~ 17(F R {E 13884 = - - (3,155 - 40729
Share option expense BREER - - - - 2431 - 2431
Exercise of convertile bonds {7(E T k(e 1,733,064 - - (395,680) - - 837,379
Transaction with owners  EEAAZRS 2,454,448 — (293000 (895,68 (724) - 138739
Total comprehensive loss for AEE2EHEES
the year - - - — - (67,317) 67,317)
At 31 December 2014 R-%-RBE
tZR=1-H 11,417,583 7,600 33132 - 19,839 (778,114) 10,700,040

ZREERESEEEMR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 &z —Z—

36. ACQUISITIONS

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014,
the Company completed the following acquisitions:

(a)

Business combinations under common
control

Solibro Research AB

Solibro Research AB (“SRAB”) is principally
engaged in the research and development of
Copper Indium Gallium Selenide (“CIGS”) thin
film technologies based in Sweden.

On 2 September 2013, Apollo Kunming, a
100% wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
acquired the entire interest in SRAB from
Hanergy Holding. The total purchase price was
RMB80,000,000 (HK$101,751,000). The assets
acquired and liabilities assumed by the Company
were recorded at their carrying values as of 2
September 2013 as in the books of Hanergy
Affiliates. The difference between net assets
acquired and the consideration paid to Hanergy
Affiliates was adjusted in retained earnings as
a deemed distribution to Hanergy Affiliates. In
addition, the results of operations of SRAB have
been included in the Company’'s consolidated
financial statements since the Company and
SRAB became under common control by
Hanergy Holding on 27 February 2013, when
Hanergy Affiliates completed the 2010 First
Subscription and 2011 First Subscription and
became the controlling shareholder of the
Company (note 1).

SRAB was originally 100% wholly owned by
Solibro GmbH (“Solibro”) before it was acquired
and controlled by Hanergy Holding. Hanergy
Holding, through its certain subsidiaries,
acquired the entire equity interest in Solibro
together with SRAB from an unrelated third
party and assumed the outstanding indebtedness
owed by Solibro to the then shareholder on 25
September 2012. The acquisition consideration
was EUR12,605,000. Subsequently on 16 July
2013, Hanergy Holding and Solibro entered
into a share purchase agreement, pursuant
to which Hanergy Holding purchased a 100%
equity interest in SRAB from Solibro. On the
completion of the transaction, Hanergy Holding
became the immediate parent of SRAB.

36.

ME+=—A=+—BLFE)

WEEE

Hz—_Z—=fK_ZFT-—NFE+_A
=+ —HIEFE  ARAITEKATRE
£I15 ¢

(a) RHAREHZEBSH

Solibro Research AB

Solibro Research AB([SRAB])
AImB e AR - = B FIRMER
W ([CIGS ) BBy 2 13 -

RZE—=FNLA=-H ' AR
Ziéﬁﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁmé
TR U BESRAB Z 2 EiiE S o A2
B AE A A R #80,000,0007T
(101,751,000 7T ) ° &R &) ATl
BRAEZEERBERZRENR=ZE
—=ZFNAA-—HREEBBELGZ
BEHHﬁﬁiZJ?QiﬁEEEEEﬁ g
BEFHEMERBBARSMN2E
{EZ%%EEM%;”EWJ%‘EM%Z%%W’E
/ﬁ%/&% %Z\\a"lﬂim\ =l
PIN/N —T&SRABEA:%—*E—H
—+EB(RERE RNATEK =
=z — 2&%—15\%%%1?&*?
——FE-ERBEBEEKARA
Al 1E Hxﬂx%ﬁf)x@%ﬁz 78 f% K A
I%‘J{é SRABZ %%EEu+A
RABZERE T RERE (FIzE1) ©

R SRAB X £ At 5 i% Uk B8 & 1%
# Bi- E K B Solibro GmbH
([Solibrol)100% 2 B #E A& - £
EEREBEETHEBARER
SRABR=_ZE——F NLA=-+HH
M JERE % = A UHE Solibroz &
EBPHEE - LA K HE Solibro &5 R &
BFRREZ AEEER - Hﬁzﬁ%ﬁﬂ?‘:
#12,605,00087C > BER A = F
—=F Lt A+NH EREEKHE
Solibro 7] S FERR sk » 1Rt - 2
8E 122 i% A Solibro B8 A SRAB 2 Ffr
ERIE - R BTAHE - SEREIERR
XA SRAB 2 H# A A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

36. ACQUISITIONS (continued) 36. WIEEE (#)

(a) Business combinations under common (a)
control (continued)

Solibro Research AB (continued)

The following table summarises the fair values
of assets and liabilities of SRAB when Hanergy

ZHEEWZEBEH(E)

Solibro Research AB (#&)

TREGERZREERNR - ——F
AA=Z+AAEKEH SRABEZ

Holding first controlled SRAB on 25 September BEMBBZATAE :
2012:
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment W -~ B k& 11,779
Intangible assets EmEE 21,858
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H At fE W IR 72,908
Cash and cash equivalents HehIReFEY 654
Other current assets HEMneh&E 3,040
Current liabilities mENAE (26,371)
Deferred tax liabilities EEIBEE (4,809)
Fair value recognised by Hanergy Holding EREERER AT E 79,059
Purchase price paid to unrelated third party [AIZERESE =N 2B AE (78,779)
Gain on bargain purchase recognised
by Hanergy Holding BRI 2 B ERE W 280

The valuation is based on the valuation results
prepared by the Hanergy Holding's directors
using the income based approach by estimating
the future economic benefits and discounting
these benefits into present value using a
discount rate appropriate for the risks associated
with realising those benefits.

EREBREEEEERL HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

HERBERERZEEHRE 2
BER  FRARARBER 2R
AR AR BN - I[%xﬂ% SEEA
&M 25 4E B 2 B i A 2 B3R R Bk
iﬁ%Zﬁ?‘F'Jﬁﬁ?tﬁE :



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

36. ACQUISITIONS (continued) 36. WIEEE (&)

(a) Business combinations under common (a) SHEEZGIZEBEHE)
control (continued)

Solibro Research AB (continued) Solibro Research AB (#&)

As of 2 September 2013, the deemed RZE—=FALA=-H BAEXARA
distribution to Hanergy Holding upon the I B& SRABBEED IR T2 RERETE
acquisition of SRAB by the Company was (N

determined as follows:

HK$'000
TE8T
Consideration paid by the Company to RA R ANE AR A
Hanergy Holding Z1EB 101,751
Dividend paid by SRAB to Hanergy Holding ~ FAZA AIUKBE AT SRAB [A1£ B 12 1%
before the Company’s acquisition DIk Z BB 48,520
Less: Consideration paid by Hanergy JE EBEERAIE = ARSI 2
Holding to third party shareholders EE 78,779
Less: Operating results of SRAB between Bt SRABRZZE——_FNA
25 September 2012 and —tHHEHE-ZE—=%
27 February 2013, when the ZAZHEB(ERRRAR
Company and SRAB became under SRAB EZ RE AR 2t A 12
common control of Hanergy Holding 2 HAfE) SRAB Z (& & 545 (4,089)
Deemed distribution as of —ZT—=%NA=H
2 September 2013 ZIRED IR 75,5681
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

36. ACQUISITIONS (continued)
(a)

EREIRE

I
%E

Business combinations under common
control (continued)

Hanergy UK

On 9 February 2014, Hanergy Solar PV
Application UK Limited (“Hanergy Application
UK"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Hanergy Global Investment
and Sales, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of Hanergy Holding entered into a sale
and purchase agreement. According to the
agreement, Hanergy Global Investment and
Sales agrees to sell and Hanergy Application
UK agrees to purchase (i) the entire issued
share capital in Hanergy UK, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hanergy Holding; and (ii)
the shareholder loan of Hanergy UK due to
Hanergy Global Investment and Sales, at the
consideration of HK$1 upon and subject to the
terms and conditions of the agreement. The
carrying amount of the shareholder loan as at 31
December 2013 was GBP1,716,824.

Hanergy UK is incorporated in June 2012 in the
United Kingdom indirectly by Hanergy Holding,
and is principally engaged in the sale of thin film
solar photovoltaic equipment and the provision
of the relevant installation services in the United
Kingdom.

As the Group and Hanergy UK were under
common control of Hanergy Holding prior to
and after the acquisition, the acquisition is
considered as a combination of entities under
common control. Accordingly, the assets and
liabilities of Hanergy UK have been accounted
for at historical cost and the consolidated
financial statements of the Group prior to
the acquisition have been restated to include
the results of operations of Hanergy UK on a
combined basis. The consideration paid by the
Company for the acquisition has been accounted
for as an equity transaction in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. The acquisition
of the shareholder loan amounting to
HK$21,958,000 of Hanergy Global Investment
and Sales was accounted for as a contribution
from Hanergy Holding Group in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

SEBERAR

36. WEESIE(#)

(a)

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

ZHEEWZEBEH(E)

Hanergy UK

R-_ZE—MWME_-_FALHB XA
A 2 M 2 &M B2 5 Hanergy
Solar PV Application UK Limited
(IHanergy Application UK]J)
HZRER 2 EEREZ2ERB A
Al Hanergy Global Investment
and Saless] M B E ik o IRIEZ
1p 7 I 52 PR 7O 5% 19 2 A (6 5k I (&
% Hanergy Global Investment
and Sales[d & H % i Hanergy
Application UK[F & 88 A (i)% &
Th% 2 M2 E M B F Hanergy
UKHE) & &8 B 317 | A 5 R (i)
Hanergy UK &1 Hanergy Global
Investment and SalesH) X R &
KEBRIBIL - RZTE—=F
+ZA=+—8 ' BRERZE@
E51,716,824 558 o

Hanergy UK =—ZE——F /A&
R GEMACSL - RIEREIERR
B WEFERENEEHEE SRR
BEEREFR TRHEBZER
ﬁ-% °

RN AERE K& Hanergy UK EARE
VERR 7 RS - 2B B IEE R
BZEEES 2 EBE O o Eitt -
ZUWEFHECEERAGBERE
SERRAEBAR - NREERKIESIE
A2 SR B SRR EEENE RS
HEEFAZKESHEZ EEFE
B ANRIZBEEES N2
BEFABBEEEEEEHR AT
BRA—IERERS - Wi Hanergy
Global Investment and Sales Z
f% R & 721,958,000 ;L B 5F A
ERRR AR E R NYIR BB 2
BEIERR =B 2 BB o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

36. ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(a)

Business combinations under common
control (continued)

GSE

Global Solar Energy, Inc. (“GSE") is principally
engaged in the manufacturing of photovoltaic
products and equipment based in the United
States.

GSE was originally 100% wholly-owned by
SOLON SE and Lumenion AG before it was
entirely acquired and controlled by Hanergy
Holding. Hanergy Holding, through its subsidiary
Hanergy Holding (Hong Kong) Limited (“Hanergy
Holding HK"), acquired the entire capital
stock of GSE on 22 July 2013. The acquisition
consideration was US$12,588,000.

The following table summarises the fair values
of assets and liabilities of GSE when Hanergy

(a)

36. WEBESIE(#)

ZHEEWZEBEH(E)

GSE

Global Solar Energy, Inc.
([GSE)FEMEREEAREM
R -

FH % B8 15 AR & EB U s J2 1 6l AT -
GSE ZH SOLON SE ¥ Lumenion
AG 100% 2 &#HHE - R-_T—=
FEXrA-+ -8B EEERE
i% E [ B A "lHanergy Holding
(Hong Kong) Limited ([Hanergy
Holding HK1) 4 B GSE & &8 A%
T - W85 12,588,000 3% T °

TRBANEEERR T —=%F
Tt AZ T ZHEREHGSERZ

Holding first controlled GSE on 22 July 2013: BERBGEZATE
HK$000
FEIT
Property, plant and equipment VI - RE R 115,313
Intangible assets | EE 20,090
Inventory FE 25,287
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 40
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H At fE W IR 258
Deposit and prepayments e MIEFIE 639
Current liabilities nBBE (5,022)
Other non-current liabilities HMIERBEE (57,765)
Fair value recognised by Hanergy Holding BRERER 2 AT E 98,840

Purchase price paid to an unrelated MEREEF=HF N ZBAE

third party (98,840)

T—NEEH ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE —

36. ACQUISITIONS (continued)

ZH

(a)

CEREEREBRA

Business combinations under common
control (continued)

GSE (continued)

The valuation is based on the valuation results
prepared by Hanergy Holding's directors using
the income based approach by estimating the
future economic benefits and discounting these
benefits into present value using a discount rate
appropriate for the risks associated with realising
those benefits.

On 9 December 2014, Hanergy Hi-Tech Power
(HK) Limited (“Hanergy Hi-Tech"”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Hanergy Holding HK entered into a sale
and purchase agreement. According to the
agreement, Hanergy Holding HK agrees to
sell and Hanergy Hi-Tech agrees to purchase
all the ordinary share capital of GSE at the
consideration of US$1 upon and subject to the
terms and conditions of the agreement.

As the Group and GSE were under common
control of Hanergy Holding, the acquisition is
considered as a combination of entities under
common control. Accordingly, the assets and
liabilities of GSE have been accounted for at
the fair value recognised by Hanergy Holding
when acquired GSE and the consolidated
financial statements of the Group prior to the
acquisition have been restated to include the
results of operations of GSE commencing from
the date when GSE became under control of
Hanergy Holding. The consideration paid by the
Company for the acquisition has been accounted
for as an equity transaction in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. The difference
between net assets acquired of HK$98,840,000
and the consideration paid to Hanergy Holding
HK was accounted for as a contribution from
Hanergy Holding in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

—HE+ZA=+—RALFE)

36. WIEEE

(a)

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

ZHEEWZEBEH(E)

GSE (#%&)

HERBERERCESHE 2
BER  TARBARER 27X

ERFRREEN & - SWRAERZ
% M) a5 4E R 2 B i A 2 B3R R B

RzENmERE -

RZE—NE+=ZANA XA
A 2 % 2 & i B 2 5 Hanergy
Hi-Tech Power (HK) Limited
([Hanergy Hi-Tech])& Hanergy
Holding HKET B E s o BRI
ZIhaE - Bk IR SK R R
#MR T * Hanergy Holding HKI[A
E &M Hanergy Hi-Tech RIE Uk
BEGSEEMEBBRA - RER1E
5T o

BARAREE N GSE S IERIER L

R - EIEUWEER AR R R
THRESG- .Jﬂ: ' GSEHY &
ERBEREZEERN I GSE
R 2 A FES R - mASER
WHE ATV AR & B Bk B T &S -
LABI A GSE B 52 g5 B 152 5l &
HEFHKEEHE - AARIFEIER
WHEE N 2RERGEERZEE
WY BRER S o FRIE & EFE
98,840,000/% 7T £ 2 1 Hanergy
Holding HKX(E 2 M &) =88 R 4R
BRERFERANY] ABZEZER 2T
ﬁ o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

36. ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(b)

Asset acquisition from a third party

On 30 March 2014, Hanergy Global Solar Power
Group Limited (“Hanergy Power Group”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an agreement with Savanna
Pride Limited (“Savanna Pride"),
company incorporated in Ghana. Pursuant to the

an unrelated

agreement, Hanergy Power Group purchased
Savanna Pride's 70% equity in Savanna
Solar Limited (“Savanna Solar”), a company
incorporated in Ghana. After the completion
of the acquisition, Hanergy Power Group and
Savanna Pride own 70% and 30% of the equity
interests of Savanna Solar, respectively. The
acquisition has been completed on 31 March

2014.

On 11 June 2013, Savanna Solar entered into
a power purchase agreement with the relevant
authority in Ghana in relation to the sale of
electricity to be generated under the 400MW
solar power plant project (the “Ghana Project”)
in the Northern Region of Ghana by Savanna
Solar with a term of 25 years. Savanna Solar has
obtained the temporary electricity generation
licence.

As of the acquisition date, Savanna Solar had
no business operations and assets except the
power purchase agreement signed. As such,
pursuant to mutual negotiation, Hanergy Power
Group paid US$1 in respect of the acquisition.
The Company determined that the acquisition
of Savanna Solar did not constitute a business
combination for accounting purposes. The
Company expects to start the construction of
the first phase of the Ghana Project in 2015.

36. WEBESIE(#)

(b)

A-EE=FURBEE

RZZE—MF=A=+H ' ~QF
2B M B A RE R B R
BRESEBRAR(NERESE
£[E |) & Savanna Pride Limited
([Savanna Pride | + —RIRAINARRE
a2 EEAE AR RIS e ©
BiEZW® ZeEEEEREA
Savanna Pride 74 Savanna Solar
Limited ([ Savanna Solar] * —f&
RN 2 A F]) 2 70% B
o RZWBEIRTKE - E25EE
T B K Savanna Pride DRl A
Savanna SolarZ 70% & 30% %
o ZWIESHERN T —NE=
A=+—H%=m °

RZE—=F~HA+—8"
Savanna Solar EIIMIEEE BE]
S EEWZE - NA B M Savanna
Solar #8 & 7 10 4% 3k #6 400MW K
(e EUIE B ([MMAWIEER 1) T
EEZEN HHE BT -
Savanna Solar B VSRR EFT

T -

REEBH  REFEZEEHE
4N Savanna Solar I #E ¥ 75 &8
REE - Wit - BEBESHERN -
B ESRERZWESEE
ETL ARFEEREHENT
= » Y88 Savanna Solar &R
—IEFEBEH - NREITEEINAIE
BE— BN _ZT—AFHI -

A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

37. OPERATING COMMITMENTS

(a)

Operating lease commitments
As lessee

The Group leases a number of properties,
warehouses and equipment under operating
leases, with leases negotiated for an initial
period of three months to five years, with an
option to renew the lease and renegotiate the
terms at the expiry dates or at dates as mutually
agreed between the Group and the respective
landlords. None of the leases include contingent
rental.

At 31 December 2014, the Group and the
Company had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

37. BERIE

(a)

REREARE
ERABA

AEERELKEZHEERETY
¥ RERRE HENSRH=
BEAZREF  AEERBENEME
AgASEEEAETEIREL
REMENEMERGSK - ZFHE
BT ERAEE -

R-ZE—NFE+-_A=+—H &
SEERAREIRBED A EEECEE
B2 ARKERSBEHNTHIH
PR i i

Group
rEH
2014 2013
TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET BT
Within one year —FR 90,110 45,191
In the second to fifth years, inclusive HE-ZERF(BIEEEME) 146,009 57,040
236,119 102,231
Company
RATF
2014 2013
TE-MF e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 12,115 13,982
In the second to fifth years, inclusive HE-ZRF(BIEEREME) 10,096 14,659
22,211 28,641

ZepERESEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

37. OPERATING COMMITMENTS (Continued) 37. REMERE#)

(b) Other Commitments (b) HfthaiE
At 31 December 2014, the Group had total RZZE—MF+=-_A=+—H " =&
other commitments of HK$1,199,714,000 (2013: SEBERBREEXAREEFTER (R
HK$3,202,172,000) under the non-cancellable FEHRER) T REANZH
contracts to build the photovoltaic power A CYE 42%81,199,714,0007% t(—
generation projects capitalised in the inventories. L —=% :3,202,172,0007T) °
38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. BEARAIE
Group
REH
2014 2013
SE-NF e
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Acquisition of items of property, WY - &
plant and equipment HRBEEE
— Contracted, but not provided for  — B ET4EREME 23,358 8,215

— Authorised, but not contracted for — BEREBERETL - —

23,358 8,215
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS AR MY R

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE —Z—

ME+=—A=+—RBLFE)

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the transactions and balances

detailed elsewhere in these consolidated

financial statements,

the Group had the

following material transactions with Hanergy

Affiliates during the year.

39. BEALXRE

(@) BRRFEE BB REK
Sl 2 32 5 M AEERSN
M ELR RER B A BT T
% o

Group

H A #8 > Ay
AREERNE
A TEARR

2014 2013

— b T —
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)

Manufacturing of turnkey
production lines

Rental expense

Equipment lease expense

Equipment lease income

Technology usage fee expense

Purchase of photovoltaic modules

Return of prepayments of the
purchase of the photovoltaic
modules

Sales of spare parts

Operational support expense

Operational support income

Sales of flexible photovoltaic
modules

Charter flights fee

Provision of research and
development service and the

right to use patented technology

BUERELER

(i) 5,955,293 3,
M= (ii) 5,561
REHERS (iii) 17,824
FAEEERA (iv) 912
TR ERE (v) 21,375
RIS L RAE 1 (vi) 1,076,842 1
R KA TER B
HEE N

(vii) 1,262,629
SHE T H 4 (viii) 910
EETRRAY (ix) 1,057
LB (x) 2,149
HEFTE KA

(xi) 2,643
BHRER (xii) 1,627
R R AR
Ko 58 A B A B4 2 e
il (xiii) —

(8751)

243,704
4,849
20,682

28,887
903,486

3,970

30,721

ZepERESEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(@)  (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The revenue from the sales of equipment and
turnkey production lines was receivable from
Hanergy Affiliates. The sales were made in
accordance with the terms as stipulated in the
relevant sales contracts.

Rental of office premises, factory premises and
a staff dormitory by Fujian Apollo, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, from
Sichuan Hanergy, Hanergy Holding's affiliate, and
lease of office space by Solibro Hi-Tech GmbH
(“SHT"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, from Solibro, Hanergy Holding's
affiliate.

Equipment lease expense represents the rental
of a production line by Fujian Apollo from
Sichuan Hanergy.

The lease of certain tools and system for the
production of CIGS photovoltaic modules owned
by SHT to Solibro.

The usage of relevant equipment, material and
facilities by Fujian Apollo from Sichuan Hanergy
to carry out research on thin-film solar energy
technology development.

Purchase of photovoltaic modules was from
Hanergy Affiliates, Solibro and Hanergy Global
Investment and Sales for the construction of
the downstream photovoltaic power generation
projects.

Return of prepayments of the purchase of
photovoltaic modules with a total capacity of
459.4MW due to the delay in the construction
of the photovoltaic power generation projects by
the Group caused by production arrangement by
Hanergy Affiliates.

A

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

—

39. BEANERF (&)

BERERBEEEER AT
R B AT - & TR
AR A R ATH 2 e
7 o

AARZEEEZEWNBRAREE
SRS E R IR AR 2 BB A =1 ||
EREMAM DL - TRIBFT
FEIBE UERARGMEE
% & [} B A 7] Solibro Hi-Tech
GmbH ([SHT ) A& s 128 Ak 2 Bt
& A F]SolibrofA Al A= 2
e -

RiBHEEFRERZASG R
EEETHRLEESR cEE -

M Solibro M ESHTARER 2 &
FIARRGAEECIGS KK
FAERL

BREAGEAM)IERE 2 AR
B MR - SUETTER K
K5 e < BT R 3 A K

] % gt Bt B 2 7] Solibro &
Hanergy Global Investment
and Sales & A IR LAERR
THRREEIER o

RZEEB B AR 2 EERFEHN
REBEEZRANEEEEM
RERBAEBTE 4694
R Z FARTFOR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(a

)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(i)

(xii)

(xiii)

Sales of spare parts of turnkey equipment, tools
and machinery of solar photovoltaic modules
production systems by Fujian Apollo to the
Hanergy Affiliates at prices arrived at after arm’s
length negotiation.

Certain operational support in IT services,
laboratory and lab equipment use and testing,
sales support, telecommunication services,
payroll services and other support services
provided to SHT and SRAB, two indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, by Solibro,
Hanergy Holding's affiliate.

Certain operational support to Solibro for IT
services and production quality enhancement
support, product management services and
troubleshooting services provided by SHT to
Solibro.

Sales of flexible photovoltaic modules and
cells by the Company’s indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, MiaSolé Hi-Tech Corp. (“MHT") to
certain subsidiaries of Hanergy Holding.

Charter flights and related services provided
by Hanergy Civil Aviation Company Limited,
Hanergy Holding's affiliate, to Beijing Hanergy
Solar Investment Co.,Ltd (“Beijing Hanergy"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company..

The income from the provision of research and
development service and the royalty income
from granting access to patented technology by
SRAB, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, to Solibro.

39. BEANERF (&)

(a) (&)
Wiat - (48)

BERAGE A FERERZER
QTR IEYNGIEEE VNS AN
HHEERR I EERBTH
- TRERM:S -

(viii)

(ix) EEEIERR 2 58 A 7 Solibro [
AABIMEEEE2ENBARA
SHT X% SRAB#E fit & &l & & R
% BERZ=REEHRRA - 8
EXF - BAREG - HERBE
FHEMNEER I RE M ER
f% °

(x)  SHTIA Solibro & #t & & & £ iR
BRAEERERTXIS  ERE
B AR 75 K B B 4R 0 T A B ST

# o

Xy XRAAZzHEEZENE A
A MiaSolé Hi-Tech Corp.
(TMHT) 1A1)# g8 1% iR 2 & T B
BARHEZEXKAHERE
A o

EREIERU BB A RDERE AT M
ZEBRARAARR ZHEEE
B A BIERERE NI E AR
RE(THERERE DRI B R4
BB -

(xii)

(xiii) REATERFAERY @ RAAA
ZEEE2EWB AR SRAB®R T
SolibrofE BEMIZMELE 2 &
FUREUIA o

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b)

Other transactions with related parties:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

On 25 February 2014, MHT, as buyer,
entered into an agreement with Hanergy
(America) LLC (“Hanergy (America)”), a
subsidiary of Hanergy Holding, as seller
for the acquisition of a group of assets
comprising a single complete thin film
solar photovoltaic module production
line including 5 proprietary CIGS roll
coaters and a full line to create the
proprietary targets for a consideration of
US$15,200,000 in cash.

On 25 February 2014, Hanergy Global Solar
Power Group (Europe), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as buyer
entered into an agreement with Europe
China Power B.V., a subsidiary of Hanergy
Holding, as seller for the acquisition
of certain furniture and fixtures for a
consideration of EUR63,747.02 in cash.

On 25 February 2014, Hanergy USA Solar
Solution, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as buyer entered into an
agreement with Hanergy Holding America
Inc., a subsidiary of Hanergy Holding,
as seller for the acquisition of certain
furniture and fixtures for a consideration of
US$262,326.56 in cash.

On 17 July 2014, (i) MHT, as buyer entered
into an agreement with Hanergy (America),
as seller for the acquisition the certain
assets from Hanergy (America) for an
aggregate purchase price of US$4,000,000;
and (ii) MHT entered into a lease
assignment with MiaSolé, a subsidiary
of Hanergy Holding, for the assignment
and assumption of a lease by MHT from
17 July 2014 to 31 August 2015 with the
total amount payable by MHT under the
remaining term of the lease amounting
to approximately US$1,721,817. As at
31 December 2014, the rental expenses
incurred by MHT was US$659,952.

39. BEANERF (&)

(b) HMERBEALETZIRS

i) R=ZE—MWF-_A=+H
H * MiaSolé Hi-Tech (fE&
EH)EZEREER B A
AlHanergy (America) LLC
([Hanergy (America)l) (£
RER )W IEE —TEEE
RIGeE X RBHEER - &
REERAEBETEEZCIGS
BEh Rz REKEB
ITHEEREM 2 £EEG %
# ' BL@e{E(E /15,200,000
ETT °

(i) RZE—WNNF-_A=+H
B RARIZ2EMEBA
AlHanergy Global Solar
Power Group (Europe) ({E
REF)EERER 2B
‘A A)Europe China Power
BV.({ERER )BIEE T
R1B % B 7E 2 B 7] 3 15 5%
HE1EEA63,747.02BUT °

(il AZE—MWF-_A=-+H
H AXAaz2EMBARA
Hanergy USA Solar Solution
ERBEH )M ZERIER 2
B B A & Hanergy Holding
America Inc.({fE B B 7 )
REEE TERERREEE
Bl umaE RelEER
262,326.56 T °

(ivy RZZE—@WmF+ A+t
H: () MHTHEARE /)
Hanergy (America) ({EAE
7 )R Hhs% 0 BAA) Hanergy
(America) Wt 88 & T & &= -
4 I B (8 &4,000,0003%
JC ¢ R (i) MHT B2 2 &k 22 IR
Mt B A & MiaSolé 5] 37 78 47
wEE, PEEVH T
—mE+tA++tBHREE-Z
—HEENA=+—81H
MHT & 42 7 49 - MHT 1R #&
ZHENBTHEEN Z2ES
48 B #91,721,8173 7T ©
RZE—NOF+_A=+—
B> MHTEAZBSHRYA
659,952 T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) Other transactions with related parties:
(continued)

(v)

(vi)

EEEEREEEEEBRANA

On 13 August 2014, Hanergy Huayu, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a photovoltaic energy
management contracts (“PEMC") with
Jiangsu Wujin Hanergy, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hanergy Holding to distribute
and operate a 3MW rooftop solar plant
to be constructed on the rooftop of the
buyer’'s factories. On 13 August 2014,
Changxing New Energy, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into
PEMC with Zhejiang Changxing Hanergy,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanergy
Holding to distribute and operate a 3MW
rooftop solar plant to be constructed on
the rooftop of the buyer's factories. Up
to 31 December 2014, there has been no
construction under these PEMC.

On 29 October 2014, SHT entered into
a cooperation agreement with Solibro.
Pursuant to which, Solibro sold certain IT
hardware and CIGS machinery to SHT for
a consideration of EUR904,184.18, which
shall be settled in cash by SHT, and SHT
will sell a co-evaporation system for the
production of CIGS photovoltaic modules to
Solibro and install the prototype for a cash
consideration of EUR5,542,370.26.

39. BEANERF (&)

(b) EAtb

<

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

fh

z

TRl

WEALTETZIRS

RZE—WMFENA+=8"
KRATE 2 EENBRRERE
EFRZRETIRZEANE
NAEVIERE#EERE » 5K
ReeRERE S R HKER
EEAER])  UAomREgEE
BEBEAREREIE E2EH
SMWETE X REIL - R =
Z—NHENA+=H &R
Al 2 EMB A A KEIEE
REZREIER C2ENB R
AL R EE B ET 3 ok R BE
BERARE W Ao REs
BEEAKEETE EZRER
SMWETEX R Bl - B 2
—E—NmNE+_-_A=+—H
1E - W B ZE KR
BESRIEITER -

RZE—EOEFEF+AZF N
H ° SHT£ Solibros] 3 &
YE 1 3 ° #& it » Solibro B
MSHTH & & TE AR K
W {F RCIGSH 28 1k (&
904,184.18 X Jt * % FA SHT
A& X MSHT# M
Solibro i & 4 Z CIGS ¥ K
BHEMNREBRRTTEE
# - 35 % {E{85,5642,370.26
BT ©



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE —

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b) Other transactions with related parties:

(continued)

(vii)

(viii)

On 29 October 2014, SRAB, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into a cooperation agreement with
Solibro, a subsidiary of Hanergy Holding.
Pursuant to which (i) Solibro will provide
certain operational support to SRAB; and
(i) Solibro will sell certain IT hardware
and production tools to SRAB. Solibro
is the owner of certain IT hardware and
production tools. Pursuant to the SRAB
cooperation agreement, Solibro will sell
such IT hardware and production tools to
SRAB for a consideration of EUR16,762.17,
which was settled in cash by SRAB. As
at 31 December 2014,
support expenses incurred by SRAB was
EUR285,485.

the operational

On 28 November 2014, SHT, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Company, entered into
an engineering trial run agreement with
Solibro, pursuant to which Solibro shall
provide production services to and conduct
manufacturing test runs on Solibro’s
production lines, upon orders with specific
technological parameters provided by SHT,
to support the settings and applications in
the future production process of SHT for
the years 2015 and 2016. The service fee
charged by Solibro shall be based on the
number of substrates/modules produced at
the rate of (i) EUR127.95 (plus value-added
tax (“VAT")) for each substrate/module
which has fully processed in the test run;
(i) EUR85.30 (plus VAT) for each substrate/
module processed in the front end; or (iii)
EUR42.65 (plus VAT) for each substrate/
module processed in the back end.

—HE+-RA=+—RALFE)

39. BEANERF (&)

(b) HAEBEALETZIRS : (&)

i) RZZE—NNF+A=+ N
H  ARFBIZE2EWB AR
SRAB £ % g 12 iy < I B &
7] Solibro HT_L EteE - IR
& % 1% 3% - (i) Solibro#5 A
SRAB?ETFE%:F%ESE%?
X (i) Solibro# A SRAB (i
EETEMBREGEREE
T A-SolibroE B & T &
AR EEEREETA - B
& SRAB & {E 1 & - Solibro
1\ SRAB i & B B8 & &5l 1
REHREETIR  (EE
16,762.178 7T ' FH SRAB
NBEE&EN - R=ZF—/H©
F+ZH=+—H"SRAB
FEANKESERIZ R
285,485 [T °

(vii) RZF—ME+—HA=+N
=N e 5 T = /N |
SHT 2 Solibro 3757 T 12815,
Bk 7% 155 %% © #& 1tk - Solibro %
RI& SHT FriR 4 2 B 88 H iy
28 24~ K Solibroz
FERKREAERBILET
HHEEERAR - AZESHT
RZE—RER-ZT—RF
ZBIBEEERE ZRENE
F © Solibro W EY 2 AR5 & #%
BIEFTEE 2 EIRBEH
B & (i) A 2 50 IE 2 2R
B 127958 T(R
g ERH(EER L)) i)
SRR AT s B A2 2 EAR 48
1¢t1¢85 0BT (5 Mg E
) 5 3 Gi) DB 18 iR A iR
Z%T&/%ﬁf¢1¢42.65 iy
(BB ER)E
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—Z—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE)

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. BEAXIRF (&)
(continued)
(c) Details of compensation of key management (c) AEEFTEZEREEBHINFISEHNY
personnel of the Group are set out in note 14 to & MIEE 14

the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a) B LiFE(@ER D) IBZBEEATR
and (b) above also constitute connected transactions SIEK ETMRBIE 14AEZEMATE 2R
or continuing connected transactions as defined in BRGHFERER S o

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 40. €T EIRER
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of ZHEsHTEMNREEEEZREHKRE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting AR

period are as follows:

Financial assets SRMEE
2014 —E—MFE
Group
rEH
Loans and
receivables Total
- 953
P FRIE &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables B 5 e GRIE 6,078,695 6,078,695
Gross amount due from contract B EHNEFERE
customers 3,278,508 3,278,508
Financial assets included in ©RE E B IR M EREIE
other receivables, deposits and e MIEFFIE
prepayments 2,021,952 2,021,952
Bills receivable JEM = 15 101,411 101,411
Restricted cash XBHEE 76,689 76,689
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEFED 3,033,819 3,033,819

14,591,074 14,591,074
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 40. eMIT ERER (©)
CATEGORY (continued)
Financial liabilities cRAE
2014 —E—E
Group
rEE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total
1248 85 B A
ZE&masE =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade and bills payables B R BB EMNRIE 429,773 429,773
Financial liabilities included in other 4 BhE& &6 5 E 4th JE (M 70E &
payables and accruals FEETE R 1,464,329 1,464,329
Interest-bearing bank and other #R1T R E Ab T B &K
borrowings 1,118,859 1,118,859
3,012,961 3,012,961
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

40. €T BZRER(#)

Financial assets SREE
2013 (Restated) —E-=F(E%)
Group
REE
Available-
for-sale
Held for Loans and financial
trading  receivables assets Total
ERR At e
RHIEEE e FRIE EREE &&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Available-for-sale A HERE
investment = = 85,800 85,800
Trade receivables EC) L6 /e — 2,307,349 — 2,307,349
Gross amount due from A DR PBEE
contract customers — 1,858,557 — 1,858,557
Financial assets included CREEDEHME
in other receivables, W3E - ke kB
deposits and RRIE
prepayments — 2,060,610 — 2,060,610
Equity investments at fair & A FEFIRR B
value through profit or ZERIE
loss 11,698 — — 11,698
Cash and cash equivalents 3R&RIBEEEY — 1,367,836 — 1,367,836
11,698 7,594,352 85,800 7,691,850

ZepERESEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 40. €T BREA(#&)
CATEGORY (continued)
Financial liabilities ot =R
2013 (Restated) —EB-=F(E%)
Group
AEHE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost Total
bieg: 1) DN
ZeRBE =X
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade and bills payables B 5k EBEMNFIE 620,065 620,065
Financial liabilities included in other <& BB &6 75 E 4th JE (M 70E &
payables and accruals FEFT &R 621,599 621,599
Convertible bonds AR ESH 845,584 845,584
Interest-bearing bank and other #R1T R EH AT SR
borrowings 221,996 221,996

2,309,244 2,309,244

Financial assets SREE
Company
b N
2014 2013
—E-|NE —ET-—=F
Loans and Loans and
receivables Total receivables Total
¢ 94 BERR
P RIE &5t IR AFf
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Due from subsidiaries KB AR 2,000,741 2,000,741 2,046,881 2,046,881
Financial assets included in CREEREEMEYE
other receivables, deposits o Be REIHE
and prepayments 19,090 19,090 6,946 6,946
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EEN 500,626 500,626 51,160 51,160

2,520,457 2,520,457 2,104,987 2,104,987
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR MY R

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—Z—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE)

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

40. €T BZRER(#)

Financial liabilities cRIEE
Company
NN
2014
“E-Q[E —2-=F
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost Total cost Total
R RE KR
ZEREE a% ZEREE At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE FE FHET FHET
Due to subsidiaries FERMBAR 3,711 3,711 168,911 158,911
Financial liabilities included in @& EAELMER
other payables and accruals HEREHER 29,283 29,283 28,618 28,618
Convertible bonds ARRES - - 845,584 845,584
Interest-bearing bank RITHT EAE K
borrowings 140,786 140,786 — —
173,780 173,780 1,033,113 1,033,113

ZREERESEEEMR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its
use of financial instruments in its ordinary course
of operations and in its investment activities. The
financial risks include market risk (including foreign
currency risk and interest risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the
Group’s headquarters, in close co-operation with the
board of directors. The overall objectives in managing
financial risks focus on securing the Group’s short to
medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure
to financial markets. Long term financial investments
are managed to generate lasting returns with
acceptable risk levels.

It is not the Group’s policy to actively engage in
the trading of financial instruments for speculative
purposes. The Group’s senior management works
under the policies approved by the board of directors.
It identifies ways to access financial markets and
monitors the Group’s financial risk exposures. Regular
reports are provided to the board of directors.

41.

MHREREERZERBK

AEEFZENEEREEBRENERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

41. BRREEEEREE#Z)

Foreign currency risk M LB

(i) Transactions in foreign currencies and the (i) NEXZRIZEEZEBREZHFE
Group’s risk management policies
The Group has transactional currency exposures. AEBAZRZHEERR - %5

. A Fix R -CIAN b 15 i
Such exposures arise from sales or purchases RERREEEEUARINERR
. S . . oy g

by operating units in currencies other than MM\ZEM%@EZEE c REEH
the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 62% (=% — =% : 99% ) M &
62% (2013: 99%) of the Group's sales were ASHE R LB LR AN
denominated in currencies other than the EH%5IME -
functional currencies of the operating units
making the sale.
The Group reviews its foreign currency exposure Z’»‘%@ii_ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬂfﬁ%ﬁ%@ﬁﬁ o FN
regularly. No hedging or other alternatives have WEEITEPRE MR
been implemented during the year.
The policies to manage foreign currency risk SMERMREEBRNBARSF —&
have been followed by the Group since prior HARERR  BRBR1TZA
years and are considered to be effective. e

(ii)  Summary of exposure (i) EEBEHE

Foreign currency denominated financial assets
and liabilities, translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the closing rates, are as follows:

PISNETHEZ A E R ABERK
MEXRBERETIOT

Group
AEE
2014 2013
—Z-;mF “E-=F
USs$ RMB EUR uS$ RMB EUR
EY AR¥ BT X AR BT
R [CXRCON R T HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Trade receivables EHEWFIE 4,141,079 32 21,675 2,303,734 — —
Gross amount due from  EWRAHEFE
contract customers ek 3,278,508 - — 1,858,557 = =
Cash and bank balances B R#(T4ATF 430,530 1,735 8,871 9,572 506 -
Trade and other payables &5 R E i fER
B (919)  (6,156)  (4,668) (798)  (2,503) —
Interest-bearing bank and 877 R E i &
other borrowings &3 (140,786) - - — — —
Gross exposure arising ERASRHIA
from recognised EEZER
financial instruments k] 7,708,412 (4,389) 25,878 4,171,065 (1,997) —

ZepERESEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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B 35 R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE —Z—

41.

(ii)

ME+=—A=+—BLFE)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. BRAREREERBE#)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) SRR (E)
Summary of exposure (continued) (ii) EfEHE(E)
Company
NG|
2014 2013
—E-NF “T-=F
USs$ RMB EUR US$ RMB EUR
= AR B e AR BT
LCH I CXR T C X HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Interest-bearing bank BITM AR
borrowings (140,786) - - — — —
Gross exposure arising ~ CHEASHI
from recognized AEEZR
financial instruments briaze (140,786) - - — — —
Sensitivity analysis (iii) SR E 7 HT

(iii)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity at
the end of the reporting period to a reasonably
possible change in the exchange rates of foreign
currencies other than the functional currencies
of the relevant operating units. The rates are
used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s best assessment of
the change in foreign currency exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk at the end
of the reporting period has been performed
based on the assumed percentage changes in
foreign currency exchange rates taking place
at the beginning of the financial year and the
assumption that such changes held constant
throughout the year. All other variables are held
constant.

R Bt iR HA R OME (PR RE AC
B2 EEBRINEF 251

AlReEE) L BURE o kR RMEE
EIE A B NEB 2 #H YN R g 5 AT AR
2 W ARE IR E NS [E K]
BE B E) o S fERTAA ©

RIS - AEEFEY NS,
07 B ST BRI E R
BB SR RENEELBRER
BB R B A3 T B TS -
A RS R TE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—Z—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. BREERREEEERBEK @)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) MR (E)
(iii) Sensitivity analysis (continued) (iii) BEE S H(4E)
Group AEEE
Appreciation/(depreciation) in US$ against RMB ETHARETE (B21E)

2014 2013
—ZT—F =4
LTEX Tl HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
+5% (-5%) +5% (-5%)
5% (%5%) F5% (%5%)

Profit for the year and  ZR4FEE i F &
retained profits B17 57 302,164 (302,164) 185,612 (185,612)

Appreciation/(depreciation) in US$ against HK$ ETL BT AE (1)

2014 2013
—E—MF —F—=
LN T HK$'000 — HK$'000
FAET FAET FET FET
+1% (-1%) +1% (-1%)
H1% (% 1%) F1% (K1%)

Profit for the year and ZANEE &M &
retained profits B1F 5 — — — —

Appreciation/(depreciation) in RMB against HK$ ANBEE BT HE(F21E)

2014
—E2-mEF T—=
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET 7 FET
+5% (-5%) (-5%)
5% (B 5%) (B 5%)

Profit for the year and ZANEEHF &
retained profits BB 15 A (169) 169 (89) 89

ZREERESEEEMR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. BRERREEEERBEK @)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) INE R (E)
(iii) Sensitivity analysis (continued) (iii) BEE B H (4E)
Group (continued) AEEF(E)
Appreciation/(depreciation) in EUR against HK$ BT i BT HHE (B2 1E)

2014 2013
—ZT—F =4
LTEX Tl HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
+5% (-5%) +5% (-5%)
5% (%5%) F5% (%5%)

Profit for the year and  ZR4FEE i F &

retained profits B17 57 996 (996) — —
Company KA
Appreciation/(depreciation) in US$ against HK$ TS ETTHE (B2 1)

2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=fF
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEr FET
+1% (-1%) +1% (-1%)
F1% (B1%) F1% (B1%)

Profit for the year and ZANEE & &

retained profits BB 17 A - — — —
Exposures to foreign exchange rates varied HSNEETE R R R N F N E RN 5
during the year depending on the volume of SMWRE - 8 » Ll DR A
overseas transactions. Nevertheless, the analysis AR AEE 2 NS REBR o

above is considered to be representative of the
Group's exposure to foreign currency risk.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

(i)

(ii)

Exposures to interest rate risk and the
Group’s risk management policies

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. Floating interest rate instruments will
result in the Group facing cash flow interest rate
risk. As at 31 December 2014, approximately
HK$425,487,000 (2013: HK$221,996,000) of
the Group's interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings bore interest at fixed rate.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of
the Group’'s and the Company's profit for the
year and equity to a possible change in interest
rates of +/-50 basis points (2013: +/-50 basis
points), with effect from the beginning of the
year. The calculation is based on the Group's
and the Company’'s amount of floating rate
borrowings during the year. All other variables
are held constant.

Group

HK$°000

41. BRREEEEREE#Z)

MRE R
(i) FIEEBRERFEEZEREE

(ii)

2014
—=-mE

FET

+50 basis

points

+50 & 2

AREE R A e

B 17 A

Profit for the year and
retained profits

(2,669)

BFE

FRERESRTEZ AFERKR
2 B T is A & o B i bR K
B oRAK - FBMNETAGSAK
SEEGRERENERAR - R
ZE—WE+=ZA=+—H0" 8
425,487,000 m(ZE — =4 :
221,996,000 % 7T ) « AN & @ #R 1T
R EAb T B8 IR E E R RET B o

BBETHT

TEMRAFNE - AEERAR
7 2 A 4 i R 35 ) 3
B R +/-50 K (=T — = F :
+/-50 EH) S8 7 RS - AIE
G TS AREE RARTRERZE
DR ERBER - FARER
e -

2013
=%
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET TFET
SSIONGERIE  +50 basis -50 basis
points points points
-50 EL & +50 BB -50 £ B

2,669 = =

ZepERESEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. BRERREEEERBEK @)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued) MEEE(E)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (continued) (ii) SBEEZH(E)
Company

2014 2013
—E-mF —ET—=F
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET THET FET TFET
+50 basis SO GERIEN  +50 basis -50 basis
points points points points

+50E % 50 E B +50 E 2 S50 E 2L

Profit for the year and ZR4FEE i F &

retained profits B 175 7 (704) 704 = —
The assumed changes in interest rates MEZBRREE B RIFITHR
are considered to be reasonable based on BRAEGEZEE  WABEEY
observation of current market conditions and HETERSEHRLEHABNE G
represent the management’'s assessment of BEE) 71 o

reasonable change in interest rates over the
period until the end of the next reporting period.
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B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

=

4
A

b
b

7

5

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk
(i)  Summary of exposures

Credit

risk refers to the

investing activities.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial
assets, which mainly comprise cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, bills receivable,
trade and other receivables, gross amount
due from contract customers arises from the
default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these

instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
trade and other receivables is disclosed in
notes 21 and 23 to the consolidated financial

statements.

(ii)

Risk management objectives and policies

The Group's policy is to deal only with
creditworthy counterparties. Credit terms
are granted to new customers after a
creditworthiness assessment. WWhen considered
appropriate, customers may be requested to

provide proof as to their financial position.

Customers who are not considered creditworthy
are required to pay in advance or on delivery
of goods. Payment records of customers are
closely monitored. Overdue balances and
significant trade receivables are highlighted. The
directors will determine the appropriate recovery
actions. It is not the Group’s policy to request

collateral from its customers.

REESEERLDA

risk that the
counterparty to a financial instrument would fail
to discharge its obligation under the terms of the
financial instrument and cause a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’'s exposure to credit risk
mainly arises from granting credit to customers
in the ordinary course of its operations and its

41.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE —

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

The credit risk for liquid funds is considered
negligible as the counterparties are reputable
banks and securities brokers.

The credit policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered
to have been effective in limiting the Group's
exposure to credit risk to a reasonable level.

Concentration of credit risk

Included in trade receivables was
HK$4,345,231,000 (2013: HK$2,303,734,000)
due from customers under common control
with Hanergy Holding, which represented
100%)
account receivables from customers at the end

approximately 71% (2013: of total

of the reporting period.

The directors of the Company believe that
impairment allowance is adequate in respect of
such balance as the customer had a good track
record of settlements during the current year
and prior year.

—HE+-RA=+—RALFE)

41. KRR EEH £

Ea
(i)

(iii)

ERBKR(#)

B (&)
EBREEERRBFE(E)

BHRE T REEBRFIRITRE
R MRBESZEERBRER
AIBIR

EERREBEBRFE —BEHAE
Binm - BRBRITZER  #AX
SEREZ EERRRHIESEK

7 o

FEEBES

g 5 FE W 3 184,345,231,000
HBIL(ZZT— =4 : 2,303,734,000
BT)BREERES(RZETER

HEES)RIE - hREHARZIE
H&E}E‘Bﬁ RHAFEN T 1% (ZE—=
£ :100%) °

ARBEFMRE  AREERAF
REFHHER RIFEE LS - 5L
ZER/BETIR ZBERBRRE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—Z—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. BEEBEEBERBER#)

286

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables, and
also in respect of its cash flow management. The
Group's objective is to maintain an appropriate level
of liquid assets and committed lines of funding to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long
term.

Analysed below is the remaining contractual maturity
for the Group's and the Company's financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period. When the
creditor has a choice of when the liability is settled,
the liability is included on the basis of the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Where the settlement of the liability is in instalments,
each instalment is allocated to the earliest period in
which the Group is committed to pay.

The contractual maturity analysis below is based
on the contractual undiscounted payments in the
financial statements:

Group
2014

On  Less than

demand 6 months

REXE  DR6fEA
HK$'000  HK$'000

RBESE

mBEERBRTENEEREETE R
BEMBAETZARAR AKEEE
BEIERNFBARERSREEES
HARRDECRR AKEZBERER
MITEECRBEE KT RAHRESR
B UENEEREHMZABEST

gaéo

AT RRAKERARRRBERRZ
FITESRABZNBAREEA - B
BNEARERRERN R Z&REBH
RAAC EERATEESATREBZA
H-BEREUIEHIAES RSO H
TInBEEAREEAGENRZ &ZFHME -

ATERBBATHIREMBRERZE
HIRBER SR

rEH
—E—NmF
6 to 12 1to5 Over
months years 5 years Total
6212 fiA 125 BB CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

FET TET FET FET FET FET

Trade and bills payables CUNES i AENE 51674 201,468 141,026 35,605 - 429,773

Other payables A ERFHE 1,168,051 - - - — 1,168,051
Interest-bearing bank and other {7 R At S e

borrowings 20,282 298,410 185066 345039 551,070 1,399,867

Finance lease payables ENRERE - 4,654 4,654 39,406 - 48,714

1,240,007 504532 330,746 420,050 551,070 3,046,405

ZREERESEEEMR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41. BRERREEEERBEK @)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REESER(E)
Group (continued) KEB(E)
2013 (Restated) —E—=F (&)
On  Less than 61012 Tt05 Over
demand 6 months months years b years Total

REXE  JR6EA 6E12{8A 1£5%  Hl#5F L
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TET TET THET TET TET TET

Trade and bills payables B NERENTE 10,621 419,837 146,316 43,291 — 620,065
Other payables EtEAHE 452,428 = = = — 452,428
Interest-bearing bank and other /7R E it 2 £ 3%
borrowings — 184,413 245 50,052 — 234,710
Convertible Bonds AR ES - — 847,530 - — 8475530
Finance lease payables ENRERE - 4,653 4,653 48,628 = 57,934
463,049 608,903 998,744 141,971 — 2,212,667
Company
2014
On  Less than Over
demand 6 months months years 5 years Total
REXE SR6MEA 6Z12 fEA 1856  HBB5oF &5
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TE7 BT BT BT BT A7
Due to subsidiaries FERMBEAR 3,711 - - - - 3,711
Other payables EthEMTIE 18,835 - - - - 18,835
Interest-bearing bank RITHBER
borrowings - 141,554 - - - 141,554

22,546 141,554 - - - 164,100
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(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

41.

EEEEREEEEEBRANA

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

41.

MEEEEEBERBER#)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBESEK(E)
Company (continued) ARE(E)
2013 —EF-=F
On  Less than 6to 12 Ttob Over
demand 6 months months years b years Total
REXE  JR6EA 6Z12 A 1256 BE5F Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Due to subsidiaries T BAR 158,911 - - = — 158911
Other payables At FE 16,863 - - - — 16,863
Convertible Bonds MRRESR — — 847530 = — 847,530
175,774 — 847,530 — — 1,023,304
Capital management EXREE
The primary objectives of the Group's capital AREBZFEEAREEAZABRASE
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to BEEGENBELSSE  TEEEREELRNL
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy X PIFEEBREBEERAREE
capital ratios in order to support its business and & -

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the adjusted capital plus
net debt. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, trade and bills payables, finance
lease payables and other payables and accruals,
less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes
convertible bonds and equity attributable to owners
of the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting periods were as follows:

BREREBEEERBE &)

EAER(E)

AEEFBEREELR(AVERFER
BRAKHABREARANEBEBH FHE)EEE
Ko BHFRBERITREMKEE
FBHRRERERNFIA  BNREME
ERENREMEMNKERESER
(R RREEEY) - BEABEA
BERESEBAREAARGERER - 1
WEMR2ERNBBLEMT ¢

Group rEEH
2014 2013
=k T =
HK$000 HK$'000
FET TET
(Restated)
(&%)
Interest-bearing bank and other RIT RE AL SAEFK (A7 29)
borrowings (note 29) 1,118,859 221,996
Trade and bills payables (note 27) B M ERENRIE(HZ27) 429,773 620,065
Other payables and accruals (note 28) E. e~ 718 K fE =1 £
(B1:F28) 1,464,329 621,599
Finance lease payables (note 31) FERREME(HZE31) 48,714 57,934
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 0 RERBEEEY (3,033,819) (1,367,836)
Net debt BERFRR 27,856 153,758
Convertible bonds, the liability AR ES AEHS
component — 845,684
Equity attributable to the owners B R AR ARG ER
of the parent 20,492,088 15,841,306
Adjusted capital PRS2 IN 20,492,088 16,686,890
Capital and net debt BARREBFEE 20,519,944 16,840,648
Gearing ratio BEREELE 0.14% 0.91%
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EREREEERBEARA

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities
are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
restricted cash, trade and bills receivables, gross
amount due from contract customers, financial assets
included in other receivables, prepayments and
deposits, financial liabilities included in trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, convertible
bonds and the current-portion of interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The fair values of finance lease payables, the non-
current portion of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities.

The fair values of listed available-for-sale equity
investments and equity investment at fair value
through profit or loss are based on quoted market
prices. The directors believe that the estlmated
fair values which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related
changes in fair values, which are recorded in other
comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that they
were the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

—HE+ZA=+—RALFE)

AFEREMIAPHATEE
=

AFEEREBRTATHNAFEERSH
BENBBEZAFECDREZIAKRSE
TERMBERTHRTRS (IR
FERHE)EEAR - SHEATIG
ERBRAMGERFE

BehBReEEY ZRHIRE - -EH
REKERE RBESHNEFEE 8%
REMEEFIEA - BE RBNKEFH
TREE UNREBERESZNENR
B HiENAZAREAERTOHSRE
BE ABRERES RTLREGBHEE
-MW%$TZQ$ﬁ@ﬁEEEW
- TEAREETANIHERAR
55 o

FEN R E M E MERTT R E AP B B3R IE
ENERER D 2 R 1E - THRIRTAAH R KIR
ERE UFH  EERR RIS
RrRR AR A T AYIR/T A A RRLIR A

sty

H o
Zr

AHHE EmRaRERRAFENR
RBERERRENDERTSHRE - &
ERELHEREAVBRARNAF
B ARRERNEME2EKRENERA
FEZHREEARNBSHRRKEE
HER(E o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 42.
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following tablets illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’'s financial

instruments:
Assets measured at fair value:

Group

As at 31 December 2014:

AFEREMTIASRHAFE
B#kcz)

TEMRAEESRIAY ATEHE
5 -
BATEN B2 BE :

AEHE
RZE—WOF+=—A=+—8:

Fair value measurement using

UT3&EFEAFE

Quoted
prices

in active
markets
(Level 1)
EERME L
ZHE
(B—#)
HK$'000

Assets BE FET

BAFEIRRBEZ

Equity investment at fair

Significant  Significant
observable unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3)
EATEHE EXFTUBRE
wA LPN
(=) (B=#)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET

value through profit or #2518 E
loss (note 25) (K15t 25) - - - -
As at 31 December 2013: RZBE—=F+=A=+—8:
Fair value measurement using
ATFIEBAELTE
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EERTS . BERAEBRE EATAHER
2B BA BA
(F—#4) (F=8) (BE=H) A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets BE FET FET FET FET
Equity investment at fair RAFEFIFENER 2
value through profit or =% A&
loss (note 25) (Kii#25) 11,698 — — 11,698
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE —

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(a)

EREREEERBEARA

On 27 January 2015, Hanergy Hi-Tech, as
purchaser entered into an agreement with
Hanergy Global Investment, a subsidiary of
Hanergy Holding, as vendor for the sale and
purchase of the entire issued capital of Alta
Devices, Inc., for an aggregate consideration
of US$15,000,000, which will be payable by
Hanergy Hi-Tech in cash within seven days after

the completion.

Details of the acquisition have been set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 27 January
2015. The acquisition of Alta Devices, Inc., was
subsequently completed on 15 February 2015.
Due to the timing of the transaction, the Group
is still assessing the allocation of fair values
of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
The Group has not yet been able to analyse all
books and records of Alta Devices, Inc., and
therefore the initial accounting for the business
combination is still incomplete. Accordingly,
certain disclosures in relation to the business
combination as at the date of the acquisition,
when Alta Devices, Inc., became under common
control of Hanergy Holding, such as fair values
of assets acquired and liabilities assumed,
goodwill recognised (if any) and acquisition-
related costs, have not been presented.

On 30 January 2015,
19,300,000 share options to its 15 employees

the Company granted

with an exercise price of HK$3.61 per share
Each of
the employees needs to pay HK$1.00 upon

and an exercise period of 5 years.

acceptance of the share options.

—HE+ZA=+—RALFE)

43. FEHRER

(a)
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RZEBE-—RAFE—-—HZ++HB-
Hanergy Hi-Tech({EAE R )EE
BE 4% IS B /&8 2 &) Hanergy Global
Investment (tE & & 75 ) 5] 32 —
e AUHEE KREEB BAlta
Devices 2B #1TIRA - BRE
15,000,000 7T * BN R H 7K
&+ XA A Hanergy Hi-Tech LAZR
SRS o

WEEEZFBEHRA AR A H
A-ZT—AF—A=-t+tBZA
% o Alta Devices ZWEEEEER
ZE—RAF-_ATHAZEK - AR
R ZERE - AEBETER
W BEERMAEBBENA
FEZDE - AEE KD Alta
Devices 2 2 #B@ it 428k - At
REBEHZVFEETRARTK o
Eitt - RUEE B AR - Alta Devices,
Inc. X AZREIE IR HFEHE I E M
Brix - B TEAZEBE S HHBOE
B flniE s EEEMEAE S
BENATE BERZEE(WE)
RUEEHRBEKA - MAZT -

RZE—RAF—A=+H ' &AAQ
AlM+ A% E T#H 19,300,000
fREERR#E - BRITHEEA3.615
T TEHRLE - RETERE
B RS 29 1.00 B 7T ©



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(c)

On 18 February 2015, the Company and
Hanergy Holding entered into a master supply
agreement for the continuing supply of solar
panel by Hanergy Affiliates to the Company in
the consecutive three years from 2015 to 2017.
On 6 March 2015, a supplemental agreement
has been entered into by the two parties
whereby the Company will purchase 70MW
non-customised CIGS flexible chips and flexible
functional modules of 70MW using CIGS flexible
chips absorption layer.

On 26 February 2015, Fujian Apollo, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sales contract and
a service contract with Shandong Macrolink
New Resources Technology Limited (the
“Equipment Purchaser”), whereby Fujian Apollo
agrees to sell and the Equipment Purchaser
agrees to purchase certain production line
equipment for Business Integrated Photovoltaic
Business (BIPV) at a total capacity of 600MW
at a total price of US$198,000,000, and to
provide technical services with respect to this
production line equipment at total service fee of
US$462,000,000. The aggregate consideration
payable by the Equipment Purchaser under
the above mentioned contracts will be
US$660,000,000 in total.

43. REHREE (2)

(c)

A

R-_ZE—RAF—_A+/\H ' XAF

B2 B 20 IS RE B B 8 R A R
AR E—RAFE_T—+FEE

= FREMREAGEEA ST
BEERE R —RF=ZAN
H &Rl Arnmz - S8R
EREEEBEEIETH M CIGS M
R 70MW KA CIGS M F &
W 2 [ ) 2R 14 Th B/ NAB 1 7OMW e

R-E—RAF_A-+,xB &R
AzHEE2EFRARGENRE -
B3 ||| SR AR se R BHE AR A A
([ZBEEERDIILHEESR R
fRE&ER - Tt - BEAGREN
ELREBEESTRAEEERANEE
HR—BLEBIPVEKZETE
EEARERANE - BERE B B600MW - 42
{E1% 4 198,000,000 37T ¢ I 1tk
HFESRERMEEMRS - BRE
B F 4 462,000,000 7T © &ZEE
BAshiE E6RRREERERN
ZHARE - #2%05660,000,0003%
=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ2—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(e)

=

4
A

b
b

7

5

i

+~,;§§€

R 5

=X

On 26 February 2015, the Company and
Macrolink New Resources Holding Company
Limited (the “Subscriber”)
subscription agreement pursuant to which

entered into a

the Subscriber will subscribe for, and the
Company will allot and issue to the Subscriber
1,500,000,000 new shares (“Subscription
Shares”) at the subscription price of HK$3.64
per subscription share. The Subscription Shares
will be issued under the general mandate and
will rank pari passu among themselves and
with all of the shares in issue at the date of the
completion. The Subscription Shares represent
approximately 3.60% of the existing issued
share capital of the Company as at 26 February
2015 and approximately 3.48% of the enlarged
issued share capital of the Company immediately
after the completion. The completion is subject
to fulfillment of the conditions precedent.
Accordingly, the subscription may or may not
proceed. The subscription price was arrived at
after arm’s length negotiations between the
Company and the Subscriber with reference
to the latest market price of the shares of the
Company. The aggregate subscription price
of HK$5,460,000,000 shall be payable in cash
by the subscriber by way of bank transfer or
cashier order(s) on or before the date of the
completion. The Subscriber holds 40% interest
in the Equipment Purchaser, while the remaining
60% interest is held by several independent
third party investors. The Subscriber and the
Equipment Purchaser are both independent of
and not connected with the Company and its
connected persons.

SEBERAR

43. REWREE (2)

(e)

HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED

R-E—RAF_A-+/x8B &R
AIEFERITRER A RE
AN REGE - B - RE
FBIEREERB M AR B AR
f% 5 BL 3% ) %17 1,500,000,000 &
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—ZF—NF+-A=+—HILFE)

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(f)

On 6 March 2015, the Company further entered
into a long-term strategic cooperative framework
agreement with TIEN New Energy Group Limited
(“"TIEN New Energy”) over the development
and construction of distributed photovoltaic
power stations projects and the acquisition and
transfer of equity interests in such projects with
a total capacity of over 200MW. On 6 March
2015, meanwhile, the two parties also signed
an equity interests transfer agreement, whereby
the Group agrees to sell its equity interest in a
distributed photovoltaic power station project to
TIEN New Energy.

43. REHREE (2)

(f)

RZE—RF=A/NH ' AARHE
BRFEREERRQAG(ARRX
TR ERRERBERER
200MW 2z 5 K IREEBIEE -
AR EBEERKREREZE 2K
- E—BEIVNRERAEESED
FoBEKE R-ZZE—RF=ARX
H - &FErIREEZEGZ Bt
AEBRELEER—EL MK
REBEEIER PR RET BB
IR e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M =

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE —

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(9)

EREREEERBEARA

On 30 March 2015, the Company and Baota
Petrochemical Group Co., Ltd. (the “Subscriber”)
entered into a subscription agreement pursuant
to which the Subscriber will subscribe for,
and the Company will allot and issue to the
Subscriber not less than 300,000,000 new
Shares and not more than 3,000,000,000
new Shares (“Subscription Shares”) at the
subscription price of HK$5.38 per subscription
share. The Subscription Shares will be issued
under the general mandate and will rank pari
passu among themselves and with all of the
shares in issue at the date of the completion.
The Subscription Shares represent approximately
7.20% of the existing issued share capital
of the Company as at 30 March 2015 and
approximately 6.72% of the enlarged issued
share capital of the Company immediately
after the completion. The completion is subject
to fulfillment of the conditions precedent.
Accordingly, the subscription may or may not
proceed. The subscription price was arrived at
after arm’s length negotiations between the
Company and the Subscriber with reference
to the latest market price of the shares of the
Company. The aggregate subscription price
of not less than HK$1,614,000,000 (assuming
Subscription of 300,000,000 Shares) and not
more than HK$16,140,000,000 (assuming
Subscription of 3,000,000,000 Shares)shall be
payable in cash by the subscriber by way of
bank transfer or cashier order(s) on or before
the date of the completion. The Subscriber
holds 73.43% interest in Equipment Purchaser,
while the remaining 26.57% interest is held by
other independent third party investors. The
Subscriber and the Equipment Purchaser are
both independent of and not connected with the
Company and its connected persons.

—HE+ZA=+—RALFE)

43. REWREE (2)

(9)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR P

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE —

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(h)

On 30 March 2015,
Mongolia Manshi Investment Group Company
Limited (the
subscription agreement pursuant to which the

the Company and Inner

“Subscriber”) entered into a
Subscriber will subscribe for, and the Company
will allot and issue to the Subscriber not less
than 110,000,000 new Shares and not more
than 1,100,000,000 new Shares (”Subscription
Shares"”) at the subscription price of HK$5.38
per subscription share. The Subscription Shares
will be issued under the general mandate and
will rank pari passu among themselves and
with all of the shares in issue at the date of the
completion. The Subscription Shares represent
approximately 2.64% of the existing issued
share capital of the Company as at 30 March
2015 and approximately 2.57% of the enlarged
issued share capital of the Company immediately
after the completion. The completion is subject
to fulfillment of the conditions precedent.
Accordingly, the subscription may or may not
proceed. The subscription price was arrived at
after arm’s length negotiations between the
Company and the Subscriber with reference
to the latest market price of the shares of the
Company. The aggregate subscription price
of not less than HK$584,100,000 (assuming
Subscription of 110,000,000 Shares) and
not more than HK$5,841,000,000 (assuming
Subscription of 1,100,000,000 Shares)shall be
payable in cash by the subscriber by way of bank
transfer or cashier order(s) on or before the date
of the completion. The Equipment Purchaser is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Subscriber. The
Subscriber and the Equipment Purchaser are
both independent of and not connected with the
Company and its connected persons.

—HE+-RA=+—RALFE)

43. REHREE (2)

(h)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

(For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ—Z—NF+_-_A=+—HILFE)

44. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 44. HEMBRER
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and PHEREREN_E—RAF=ZA=ZTHEK
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 SR ERBETE -
March 2015.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
HEFEERE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities T X#HFIARNEE:BETEIMKNEE 2 245E -
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted ZAEREBGBHE X IEEEC TR ZEER
from the published audited financial statements and re- BIf#Rz%  WE/EHEE ZEFHFEH -
presented as appropriate, is set out below.

RESULTS E 3

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ZE-TF ZT——% ZT--F ZT-=F mbggi3
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 BELE0Il]
T T T T FET
(Restated)

(2%)

CONTINUING OPERATION BEREEK
REVENUE LON 3,019,097 2,564,640 2,756,463 3,283,791 9,615,028

PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM A REBESLEK 2
CONTINUING OPERATION BiAn R 1,617,129 967,543 1,666,158 2,277,313 4,290,744

Income tax expense FrEfB%x M (346,459)  (243,814) (349,976) (259,289) (983,074)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM REBERLEK
A CONTINUING OPERATION ZAREERF 1,170,670 723,729 1,316,182 2,018,024 3,307,670

DISCONTINUED OPERATION BAIIR&E£HK

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR RECRIEREER

THE YEAR FROM A ZAREERR,

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (/&) 20,342 (767) — — -
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEZHA 1,191,012 722,962 1,316,182 2,018,024 3,307,670

Profit for the year attributable ~ BAREE AEEREE

to the owners of the parent ikl 1,184,697 719,320 1,316,182 2,018,024 3,307,748
Profit/(loss) for the year RS

attributable to JELARERE

non-controlling interests wH,/ (BR) 6,315 3,642 — — (78)
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—T-%F T——F T _T-=F mEiguks
Notes  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 BzLEXLL]
Hist FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated)
(E51)
Goodwil e 17 7,915,318 7,915318 7,915,318 7,915,318 7,915,318
Intangible assets B EE 18 542,636 370,689 551,091 1,211,056 1,070,085
Property, plant and EN S 15
equipment 155,369 119,364 133,848 320,054 663,497
Available-for-sale investment A E#HE 19 — — 85,800 85,800 -
Prepaid land lease B LA
payments (non-current (FEREEL D)
portion) 9,665 — — — -
Deposits paid for WEmE - BE
acquisition REBEEZER
of items of property, i
plant and equipment 22,763 15,583 2,376 493 32
Investment properties REME — — — — -
Deferred tax assets BERARE 32 16,434 71,453 44,286 23,420 76,404
Net current assets ENE S 1,963,808 2,825,794 3,230,256 6,699,248 12,024,611
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEEE 32 (147,755)  (197,157)  (250,875) (324,501) (561,995)
Convertible Bonds Ak ES
(non-current portion) (GERBED) (2,072,384)  (729,375) — — -
Other non-current liabilities ~ EtIERBHEE — — —  (89,582) (695,277)
Total equity ERAE 8,405,854 10,391,669 11,712,100 15,841,306 20,492,675

ZepERESEEAR AR HANERGY THIN FILM POWER GROUP LIMITED
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